
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

LOCAL REVIEW BODY 
 

FRIDAY, 26 APRIL 2024 at 10.15 am 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY to be held by 
VIRTUAL MEETING - TEAMS, on FRIDAY, 26 APRIL 2024, at 10.15 am 
 
This meeting will be live streamed and a recording of the public part of the meeting will be 
made publicly available at a later date. 
 
 
 
 
Thursday, 18 April 2024 Director of Business Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillors D Lonchay (Chair), S Adams, I Davidson, J Goodhall, C Simpson and 

C Victor        
 

Substitute Members: Councillors Y Chou Turvey, S Dickinson, M Ewenson, 
M James, G Lang and R Menard 

 
 
 
 

 
Contact Person:- 

 

 
Alison McLeod 
Tel: 01467 535544 
Email: alison.mcleod4@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
B U S I N E S S 

  
1 Sederunt, Declaration of Members' Interests.   

 
 

 
2 Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 
Consider, and if so desired, adopt the following resolution:- 
  
(1)       to have due regard to the need to:- 
  

(a)               eliminate discrimination, harassment and  
  victimisation; 
(b)              advance equality of opportunity between those who 

share a protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it; and  

(c)               foster good relations between those who share a 
protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it. 

  
(2)       where an Integrated Impact Assessment is provided, to 

consider its contents and take those into account when 
reaching a decision. 

 

3 

 
3 Minute of the Meeting of the Local Review Body of 22 March 

2024   
 

4 - 13 

 
4 Spreadsheet Highlighting Relevant Policies for Each Review.   

 
14 - 15 

 
NEW REVIEWS  
 

 
 
5 LRB 604 - Notice of Review against Refusal of Full Planning 

Permission for Erection of Children's Day care Nursery (Class 10 
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, 
Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse 
(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279) at Land 
Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherly, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU - 
Reference: APP/2022/1845.   
 

16 - 196 

 
6 LRB 605 - Notice of Review against Refusal of Full Planning 

Permission for Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective 
Ground Based Solar Panels at site at Berwick Wood, Hatton of 
Fintray, AB21 0YR - Reference: APP/2023/0889   
 

197 - 502 

 
 



PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY – GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS 

What is the duty? 

In making decisions on the attached reports, Members are reminded of their legal 
duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to:-  

(i) eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
(ii) advance equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 
(iii) foster good relations between those who share a protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The “protected characteristics” under the legislation are: age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation; and (in relation to point (i) above only) marriage and civil partnership. 

How can Members discharge the duty? 

To ‘have due regard’ means that in making decisions, Members must consciously 
consider the need to do the three things set out above. This requires a conscious 
approach and state of mind. The duty must influence the final decision. 

However, it is not a duty to achieve a particular result (e.g. to eliminate unlawful racial 
discrimination or to promote good relations between persons of different racial 
groups). It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve these goals. 

How much regard is ‘due’ will depend upon the circumstances and in particular on the 
relevance of the needs to the decision in question. The greater the relevance and 
potential impact that a decision may have on people with protected characteristics, 
the higher the regard required by the duty. 

What does this mean for Committee/Full Council decisions? 

Members are directed to the section in reports headed ‘Council Priorities, 
Implications and Risk”. This will indicate whether or not an Integrated Impact 
Assessment (IIA) has been carried out as part of the development of the 
proposals and, if so, what the outcome of that assessment is. 

An IIA will be appended to a report where it is likely, amongst other things, that the 
action recommended in the report could have a differential impact (either positive or 
negative) upon people from different protected groups. The report author will have 
assessed whether or not an IIA is required. If one is not required, the report author 
will explain why that is. 

Where an IIA is provided, Members should consider its contents and take those into 
account when reaching their decision. Members should also be satisfied that the 
assessment is sufficiently robust and that they have enough of an understanding of 
the issues to be able to discharge their legal duty satisfactorily. 

For more detailed guidance please refer to the following link:- 
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhu
manrights.com%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Ftechnical_guidance_psed_scotland.
docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK 

Page 3
Item 2

https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Ftechnical_guidance_psed_scotland.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Ftechnical_guidance_psed_scotland.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.equalityhumanrights.com%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Ftechnical_guidance_psed_scotland.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK


 

 

LOCAL REVIEW BODY 
 

FRIDAY, 22ND MARCH, 2024 
 
Present:  Councillors D Lonchay (Chair) , I Davidson, J Goodhall, I Davidson, 

J Goodhall, R Menard (as substitute for Councillor S Adams) C Simpson 
and C Victor.      

  
Apologies: Councillor S Adams.  
 
Officers: Planning Adviser to the Local Review Body (Senior Planner, Bruce 

Strachan), Legal Adviser to the Local Review Body (Solicitor, Amanda 
de Candia) and Committee Officer (Alison McLeod). 

   
 

1 SEDERUNT, DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS. 
  
In respect of declaration of members’ interests as required by the Code of Conduct for 
members, the following declarations of members’ interests were intimated. 
  
(1)            Councillor Victor declared an interest in Agenda Item 7 – LRB 600 – by virtue of 

the application site being within her Ward. She concluded that she would 
withdraw from the meeting when that review was being determined. 
  

(2)            Councillor Menard declared an interest in Item 6 – LRB 598 as he had not been 
in attendance when the review had initially been considered and in respect of 
Item 8 – LRB 603 by virtue of the application site being within his Ward. He 
concluded that he would withdraw from the meeting when both reviews were 
being considered. 

 
2 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY. 

 
In taking decisions on the undernoted items of business, the Local Review Body 
agreed, in terms of Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010:- 
  
(1)       To have due regard to the need to:- 
  

(a)  eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
  

(b)  advance equality and opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

  
(c)  foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic and 

persons who do not share it, and 
  

(2)       to consider, where an Integrated Impact Assessment has been provided, its 
contents and to take those into consideration when reaching a decision. 

  
 

Page 4
Item 3



 

 

 
3 MINUTE OF THE MEETING OF THE LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF 23 FEBRUARY 

2024 
 
The Local Review Body had before them and approved as a correct record, the 
Minute of the Local Review Body meeting of 23 February, 2024.  
 

4 SPREADSHEET HIGHLIGHTING RELEVANT POLICIES FOR EACH REVIEW. 
 
The Local Review Body had before them, and noted, a list of policies relevant to each 
of the reviews presented, as contained within the Aberdeenshire Local Development 
Plan (2023). 
  
The Local Review Body also had before them, and noted, a list of policies relevant to 
each of the reviews presented, as contained in the National Planning Framework 4 
(NPF4) as adopted on 13 February 2023. 
 

5 STATEMENT OF OUTSTANDING BUSINESS 
 
A list of outstanding actions was circulated from previous meetings of the Local 
Review Body, where further procedures had been necessary. The list provided the 
Local Review Body with the current status of one deferral as of 22 March 2024. 
 
The Committee Officer provided an update on the current status of the outstanding 
review and asked members to note the current position. 
  
1. LRB 598 

  
  

The LRB noted that the review had been 
deferred to allow the LRB to follow further 
procedure by way of seeking additional 
information, namely to seek further 
information from the applicant as to the 
reasons for seeking a variation of a 
condition. 
A response had been provided by the 
applicant’s agent, and had been forwarded 
to the Planning Service for comment. The 
Planning Service had provided their 
comments and this had been forwarded to 
the applicant’s agent for comment.  
The review was on the agenda for the 22 
March 2024 meeting. 

  
The Local Review Body agreed to note the update provided. 
 

6 LRB 598 - NOTICE OF REVIEW AGAINST CONDITIONS APPLIED TO FULL 
PLANNING PERMISSION FOR CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO FORM 

EXTENSION TO EXISTING CARAVAN SITE AND AMENDED LAYOUT TO 
INCLUDE ADDITIONAL STANCES AT CARAVAN SITE, EASTER CUSHNIE, 

BANFF, AB45 3HT - REFERENCE APP/2023/1465 
 
Local Review Body: Councillors D Lonchay (Chair), I Davidson, J Goodhall, C 
Simpson and C Victor. 
  

Page 5
Item 3



 

 

With reference to the minute of the Local Review Body meeting of 26 January 2024 
(Item 9), where the Local Review Body had agreed to defer consideration of the 
Notice of Review, to allow them to follow further procedure by way of seeking further 
information, namely to request further information from the applicant as to the reasons 
for seeking the variation of the condition. 
 
The Local Review Body had before them the additional information requested, as 
presented on pages 19 to 22 of the agenda pack, which included the information 
provided by the Agent addressing the issue and a response from the Planning 
Service. 
 
The Local Review Body then resumed consideration of the Notice of Review, which 
sought a review against Condition 4 applied to the planning permission for Full 
Planning Permission for Change of Use of Land to Form Extension to Existing 
Caravan Site and Amended Layout to include additional stances at Caravan Site, 
Easter Cushnie, Banff, AB45 3HT - Reference : APP/2023/1465.   
  
The Planning Adviser introduced the Notice of Review and provided the Local Review 
Body with an overview of the application as presented at the initial meeting on 26 
January 2024, and a recap of the conditions imposed on the Planning Permission 
granted on 5 October 2023, namely: 

1.             In accordance with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended) this planning permission will lapse on the expiration of a 
period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the 
development is begun within that period. 

Reason: Pursuant to Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997 (as amended). 

2.             At no time should more than 23 caravans remain on the site hereby approved. 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area. 

3.             No caravan shall remain on the site hereby approved between 1 February  and 
1 March in any one year. 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and to ensure proper 
control of the use of the site and to prevent establishment of permanent 
residency. 

4.             Throughout the life of the proposal hereby approved, the site shall not be used 
by any caravan for more than 28 consecutive days and there shall be no return 
during the following 30 days. 

Reason: To ensure proper control of the use of the site and to prevent 
establishment of permanent residency. 

5.             The site shall be connected to the public water supply as indicated in the 
submitted application and shall not be connected to a private water supply 
without the separate express grant of planning permission by the Planning 
Authority. 

Page 6
Item 3



 

 

Reason: To ensure the long term sustainability of the land use and the safety 
and welfare of the occupants and visitors to the site. 

Informative(s) 

( 1) Notice of the start of development: The person carrying out the development 
must give advance notice in writing to the planning authority of the date when it is 
intended to start the development.  Failure to do so is a breach of planning 
control and could result in the planning authority taking enforcement action. [See 
sections 27A and 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
(as amended)].  Such notification shall contain the information set out in the 
'Notification of Initiation of Development' Notice as appended. 

( 2) Notice of the completion of the development: As soon as possible after the 
development is finished, the person who completed the development must write 
to the planning authority to confirm that the development has been completed. 
[See section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended)].  Such notification shall contain the information set out in the 
'Notification of Completion of Development' Notice as appended. 

( 3) Where a private foul drainage solution is proposed, you will require separate 
consent from the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA).  Planning 
permission does not guarantee that approval will be given by SEPA and as such 
you are advised to contact them direct to discuss the matter. 

( 4) This planning permission has been granted on the basis that the proposed 
development will be connected to the public water supply. Should the developer 
wish to connect to a private water supply a fresh planning application would be 
required for the development to allow the planning authority to consider the 
implications of using a private water supply to service the development. 

  
The Planning Adviser advised that in response to the Procedure Notice seeking 
further information in relation to the review, the applicant’s agent had confirmed that 
the site was intended for motor homes and touring caravans only and that many 
customers would stay on a seasonal pitch for far longer than 28 days, maybe even up 
to six months over the summer period and many other local sites offered seasonal 
pitches and these can be allocated much earlier in the season, bringing in revenue to 
the business. In response to procedure notice and the information from the applicant, 
the planning service advised that condition four was applied in line with conditions that 
had been attached to the previous permission from 2017, and the main reason was to 
restrict the occupancy and the use of the site. However, it is noted that condition 3 
provided a safeguard against permanent residents on the site and therefore the 
planning service in this case would not contest the variation of the condition. The 
applicant was given an opportunity to comment on the comments, the planning 
service, but advised that it had nothing else to say as the planning service was not 
contesting varying the condition. 
  
In conclusion, the Planning Adviser confirmed that the options open to the LRB were 
to retain, to vary, or to remove the condition, and whether that would result in any 
detrimental impact or set any undesirable precedent. 
  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within the 
Local Development Plan 2023 were: B3: Tourist Facilities; R1: Special Rural Areas; 

Page 7
Item 3



 

 

R2: Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside; Policy P1: Layout, Siting 
and Design; E2: Landscape; and RD1: Providing Suitable Services. 
  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) were: Policy 4: Natural Places; Policy 14: 
Design, Quality and Place; Policy 18: Infrastructure First; Policy 22: Flood Risk and 
water management; Policy 29: Rural development; and Policy 30: Tourism. 
  
In response to questions raised, the Planning Adviser advised that the site was 
granted as a touring caravan site and there was no suggestion that mobile homes 
were intended to be sited, and further that the applicant was bound by licensing 
requirements and in taking a decision to vary or remove the condition, Members 
should consider if there would be any wider impact or precedent set. 
  
The Chair then asked the Local Review Body to consider whether there was sufficient 
information before them for members to consider the review without further 
procedure. The Local Review Body determined that they did have sufficient 
information before them and proceeded to determine the review. 
  
During discussion, the Local Review Body considered that the main determining 
issues for the review were the need and reasonableness of condition 4, the additional 
information from the applicant and the updated position of the Planning Service. The 
LRB was clear that its options were to uphold the Notice of Review by varying or 
removing condition 4, or dismissing it and retaining condition 4 as per the original 
decision. 
  
Members were generally of the view that due to the popularity of the NE250 route, 
caravan site owners were seeking to extend the season, and that other sites were 
offering seasonal pitches to customers. It was also noted that there were still 
mechanisms in place to ensure that sites were not being occupied permanently. 
  
After consideration, some Members felt the condition should be varied as requested 
by the applicant, others were of the view that the condition was not necessary and 
could be removed entirely. An initial motion to vary the condition, restricting caravans 
to stays of up to 6 months during the 11 month period of operation was not seconded 
and fell. An amending motion to remove the condition was thereafter put forward, 
leaving the Local Review Body to make a unanimous decision. 
  
After due consideration, the Local Review Body unanimously agreed to uphold the 
Notice of Review and remove condition 4 of the original planning decision on 
APP/2023/1465 and GRANT Full Planning Permission for the reason below and 
subject to the remaining conditions as set out below. 
  

1.    In accordance with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997 (as amended) this planning permission will lapse on the expiration 
of a period of three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the 
development is begun within that period. 
  
Reason: Pursuant to Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

  
2.    At no time should more than 23 caravans remain on the site hereby 

approved. 

Page 8
Item 3



 

 

  
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area. 

  
3.    No caravan shall remain on the site hereby approved between 1 February 

and 1 March in any one year. 
  
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and to ensure proper 
control of the use of the site and to prevent establishment of permanent 
residency. 

  
4.    The site shall be connected to the public water supply as indicated in the 

submitted application and shall not be connected to a private water supply 
without the separate express grant of planning permission by the Planning 
Authority. 
  
Reason: To ensure the long term sustainability of the land use and the 
safety and welfare of the occupants and visitors to the site. 

  
Reason: on the grounds that condition 3 is in place to prevent permanent residency 
within the site and to bring the site into alignment with other sites in the area. The 
proposed development would comply with Policy B3 of the Aberdeenshire Local 
Development Plan 2023 and Policy 30 of National Planning Framework 4. 
  
 

7 LRB 600 - NOTICE OF REVIEW AGAINST REFUSAL OF FULL PLANNING 
PERMISSION FOR ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE AT SITE AT BLAIKEWELL 

ANIMAL SANCTUARY, BLAIRS, ABERDEEN, AB12 5YX - REFERENCE: 
APP/2023/0783 

 
Local Review Body: Councillors D Lonchay (Chair), I Davidson, J Goodhall, R Menard 
and C Simpson. 
  
The Local Review Body had before them, a Notice of Review and supporting 
documents, submitted by the agent, which sought a review of the Appointed Officer’s 
decision to Refuse Full Planning Permission for the Erection of a Dwellinghouse at 
Site at Blaikiewell Animal Sanctuary, Blairs, Aberdeen, AB12 5YX – Reference 
APP/2023/0783. 
  
The Planning Adviser introduced the Notice of Review and provided the Local Review 
Body with the background to the applicant’s case, including a series of slides and 
photographs of the site and surrounding area. The issue of the proposed access was 
outlined, with it being confirmed that the Local Review Body should only consider the 
access to the north (U63k). 
  
The Local Review Body then considered the Appointed Officer’s reasons for refusal, 
namely: 
  
(1)    The Planning Authority considers that the application is for a development that is 

not in accordance with the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023 or 
National Planning Framework 4. The proposed development site does not 
represent an opportunity for a house in the countryside in line with the defined 
acceptable criteria for development of new housing as outlined in Policy R2: 
Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside, as the proposed 

Page 9
Item 3



 

 

dwellinghouse fails to meet any of the stipulated criteria, specifically that the 
proposed dwelling is not essential to support the efficient operation of a primary 
industry. Furthermore the proposed dwelling is also considered to be contrary to 
Policy 17 of NPF4: Rural housing, as the proposal fails to demonstrate that there 
is an essential need for a worker to live permanently at or near their place of 
work in support of a viable rural business. 

  
(2)    The proposed dwellinghouse is considered to be unsuitably sited, due to the 

isolated siting becoming a prominent feature which would have an 
unacceptable impact on the landscape character of the area by being poorly-
connected to the nearby building cluster around Blaikiewell farm. The proposal is 
thereby not considered to be in accordance with the requirements of Policies 4: 
Natural Places and 17: Rural homes of NPF4, and Policy E2: Landscape of the 
Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023. 

  
(3)    The proposal fails to adequately demonstrate that the site can be satisfactorily 

serviced in terms of surface and foul water drainage as no detailed foul or 
surface water drainage information has been submitted in support of the 
application. As such, it has not been possible to fully assess whether the 
proposed development can be delivered without having a negative environmental 
impact upon the surrounding area which would be contrary to stated waste water 
requirements of Policy RD1 Providing suitable services of the Aberdeenshire 
Local Development Plan 2023 and Policy 22: Flood Risk and Water Management 
of NPF4. 

  
The Planning Adviser confirmed that at the time the Planning Service wrote the report 
of handling the foul drainage details had not been submitted. Since that time the 
information had been provided and the matter had been resolved to the satisfaction of 
the Planning Service, so the reason for refusal related to lack of drainage details was 
no longer relevant. 
  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within the 
Local Development Plan 2023 were: Policy C1: Using Resources in Buildings; E2: 
Landscape; P4: Hazardous and Potentially Polluting Development and Contaminated 
Land; R2: Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside; RD1: Providing 
Suitable Services; and RD2: Developer Obligations. 
  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) were: Policy 3: Biodiversity; Policy 4: Natural 
Places; Policy 17: Rural Homes; Policy 22: Flood risk and water management; Policy 
23: Health and Safety. 
  
In response to questions raised, the Planning Adviser explained that the previous 
owner who had operated the sanctuary and a riding school with livery service for 
around 50 years had lived close to the sanctuary and the new owner was seeking a 
house on the site in order to maintain the sanctuary and to grow and reinstate the 
livery business and riding school. A business case had been made for a viable rural 
business by the applicant, although the Planning Service did not accept the need for a 
house on site to support it. It was confirmed that there was no other house within the 
landholding and that the proposed new dwelling would be occupied by the 
applicant/owner, rather than a worker. The definition of a ‘primary industry’ was also 
discussed. 
  

Page 10
Item 3



 

 

The Chair then asked the Local Review Body to consider whether there was sufficient 
information before them for members to consider the review without further procedure.  
  
The Local Review Body considered that the main determining issues for the review, as 
presented before them related to whether there was sufficient justification for a 
dwelling house to support the activities outlined at the animal sanctuary, whether the 
proposed siting and the distance from the sanctuary buildings appropriate and are 
there any other material considerations or any reason to depart from the development 
plan. 
  
During discussion, Members discussed whether or not the business should be 
considered a primary industry, and if so whether it was reasonable to consider 
allowing a house. Members were of a general view that there was sufficient 
justification for residential accommodation to be provided based on the need to be on 
site to care for and have oversight of the animals, however the proposed siting away 
from the ‘hub’ was not considered to be appropriate and could not be supported. 

Thereafter, The Local Review Body agreed unanimously to DISMISS the Notice of 
Review and to uphold the Appointed Officer’s decision to REFUSE Full Planning 
Permission, on the basis of reason 2 in the decision notice dated 17 October 2023, 
namely: 

The proposed dwellinghouse is considered to be unsuitably sited, due to the isolated 
siting becoming a prominent feature which would have an unacceptable impact on the 
landscape character of the area by being poorly connected to the nearby building 
cluster around Blaikiewell farm. The proposal is therefore not considered to be in 
accordance with the requirements of Policies 4: Natural Places and 17: Rural homes 
of NPF4, and Policy E2: Landscape of the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 
2023. 

 
8 LRB 603 - NOTICE OF REVIEW AGAINST REFUSAL OF FULL PLANNING 

PERMISSION FOR ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO DWELLINGHOUSE AND 
ERECTION OF BOUNDARY FENCE AT 6 PITTULIE, SANDHAVEN, 

FRASERBURGH, AB43 7EU - REFERENCE: APP/2022/2577. 
 
Local Review Body: Councillors D Lonchay (Chair), I Davidson, J Goodhall, C 
Simpson and C Victor. 
  
The Local Review Body had before them, a Notice of Review and supporting 
documents, submitted by the agent, which sought a review of the Appointed Officer’s 
decision to Refuse Full Planning Permission for Alterations and Extension to 
Dwellinghouse and Erection of Boundary Fence at 6 Pittulie, Sandhaven, Fraserburgh, 
AB43 7EU – Reference: APP/2022/2577. 
  
The Planning Adviser introduced the Notice of Review and advised the Local Review 
Body that in terms of review procedure, the applicant had suggested the Local Review 
Body would benefit from a hearing session and a site visit in order to determine the 
review. The Planning Adviser then provided the Local Review Body with the 
background to the applicant’s case and a series of slides and photographs of the site 
and surrounding area, relevant development plan policies, the review and key 
planning issues with reference to submitted plans and other images. Additional 
information was available to Members in the agenda pack. 

Page 11
Item 3



 

 

  
The Local Review Body then considered the Appointed Officer’s reason for refusal, 
namely: 
  

(1)  The application does not comply with the Aberdeenshire Local Development 
Plan 2023 and National Planning Framework 4.  The proposed extension by 
reason of its design, flat roof and proposed materials does not respect the 
original design of the Category 'C' listed cottage, would undermine the historic 
significance, character and appearance of the listed cottage.  It therefore does 
not comply with LDP2023 Policy HE1 Protecting Listed Buildings, Scheduled 
Monuments and Archaeological Sites (including other historic buildings) and 
Policy P1 Layout, Siting and Design, Policy P3 Infill and Householder 
Developments Within Settlements and Householder Developments  (Including 
Home and Work Proposals)and NPF4 Policy 7 Historic assets and places, 
Policy 14 Design, quality and place and Policy 16 Quality homes. 

  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within the 
Local Development Plan 2023 were: C4: Flooding; P1: Layout, Siting and Design; P3: 
Infill Developments with Settlements and Householder Development; and HE1: 
Protecting Historic Buildings, Sites and Monuments. 
  
The Local Review Body considered that the relevant policies, as contained within 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) were: Policy 7: Historic Assets and Places; 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place; Policy 16: Quality Homes; and Policy 22: 
Flooding Risk and Water Management. 
  
In response to questions raised, the Planning Adviser confirmed his understanding of 
why a more traditional pitched roof had not been proposed, that the site was not within 
a Conservation Area and that he had not observed the same type of cladding used 
within Pittulie during his visit. In the Adviser’s opinion, even if there were examples of 
unsympathetic extensions and development locally, these would not justify a repetition 
in new applications. It was confirmed that the tandem Listed Building 
Consent, that had also been refused had not been appealed within the necessary 
period, meaning this development could not lawfully be built without such a 
consent. 
  
The Chair then asked the Local Review Body to consider whether there was sufficient 
information before them for members to consider the review without further procedure.  
  
The LRB gave consideration as to whether a site inspection, a hearing or further 
information would be helpful. One Member was of the view that a site visit should take 
place. Following a vote (4:1) the LRB agreed they had sufficient information before 
them to proceed to determine the Notice of Review.  
  
The Local Review Body considered that the main determining issues for the review, as 
presented before them  was the suitability of the proposed design and materials of the 
mansard extension and detrimental impact on the building and wider area perceived 
by the Planning Service, which the applicant disputed.  
  
The LRB gave consideration to the case set out by the applicant. One Member felt 
that the review should be dismissed as, although the need to extend and improve 
homes 
was understood, this scheme was inappropriate for the Listed Building. An alternative 

Page 12
Item 3



 

 

viewpoint was put that the proposed extension would not be detrimental to the 
existing building and that the review should be upheld with a condition 
requiring an alternative material to the cedral 
cladding applied. 
  
Thereafter, Councillor Davidson moved, seconded by the Chair to DISMISS the Notice 
of Review and uphold the Appointed Officer’s decision to REFUSE Full Planning 
Permission for the reasons contained within the decision notice dated 30 June 2023, 
on the basis that the proposed development would be contrary to the Development 
Plan, specifically, Policies HE1, P1 and P3 of ALDP 2023 and Policies 7, 14 and 16 of 
NPF4 due to the proposed extension by reason of its design, flat roof and proposed 
materials does not respect the original design of the Category 'C' listed cottage and 
would undermine the historic significance, character and appearance of the listed 
cottage. 
 
As an amendment, Councillor Victor, seconded by Councillor Goodhall, moved that 
the Local Review Body should uphold the Notice of Review and reverse the Appointed 
Officer’s decision on the grounds that the proposal would comply with Policies P1 of 
ALDP and P16 of NPF4 and subject to a planning condition to require alternative 
appropriate external cladding materials to the satisfaction of the Planning Service. 
  
The Members of the Local Review Body then voted: 
  
      
For the motion 3 Councillors Lonchay, Davidson and Simpson 
      
For the amendment 2 Councillors Goodhall and Victor 
  
  

    

  
The motion was duly carried and the Local Review Body agreed to DISMISS the 
Notice of Review and uphold the Appointed Officer’s decision to REFUSE Full 
Planning Permission for the reasons contained within the decision notice dated 30 
June 2023, on the basis that the application does not comply with the Aberdeenshire 
Local Development Plan 2023 and National Planning Framework 4. The proposed 
extension by reason of its design, flat roof and proposed materials does not respect 
the original design of the Category ‘C’ listed cottage, would undermine the historic 
significance, character and appearance of the listed cottage. It therefore does not 
comply with LDP2023 Policy HE1 Protecting Listed Buildings, Scheduled Monuments 
and Archaeological Sites (including other historic buildings) and Policy P1 Layout, 
Siting and Design, Policy P3 Infill and Householder Developments within Settlements 
and Householder Developments (including Home and Work Proposals) and NPF4 
Policy 7 Historic assets and places, Policy 14 Design, quality and place and Policy 16 
Quality homes. 
  
 
 

Page 13
Item 3



Local Review Body Meeting 26 April 2024

LRB 
604

LRB 
605

Policy B1 Town Centre Development ✓

Policy B3 Tourist Facilities

Policy C1 Using Resources in Buildings ✓ ✓

Policy C2 Renewable Energy

Policy C4 Flooding ✓

Policy E1 Natural Heritage ✓

Policy E2 Landscape ✓

Policy E3 Forestry and Woodland ✓

Policy P1 Layout, Siting and Design ✓ ✓

Policy P2 Open Space and Access to New Development

Policy P3 Infill Developments with Settlements and Householder Developments

Policy P4 Hazardous and Potentially Polluting Development and Contaminated Land ✓

Policy P6 Community Facilities and Public Amenities ✓

Policy PR1 Protecting Important Resources ✓

Policy PR3 Reuse, Recycling and Waste

Policy H1 Housing Land

Policy H2 Affordable Housing

Policy HE1 Protecting Historic Buildings, Sites and Monuments

Policy HE2 Protecting Historic, Cultural and Conservation Areas

Policy R1 Special Rural Areas ✓

Policy R2 Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside ✓ ✓

Policy RD1 Providing Suitable Services ✓ ✓

Policy RD2 Developer Obligations ✓ ✓

Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023

Please use link below to access Policies noted below:-

https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/plans-and-policies/ldp-2023/

P
age 14

Item
 4

https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/plans-and-policies/pldp-2020/proposed-local-development-plan-2020/
https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/plans-and-policies/ldp-2023/


Local Review Body Meeting 26 April 2024

LRB 
604

LRB 
605

Policy 1 Sustainable Plaes ✓

Policy 2 Climate Change and Mitigation ✓

Policy 3 Biodiversity ✓ ✓

Policy 4 Natural Places ✓

Policy 5 Soils

Policy 6 Woodland and Trees ✓

Policy 7 Historic Assets and Places

Policy 8 Green Belts

Policy 9 Brownfield Vacant and Derelict Land and Empty Buildings

Policy 10 Coastal Development

Policy 11 Energy ✓

Policy 12 Zero Waste

Policy 13 Sustainable Transport ✓

Policy 14 Design, Quality and Place ✓

Policy 15 Local Living and 20 Minute Neighbourhoods ✓

Policy 16 Quality Homes

Policy 17 Rural Homes ✓ ✓

Policy 18 Infrastructure First ✓ ✓

Policy 19 Heating and Cooling

Policy 20 Blue and Green Infrastructure

Policy 21 Play Recreation and Sport

Policy 22 Flooding Risk and Water Management ✓

Policy 23 Health and Safety ✓

Policy 24 Digital Infrastructure

Policy 25 Community and Wealth Building

Policy 26 Business and Industry

Policy 27 City Town Local and Commercial Centres

Policy 28 Retail

Policy 29 Rural Development ✓

Policy 30 Tourism

Policy 31 Culture and Creativity

Policy 32 Aquaculture

Policy 33 Minerals

https://www.gov.scot/publications/national-planning-framework-4/

Productive Places

Sustainable Places

Liveable Places

National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4)

Please use link below to access Policies noted below:-

Page 15
Item 4

https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/plans-and-policies/pldp-2020/proposed-local-development-plan-2020/
https://www.gov.scot/publications/national-planning-framework-4/


#$%&'(')*'+

#$%&'()*+,"-.)+/$%,0(1.,2+(*%/13%*,"456,789,,:%;<,=>?@A,B5?555,,C'1$;<,D;1**$*E(*;$*%F1G%-.%%*H/$-%IE(3I)J,

"DD;$K1+$(*H,K1**(+,G%,31;$.1+%.,)*+$;,1;;,+/%,*%K%HH1-L,.(K)'%*+1+$(*,/1H,G%%*,H)G'$++%.,1*.,+/%,-%M)$-%.,N%%,/1H,G%%*,D1$.I

:/1*J,L(),N(-,K('D;%+$*E,+/$H,1DD;$K1+$(*,N(-'<

OPQRPC,0CSC0CPTC >==>>B7B6U==5

:/%,(*;$*%,-%N%-%*K%,$H,+/%,)*$M)%,-%N%-%*K%,N(-,L()-,(*;$*%,N(-',(*;LI,:/%,,V;1**$*E,")+/(-$+L,&$;;,1;;(K1+%,1*,"DD;$K1+$(*,P)'G%-,&/%*,
L()-,N(-',$H,31;$.1+%.I,V;%1H%,M)(+%,+/$H,-%N%-%*K%,$N,L(),*%%.,+(,K(*+1K+,+/%,D;1**$*E,")+/(-$+L,1G()+,+/$H,1DD;$K1+$(*I

"##$%&'()*+,*"-.()*/.)'%$0

"-%,L(),1*,1DD;$K1*+,(-,1*,1E%*+W,X,Y"*,1E%*+,$H,1*,1-K/$+%K+Z,K(*H);+1*+,(-,H('%(*%,%;H%,1K+$*E

(*,G%/1;N,(N,+/%,1DD;$K1*+,$*,K(**%K+$(*,&$+/,+/$H,1DD;$K1+$(*[ #,"DD;$K1*+,,$"E%*+

"-.()*/.)'%$0

V;%1H%,%*+%-,"E%*+,.%+1$;H

T('D1*L\O-E1*$H1+$(*<

0%NI,P)'G%-< ](),')H+,%*+%-,1,4)$;.$*E,P1'%,(-,P)'G%-Z,(-,G(+/<,X

S$-H+,P1'%<,X 4)$;.$*E,P1'%<

Q1H+,P1'%<,X , 4)$;.$*E,P)'G%-<

"..-%HH,>
:%;%D/(*%,P)'G%-<,X Y2+-%%+[<,X

C^+%*H$(*,P)'G%-< "..-%HH,7<

_(G$;%,P)'G%-< :(&*\T$+L<,X

S1^,P)'G%-< T()*+-L<,X

V(H+K(.%<,X

C'1$;,"..-%HH<,X

RH,+/%,1DD;$K1*+,1*,$*.$3$.)1;,(-,1*,(-E1*$H1+$(*\K(-D(-1+%,%*+$+LW,X

$,,R*.$3$.)1;,,#,,O-E1*$H1+$(*\T(-D(-1+%,%*+$+L

R*HD$-%.,8%H$E*,`,8%3%;(D'%*+,Q+.

a1-L

4;1KJ

C31*,2+-%%+

7A

=>B@6,A@?>b5

"456,7C9

2K(+;1*.

2+(*%/13%*

$..1DD;$K1+$(*HFE'1$;IK('

Page 16
Item 5



#$%&',')*'+

"##$%&'()*/.)'%$0

V;%1H%,%*+%-,"DD;$K1*+,.%+1$;H

:$+;%< ](),')H+,%*+%-,1,4)$;.$*E,P1'%,(-,P)'G%-Z,(-,G(+/<,X

O+/%-,:$+;%< 4)$;.$*E,P1'%<

S$-H+,P1'%<,X 4)$;.$*E,P)'G%-<

"..-%HH,>
Q1H+,P1'%<,X Y2+-%%+[<,X

T('D1*L\O-E1*$H1+$(* "..-%HH,7<

:%;%D/(*%,P)'G%-<,X :(&*\T$+L<,X

C^+%*H$(*,P)'G%-< T()*+-L<,X

_(G$;%,P)'G%-< V(H+K(.%<,X

S1^,P)'G%-<

C'1$;,"..-%HH<,X

1%).*"22,.00*/.)'%$0

V;1**$*E,")+/(-$+L<,

S);;,D(H+1;,1..-%HH,(N,+/%,H$+%,Y$*K;).$*E,D(H+K(.%,&/%-%,131$;1G;%[<

"..-%HH,><, ,

"..-%HH,7<

"..-%HH,5<

"..-%HH,?<

"..-%HH,B<

:(&*\T$+L\2%++;%'%*+<

V(H+,T(.%<

V;%1H%,$.%*+$NL\.%HK-$G%,+/%,;(K1+$(*,(N,+/%,H$+%,(-,H$+%H

P(-+/$*E C1H+$*E

_-H

Q$*.1

"G%-.%%*H/$-%,T()*K$;

V$-$% c)'%,2M)1-%

6

"456,b"P

d*$+%.,e$*E.('

A6BAb=

2+(*%/13%*

5bA7=B

T/1D%;+(*,(N,C;H$KJ

Page 17
Item 5



#$%&'-')*'+

/.0&,%#)%+(*+3*4,+#+0'$

V;%1H%,D-(3$.%,1,.%HK-$D+$(*,(N,L()-,D-(D(H1;,+(,&/$K/,L()-,-%3$%&,-%;1+%HI,:/%,.%HK-$D+$(*,H/();.,G%,+/%,H1'%,1H,E$3%*,$*,+/%,

1DD;$K1+$(*,N(-'Z,(-,1H,1'%*.%.,&$+/,+/%,1E-%%'%*+,(N,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+L<,X

Y_1^,B==,K/1-1K+%-H[

56#.*+3*"##$%&')%+(

f/1+,+LD%,(N,1DD;$K1+$(*,.$.,L(),H)G'$+,+(,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+LW,X

$,,"DD;$K1+$(*,N(-,D;1**$*E,D%-'$HH$(*,Y$*K;).$*E,/()H%/(;.%-,1DD;$K1+$(*,G)+,%^K;).$*E,1DD;$K1+$(*,+(,&(-J,'$*%-1;H[I

#,,"DD;$K1+$(*,N(-,D;1**$*E,D%-'$HH$(*,$*,D-$*K$D;%I

#,,S)-+/%-,1DD;$K1+$(*I

#,,"DD;$K1+$(*,N(-,1DD-(31;,(N,'1++%-H,HD%K$N$%.,$*,K(*.$+$(*HI

f/1+,.(%H,L()-,-%3$%&,-%;1+%,+(W,X

$,,0%N)H1;,P(+$K%I

#,a-1*+,(N,D%-'$HH$(*,&$+/,T(*.$+$(*H,$'D(H%.I

#,,P(,.%K$H$(*,-%1K/%.,&$+/$*,+/%,D-%HK-$G%.,D%-$(.,Y+&(,'(*+/H,1N+%-,31;$.1+$(*,.1+%,(-,1*L,1E-%%.,%^+%*H$(*[,g,.%%'%.,-%N)H1;I

1)').7.()*+3*,.'0+(0*3+,*0..8%(-*,.9%.:

](),')H+,H+1+%,$*,N);;Z,&/L,L(),1-%,1,H%%J$*E,1,-%3$%&,(N,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+LhH,.%K$H$(*,Y(-,N1$;)-%,+(,'1J%,1,.%K$H$(*[I,]()-,H+1+%'%*+,
')H+,H%+,()+,1;;,'1++%-H,L(),K(*H$.%-,-%M)$-%,,+(,G%,+1J%*,$*+(,1KK()*+,$*,.%+%-'$*$*E,L()-,-%3$%&I,RN,*%K%HH1-L,+/$H,K1*,G%,D-(3$.%.,1H,1,
H%D1-1+%,.(K)'%*+,$*,+/%,i2)DD(-+$*E,8(K)'%*+Hh,H%K+$(*<,X,,Y_1^,B==,K/1-1K+%-H[

P(+%<,L(),1-%,)*;$J%;L,+(,/13%,1,N)-+/%-,(DD(-+)*$+L,+(,1..,+(,L()-,H+1+%'%*+,(N,1DD%1;,1+,1,;1+%-,.1+%Z,H(,$+,$H,%HH%*+$1;,+/1+,L(),D-(.)K%,
1;;,(N,+/%,$*N(-'1+$(*,L(),&1*+,+/%,.%K$H$(*U'1J%-,+(,+1J%,$*+(,1KK()*+I

](),H/();.,*(+,/(&%3%-,-1$H%,1*L,*%&,'1++%-,&/$K/,&1H,*(+,G%N(-%,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+L,1+,+/%,+$'%,$+,.%K$.%.,L()-,1DD;$K1+$(*,Y(-,1+,
+/%,+$'%,%^D$-L,(N,+/%,D%-$(.,(N,.%+%-'$*1+$(*[Z,)*;%HH,L(),K1*,.%'(*H+-1+%,+/1+,+/%,*%&,'1++%-,K();.,*(+,/13%,G%%*,-1$H%.,G%N(-%,+/1+,
+$'%,(-,+/1+,$+,*(+,G%$*E,-1$H%.,G%N(-%,+/1+,+$'%,$H,1,K(*H%M)%*K%,(N,%^K%D+$(*1;,K$-K)'H+1*K%HI

c13%,L(),-1$H%.,1*L,'1++%-H,&/$K/,&%-%,*(+,G%N(-%,+/%,1DD($*+%.,(NN$K%-,,1+,+/%,+$'%,+/% #,]%H,,$,P(

8%+%-'$*1+$(*,(*,L()-,1DD;$K1+$(*,&1H,'1.%W,X

RN,L%HZ,L(),H/();.,%^D;1$*,$*,+/%,G(^,G%;(&Z,&/L,L(),1-%,-1$H$*E,+/%,*%&,'1++%-Z,&/L,$+,&1H,*(+,-1$H%.,&$+/,+/%,1DD($*+%.,(NN$K%-,G%N(-%,
L()-,1DD;$K1+$(*,&1H,.%+%-'$*%.,1*.,&/L,L(),K(*H$.%-,$+,H/();.,G%,K(*H$.%-%.,$*,L()-,-%3$%&<,X,Y_1^,B==,K/1-1K+%-H[

S);;,V;1**$*E,V%-'$HH$(*,N(-,C-%K+$(*,(N,T/$;.-%*jH,81L,T1-%,P)-H%-L,YT;1HH,>=,P(*U0%H$.%*+$1;,R*H+$+)+$(*H[Z,C-%K+$(*,(N,

T/$;.-%*jH,f(-JH/(DZ,S(-'1+$(*,(N,f$;.;$N%,V(*.,1*.,C-%K+$(*,(N,8&%;;$*E/()H%,Y0%*%&1;,(N,V;1**$*E,V%-'$HH$(*,

"VV\7=>b\>7A6[,1+,Q1*.,".k1K%*+,+(,0(+/*$KJ,T-(N+Z,P%+/%-;%LZ,2+(*%/13%*Z,"456,59d

2%%,H)DD(-+$*E,H+1+%'%*+

Page 18
Item 5



#$%&'.')*'+

V;%1H%,D-(3$.%,1,;$H+,(N,1;;,H)DD(-+$*E,.(K)'%*+HZ,'1+%-$1;H,1*.,%3$.%*K%,&/$K/,L(),&$H/,+(,H)G'$+,&$+/,L()-,*(+$K%,(N,-%3$%&,1*.,$*+%*.,
+(,-%;L,(*,$*,H)DD(-+,(N,L()-,-%3$%&I,](),K1*,1++1K/,+/%H%,.(K)'%*+H,%;%K+-(*$K1;;L,;1+%-,$*,+/%,D-(K%HH<,X,Y_1^,B==,K/1-1K+%-H[

"##$%&')%+(*/.)'%$0

V;%1H%,D-(3$.%,+/%,1DD;$K1+$(*,-%N%-%*K%,*(I,E$3%*,+(,L(),GL,L()-,D;1**$*E,
1)+/(-$+L,N(-,L()-,D-%3$()H,1DD;$K1+$(*I

f/1+,.1+%,&1H,+/%,1DD;$K1+$(*,H)G'$++%.,+(,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+LW,X

f/1+,.1+%,&1H,+/%,.%K$H$(*,$HH)%.,GL,+/%,D;1**$*E,1)+/(-$+LW,X

;.9%.:*4,+&.2<,.

:/%,Q(K1;,0%3$%&,4(.L,&$;;,.%K$.%,(*,+/%,D-(K%.)-%,+(,G%,)H%.,+(,.%+%-'$*%,L()-,-%3$%&,1*.,'1L,1+,1*L,+$'%,.)-$*E,+/%,-%3$%&,
D-(K%HH,-%M)$-%,+/1+,N)-+/%-,$*N(-'1+$(*,(-,-%D-%H%*+1+$(*H,G%,'1.%,+(,%*1G;%,+/%',+(,.%+%-'$*%,+/%,-%3$%&I,S)-+/%-,$*N(-'1+$(*,'1L,G%,
-%M)$-%.,GL,(*%,(-,1,K('G$*1+$(*,(N,D-(K%.)-%HZ,H)K/,1H<,&-$++%*,H)G'$HH$(*Hl,+/%,/(;.$*E,(N,(*%,(-,'(-%,/%1-$*E,H%HH$(*H,1*.\(-,
$*HD%K+$*E,+/%,;1*.,&/$K/,$H,+/%,H)Gk%K+,(N,+/%,-%3$%&,K1H%I

T1*,+/$H,-%3$%&,K(*+$*)%,+(,1,K(*K;)H$(*Z,$*,L()-,(D$*$(*Z,G1H%.,(*,1,-%3$%&,(N,+/%,-%;%31*+,$*N(-'1+$(*,D-(3$.%.,GL,L()-H%;N,1*.,(+/%-,
D1-+$%H,(*;LZ,,&$+/()+,1*L,N)-+/%-,D-(K%.)-%HW,S(-,%^1'D;%Z,&-$++%*,H)G'$HH$(*Z,/%1-$*E,H%HH$(*Z,H$+%,$*HD%K+$(*I,X

$,]%H,,#,P(

R*,+/%,%3%*+,+/1+,+/%,Q(K1;,0%3$%&,4(.L,1DD($*+%.,+(,K(*H$.%-,L()-,1DD;$K1+$(*,.%K$.%H,+(,$*HD%K+,+/%,H$+%Z,$*,L()-,(D$*$(*<

T1*,+/%,H$+%,G%,K;%1-;L,H%%*,N-(',1,-(1.,(-,D)G;$K,;1*.W,X $,]%H,,#,P(

RH,$+,D(HH$G;%,N(-,+/%,H$+%,+(,G%,1KK%HH%.,H1N%;L,1*.,&$+/()+,G1--$%-H,+(,%*+-LW,X $,]%H,,#,,P(

=>.&8$%0)*?*"##$%&')%+(*3+,*@+)%&.*+3*;.9%.:

V;%1H%,K('D;%+%,+/%,N(;;(&$*E,K/%KJ;$H+,+(,'1J%,H)-%,,L(),/13%,D-(3$.%.,1;;,+/%,*%K%HH1-L,$*N(-'1+$(*,$*,H)DD(-+,(N,L()-,1DD%1;I,S1$;)-%,
+(,H)G'$+,1;;,+/$H,,$*N(-'1+$(*,'1L,-%H);+,$*,L()-,1DD%1;,,G%$*E,.%%'%.,$*31;$.I,

c13%,L(),D-(3$.%.,+/%,*1'%,1*.,1..-%HH,(N,+/%,1DD;$K1*+WI,,X $,]%H,,#,P(

c13%,L(),D-(3$.%.,+/%,.1+%,1*.,-%N%-%*K%,*)'G%-,(N,+/%,1DD;$K1+$(*,&/$K/,$H,+/%,H)Gk%K+,(N,+/$H $,]%H,,#,P(

-%3$%&W,X

RN,L(),1-%,+/%,1E%*+Z,1K+$*E,(*,G%/1;N,(N,+/%,1DD;$K1*+Z,/13%,L(),D-(3$.%.,.%+1$;H,(N,L()-,*1'% ,$,]%H,,#,P(,,#,P\"

1*.,1..-%HH,1*.,$*.$K1+%.,&/%+/%-,1*L,*(+$K%,(-,K(--%HD(*.%*K%,-%M)$-%.,$*,K(**%K+$(*,&$+/,+/%,
-%3$%&,H/();.,G%,H%*+,+(,L(),(-,+/%,1DD;$K1*+W,X

c13%,L(),D-(3$.%.,1,H+1+%'%*+,H%++$*E,()+,L()-,-%1H(*H,N(-,-%M)$-$*E,1,-%3$%&,1*.,GL,&/1+, $,]%H,,#,P(

D-(K%.)-%,Y(-,K('G$*1+$(*,(N,D-(K%.)-%H[,L(),&$H/,+/%,-%3$%&,+(,G%,K(*.)K+%.W,X

P(+%<,](),')H+,H+1+%Z,$*,N);;Z,&/L,L(),1-%,H%%J$*E,1,-%3$%&,(*,L()-,1DD;$K1+$(*I,]()-,H+1+%'%*+,')H+,H%+,()+,1;;,'1++%-H,L(),K(*H$.%-,
-%M)$-%,+(,G%,+1J%*,$*+(,1KK()*+,$*,.%+%-'$*$*E,L()-,-%3$%&I,](),'1L,*(+,/13%,1,N)-+/%-,(DD(-+)*$+L,+(,1..,+(,L()-,H+1+%'%*+,(N,-%3$%&,
1+,1,;1+%-,.1+%I,R+,$H,+/%-%N(-%,%HH%*+$1;,+/1+,L(),H)G'$+,&$+/,L()-,*(+$K%,(N,-%3$%&Z,1;;,*%K%HH1-L,$*N(-'1+$(*,1*.,%3$.%*K%,+/1+,L(),-%;L,
(*,1*.,&$H/,+/%,Q(K1;,0%3$%&,4(.L,+(,K(*H$.%-,1H,D1-+,(N,L()-,-%3$%&I

V;%1H%,1++1K/,1,K(DL,(N,1;;,.(K)'%*+HZ,'1+%-$1;,1*.,%3$.%*K%,&/$K/,L(),$*+%*.,+(,-%;L,(* $,]%H,,#,P(

Y%IEI,D;1*H,1*.,8-1&$*EH[,&/$K/,1-%,*(&,+/%,H)Gk%K+,(N,+/$H,-%3$%&,X

P(+%<,f/%-%,+/%,-%3$%&,-%;1+%H,+(,1,N)-+/%-,1DD;$K1+$(*,%IEI,-%*%&1;,(N,D;1**$*E,D%-'$HH$(*,(-,'(.$N$K1+$(*Z,31-$1+$(*,(-,-%'(31;,(N,1,
D;1**$*E,K(*.$+$(*,(-,&/%-%,$+,-%;1+%H,+(,1*,1DD;$K1+$(*,N(-,1DD-(31;,(N,'1++%-H,HD%K$N$%.,$*,K(*.$+$(*HZ,$+,$H,1.3$H1G;%,+(,D-(3$.%,+/%,
1DD;$K1+$(*,-%N%-%*K%,*)'G%-Z,1DD-(3%.,D;1*H,1*.,.%K$H$(*,*(+$K%,Y$N,1*L[,N-(',+/%,%1-;$%-,K(*H%*+I
,

>65U7=>A,Q04,T(3%-,Q%++%-,2(;$K$+(-,Q%++%-,V=>,V=7,V=5,V=?,V=B,V=@3>,V=A3>,V=b,V=6,V>>37,V>7

"VV\7=77\>b?B

=6\>>\7=75

7B\=b\7=77

Page 19
Item 5



#$%&'+')*'+

/.&$',.*?*@+)%&.*+3*;.9%.:

R\f%,+/%,1DD;$K1*+\1E%*+,K%-+$NL,+/1+,+/$H,$H,1*,1DD;$K1+$(*,N(-,-%3$%&,(*,+/%,E-()*.H,H+1+%.I

8%K;1-1+$(*,P1'%< _-,a1-L,4;1KJ

8%K;1-1+$(*,81+%< =B\=7\7=7?
,

Page 20
Item 5



#$%&%'()*+,-(.)'

#$%&%'()*+(,-* .//..0102

#$%&%'()*3-'4$5&65%7* 8$-465%7*%9*:%6;754<*+(6=$-*>57?-$@($6-7*(7?*

(''%45(6-?*?A-))57@*;%='-B

"??$-'' *

C%4()*"=6;%$56D* "E-$?--7';5$-*F%=745)

"&&)54(65%7*G7)57-*:-9-$-74-* .//..0102H//I

"&&)./(-.%0*1-(-2'

J%$, 4%,&)-6-

K(57*3-6(5)' 4%,&)-6-

F;-4<)5'6 4%,&)-6-

3-4)($(65%7 4%,&)-6-

L=&&%$657@*3%4=,-76(65%7 4%,&)-6-

8,(5)*+%65954(65%7 4%,&)-6-

"--(/34,0-*+,-(.)'

+%654-*%9*:-M5-A LD'6-, "N

C:O*F%M-$*C-66-$ "66(4;-? "N

L%)5456%$*C-66-$ "66(4;-? "N

#/. "66(4;-? ".

#/1 "66(4;-? ".

#/I "66(4;-? ".

#/N "66(4;-? ".

#/0 "66(4;-? ".

#/PM. "66(4;-? ".

#/QM. "66(4;-? ".

#/R "66(4;-? ".

#/2 "66(4;-? ".

#..M1 "66(4;-? ".

#.1 "66(4;-? ".

+%654-S%9S:-M5-AH1B&?9 "66(4;-? "/

"&&)54(65%7SL=,,($DB&?9 "66(4;-? "/

+%654-*%9*:-M5-AH//IBT,) "66(4;-? "/

Page 21
Item 5



Head of Legal and People 

Aberdeenshire Council 

Woodhill House 

Westburn Road 

Aberdeen 

AB16 5GB 

Design Studio, 

27 Evan Street, 

Stonehaven, 

AB39 2EQ 

Telephone: 01569 764183

Mobile: 07896 991328 

Email: mail@idd-ltd.co.uk

Web: www.idd-ltd.co.uk

Date:  19th December 2023

APP/2022/1845 Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care 
Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, 
Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning 
Permission APP/2018/1279) at Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, 
Stonehaven, AB39 3QU 

Dear Sirs, 

On behalf of our Client, Mrs Linda Pirie (herein referred to as jthe Applicantk), we write to 
notify the planning authority that the applicant requires them to review the case under 
Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.  

Application APP/2022/1845 was submitted on 25th August 2022 for the renewal of the 
previously approved planning application APP/2018/1279. Both applications were for the 
erection of a SXY\TbU^lc nursery facility, including an outdoor learning environment which 
would includes animals, a wildlife pond and the erection of a dwelling, intended for the 
manager of the nursery.  

The original application was approved, after a committee decision the 6th February 2019 
as the proposed rural site was considered acceptable for a rural nursery setting, whilst the 
nursery would offer social and economical benefits in the form of employment opportunity 
and the dwelling was important for animal husbandry reasons.  

Figure 1 - Extract from Decision Notice dated 6th February 2019 

Page 22
Item 5



Immediately upon the planning permission being approved the aggrieved neighbour 
interfered with the drains by excavating them. Beforehand, the drains had been fully 
operational and there had not been any flooding issues. Aberdeenshire Council flood team 
and SEPA both attended site prior to neighbours actions and witnessed the drains in full 
operation. However, since the actions of the neighbour, the drains have been blocked and 
the applicant has been denied access to inspect and repair the drains, as is their legal 
right. For this reason, the applicant has never been able to enact the original planning 
approval APP/2018/1279. 

Application APP/2022/1845 was for the renewal of the permission and did not propose to 
alter itls details. Prior to submitting this application, the process for renewal was discussed 
with a senior planner who advised that it was a simple process and a case of submitting 
the previously approved plans; there were no concerns raised at this time.  

The reason the renewal is required is due to an ongoing civil dispute between the 
Applicant, who owns the land, and the neighbour, who owns the adjacent land which the 
drainage solution would discharge via. The discharge arrangements are no different to the 
existing discharge arrangements in place and a servitude right exists for the applicant to 
access the drainage pipe running through the land. Despite this, a civil dispute occurred 
between the neighbouring land owner and the applicant, which has delayed the discharge 
of APP/2018/1279 Condition 1 and a start on site.   

Reasons for Refusal 
The new application (APP/2022/1845) was refused for three reasons: 

1. The application is considered by the Planning Authority to not comply with the 
Development Plan. The proposed nursery (Class 10 Use) is not well related to the 
population or in a town centre location, with no sequential justification provided for 
the siting and the location proposed is remote and not sustainably accessible by 
foot/cycle/public transport resulting in reliance upon the private car, being 
detrimental to the overarching sustainability targets and tackling the climate crisis, 
contrary to Policies 1 Tackling the climate and nature crisis, 2 Climate mitigation 
and adaptation, 13 Sustainable transport, 15 Local Living and 20 minute 
neighbourhoods and 29 Rural development of National Planning Framework 4, and 
Policies B1 Town Centre Development, R2 Development Proposals Elsewhere in 
the Countryside, P1 Layout, Siting and Design, P6 Community Facilities and Public 
Amenities and RD1 Providing Suitable Services of the Aberdeenshire Local 
Development Plan 2023. 

2. The proposed dwelling is not on a previously developed brownfield site and is not 
associated with a primary industry or viable rural business, and does not comply 
with Policy 17 Rural homes and 29 Rural development of National Planning 
Framework 4, or Policy R2 Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside of 
the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023. 

3. Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate a functional and 
deliverable drainage solution to serve the proposed development, resulting in 
concerns relating to the potential risk of surface water flooding to others and a 
failure to adequately manage all rain and surface water through a deliverable 
sustainable urban drainage system that is within the full control of the applicant, 
contrary to Policy 22 Flood risk and water management of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policy C4 Flooding and RD1 Providing Suitable Services of the 
Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023 

Page 23
Item 5



Below we have outlined our response to each of the reasons for refusal and the ground on 
which the applicant requires the Planning Authority to review the case.   

Reason 1 
The original decision, made by committee members, was to approve the application as itls 
rural location was necessary for a rural nursery which can offer outdoor learning 
experiences involving rural activities such as animal husbandry and wildlife projects. The 
applicant sees no reason why this original decision does not still stand under the current 
Local Development Plan as there has not ben a material change in policy wording nor itls 
objectives. Furthermore, they feel that as the application is for a renewal and extension to 
the original application, the original committee decision should be taken into account.  

In addition, the need for an outdoor, rural environment, is even more important now given 
the Scottish Governments current guidance requires outdoor learning experiences to be 
prioritised as part of their Nurseries Improvement Planning process. Learning in an 
outdoor environment as it SQ^ Y]`b_fU SXY\TbU^lc gU\\-being and development, creating 
more resilient individuals, more successful learners, more confident individuals, and more 
effective and sustainable contributors. 

Space to Grow Guidance: 
https://hub.careinspectorate.com/how-we-support-improvement/care-inspectorate-
programmes-and-publications/space-to-grow/

Out to Play Practical Guidance: 
https://www.gov.scot/publications/out-play-practical-guidance-creating-outdoor-play 
experiences-children/

Learning for Sustainability (Page 24 of the following document) 
https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/strategy 
plan/2023/06/target-2030-movement-people-planet-prosperity/documents/target-2030-
movement-people-planet-prosperity-scotlands-learning-sustainability-action-plan-2023-
2030/target-2030-movement-people-planet-prosperity-scotlands-learning-sustainability-
action-plan-2023-2030/govscot%3Adocument/target-2030-movement-people-planet-
prosperity-scotlands-learning-sustainability-action-plan-2023-2030.pdf

These documents are pertinent to high quality Early Learning and Childcare (ELC), 
including outdoor learning, being key to the future prosperity and sustainability. They 
highlight outdoor learning as a key objective and the aims of this development aligns with 
this national transition.  

The nursery will operate in such a way that the rural environment, the animals on site and 
the wildlife in the area will be central in the students learning. This is a learning experience 
which cannot be delivered in busy town centre locations where neighbouring land uses 
and users could have a detrimental impact. Learning outdoors, will emphasise the natural 
environment and lead to adults who can positively contribute to conservation of our rural 
areas and wildlife.  

Furthermore, The Croft Nurseries Ltd are also SQA approved training providers, one of 
very few in Aberdeenshire, delivering Early Learning and Childcare qualifications up to the 
equivalent of HND level to their workforce. This feeds into the Early Learning and 
Childcare sector which is currently struggling to have sufficient ELC qualified workers. 
Training their own staff is hugely beneficial to themselves, the community and the ELC 
sector. Additionally, Croft Nurseries Ltd are 1 of only 2 SQA approved centres in the UK 
who are approved to deliver the SQA Forest Kindergarten qualification. 

Page 24
Item 5



Therefore, it should be considered that by supporting a rural nursery, the Planning 
Authority are positively contributing to tackling the global climate and nature crisis, in line 
with the aims of Policy 1 of NPF4, whilst being consistent with previous Planning 
Permissions. Additionally, that their support would be of great benefit to local economies 
and communities in the way of employment and training associated with the Forest 
Kindergarten.  

Reason 2 
The previous decision approved the new dwelling as the nurseries plans for animal care 
required a person on site for the purposes of animal husbandry. Forest Kindergarten 
learning is a fully outdoor experience which immerses students in the environment and 
introduces them to animals and wildlife. The introduction to animals is key to students 
learning experience, ensuring they become diligent and effective rural contributors, more 
capable of sustainable impact on the environment.  

Therefore, animal care is essential to ensure the wellbeing of the animals and the delivery 
of the business plan. It is not possible to offer round the clock husbandry to animals whilst 
off-site, therefore it is essential that a managers dwelling is on site.  

There has not been a material change in policy wording or intent with the introduction of 
the new local development plan, therefore the essential nature of the dwelling should be 
accounted for, as it was by the original committee decision and their decision renewed.   

Reason 3 
As has previously been discussed, there is a legal dispute which is preventing the original 
application being enacted. Interference of the drain, by the neighbour, has impacted the 
drains function despite it being witnessed to be fully operational prior to such interference. 
The applicant is denied access, as is the legal right, to maintain and repair the drain.  

Nevertheless, the original decision included a condition 1: 

[No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence unless 
suitable evidence has been submitted and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority to 
demonstrate that the existing pipe infrastructure system, located within the field to the 
north of the application site, is functioning without fault. For the avoidance of doubt, 
evidence should be provided in the form of a CCTV survey or other method agreed in 
writing with the Planning Authority. If it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Authority that the existing system is functioning, the connection from the new development 
shall be carried out in accordance with approved drawing no. P11 Rev 02 and the Surface 
Water Disposal report by S.A. McGregor dated 03 September 2018. If faults within the 
existing system are encountered, the pipe section must be made good or replaced, and 
evidence submitted to demonstrate that the infrastructure is working correctly before 
receiving the new connection as part of the proposed developmentk

There has been no reasonable justification given why this condition cannot be applied to 
the renewed permission.  

The applicant is seeking, via legal means, access to the pipe which their title indicates they 
have a right to. They await a date for the court case to be heard, however, in the meantime 
access is being denied by the land-owner. As such, they have as yet been unable to 
discharge condition 1 fully, however intend to comply with the condition fully.   

Nevertheless, the presence of a civil dispute is out with the Planning Authorities scope of 
interest and should not impact their decision. This is confirmed in APP/2023/1331 

Page 25
Item 5



Installation of Gates and Fences, 15 Urie Crescent Stonehaven Aberdeenshire AB39 2DY 
where the committee report which reads: 

[These are civil and/or legal matters that are not a material planning consideration. For 
clarity the role of the Planning Authority is only to determine whether the principle of 
development is permissible. It is the responsibility of the applicant to obtain any relevant 
permission required regarding ownership or rights of access. The granting of planning 
consent, whilst allowing the principle of the development to take place, would not alter any 
established right of access\. 

Therefore, in this case the matter of right of access for drainage infrastructure is irrelevant 
to this planning application as the planning authority should be determining if the principle 
of the development is permissible. The renewing of planning permission in this case would 
not alter any established right of access.   

Given the above responses to each of the three reasons for refusal, we feel that there are 
reasonable grounds to believe that the application, as a renewal of APP/2018/1279, 
should be considered on the same merits as the original application taking into account the 
committeels recommendations at the time. Furthermore, that as the recent guidance 
issued by the Scottish ]Y^YcdUblc places high importance on outdoor learning 
environments, identifying their ability to positively impact on the development and success 
of our children, should be taken into account when assessing how the proposals could 
have a significant, positive social and environmental impact and help tackle the global 
climate and nature crisis. Lastly, the applicant believes that civil/legal matters pertaining to 
rights of access are not material planning considerations, as recent application 
determinations have evidenced.  

The applicant thanks the Local Review Body for their consideration of the proposals and 
would like to invite them to site, to discuss the development and business plans and to see 
for themselves how the proposals could have a positive impact.  

Should any further information be required in this regard, please do feel free to get in touch 
with us, on 01569 764183.  

Yours sincerely 

Ally Steel BSC (Hons) MRICS AaPS 
Operations Director 
For and on behalf of Inspired Design & Development Ltd

Page 26
Item 5



Regulated by RICS 

Architectural Services a Building Surveying 
Principal Designer - Domestic Energy Assessment  

Retrofit Assessor a Retrofit Coordinator 

Inspired design & development limited.  Registered in Scotland SC 370675.   

Registered office: Design Studio, 27 Evan Street, Stonehaven, AB39 3EQ.   

Page 27
Item 5



Page 28
Item 5



sufficient capacity to drain water from both Rothnick Croft and the proposed nursery 

development (supported by expert engineering opinion). Prior to 2018 and other than an 

incident in summer 2017 when the drain was temporarily blocked by a large stone, there 

were no issues with flooding in the field. In or about September 2018 work was carried out in 

the field which appears to have compromised the field drain. Since this time flooding has 

occurred. Unfortunately, our clients attempts to exercise their title rights to inspect and 

repair the tile drain, which would remove the flooding issue, have been unsuccessful as 

requests for access for this purpose have not met with a positive response. A further 

request for access by contractors was made in December 2023 but has not yet been 

responded to. In the event that access is prevented litigation on this point may be required.

We trust the above information is of assistance.

Yours faithfully

Nicola Brown

Director 

Blackadders LLP

Page 29
Item 5



838

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 @

 1
:5

0

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

1
0

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Proposed Ground Floor

A
1

Page 30
Item 5



F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 @

 1
:5

0

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

2
0

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Proposed First Floor Plan

A
1

Page 31
Item 5



R
O

T
H

N
I
C

K

N
U

R
S

E
R

Y

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7

 E
v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

ve
n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4
1
8
3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o
.u

k

Page 32
Item 5



E
N

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 @

 1
:5

0

E
N

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 @

 1
:5

0

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 A
A

 @
 1

:5
0

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

4
0

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Proposed Elevations and Sections

A
1

Page 33
Item 5



533

533

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 @

 1
:5

0

686

686

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
 @

 1
:5

0

H
W

C

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

5
0

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Proposed Floor Plans

A
1

Page 34
Item 5



Page 35
Item 5



S
E

C
T

IO
N

 B
B

 @
 1

:5
0 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

A
 @

 1
:5

0

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7

 E
v
a
n

 S
t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8
3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

7
1

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Proposed Sections

A
1

Page 36
Item 5



1
4

0
.0

0
0

m

1
4

0
.2

0
0

m

1
4

0
.4

0
0

m

1
4

0
.6

0
0

m

1
4

0
.8

0
0

m

1
4

1
.0

0
0

m

1
4

1
.2

0
0

m

1
4

1
.4

0
0

m

1
4

1
.6

0
0

m

1
4

1
.8

0
0

m

1
4

2
.0

0
0

m

1
4

2
.2

0
0

m

1
4

2
.4

0
0

m

1
4

2
.6

0
0

m

1
4

2
.8

0
0

m

1
4

3
.0

0
0

m

1
4

3
.2

0
0

m

1
4

3
.4

0
0

m

1
4

3
.6

0
0

m

1
4

3
.8

0
0

m

1
4

4
.0

0
0

m

1
4

4
.2

0
0

m

1
4

4
.4

0
0

m

1
4

4
.6

0
0

m

1
4

4
.8

0
0

m

1
4

5
.0

0
0

m

1
4

5
.2

0
0

m

1
4

5
.4

0
0

m

1
4

5
.6

0
0

m

1
4

5
.8

0
0

m

1
4

6
.0

0
0

m

1
4

6
.2

0
0

m

1
4

6
.4

0
0

m

1
4

6
.6

0
0

m

1
4

6
.8

0
0

m

1
4

0
.0

0
0

m

1
4

0
.2

0
0

m

1
4

0
.4

0
0

m

1
4

0
.6

0
0

m

1
4

0
.8

0
0

m

1
4

1
.0

0
0

m

1
4

1
.2

0
0

m

1
4

1
.4

0
0

m

1
4

1
.6

0
0

m

1
4

1
.8

0
0

m

1
4

2
.0

0
0

m

1
4

2
.2

0
0

m

1
4

2
.4

0
0

m

1
4

2
.6

0
0

m

1
4

2
.8

0
0

m

1
4

3
.0

0
0

m

1
4

3
.2

0
0

m

1
4

3
.4

0
0

m

1
4

3
.6

0
0

m

1
4

3
.8

0
0

m

1
4

4
.0

0
0

m

1
4

4
.2

0
0

m

1
4

4
.4

0
0

m

1
4

4
.6

0
0

m

1
4

4
.8

0
0

m

1
4

5
.0

0
0

m

1
4

5
.2

0
0

m

1
4

5
.4

0
0

m

1
4

5
.6

0
0

m

1
4

5
.8

0
0

m

1
4

6
.0

0
0

m

1
4

6
.2

0
0

m

1
4

6
.4

0
0

m

1
4

6
.6

0
0

m

1
4

6
.8

0
0

m

R
O

T
H

N
I
C

K

N
U

R
S

E
R

Y

1
4
0

.0
0

0
m

1
4
0

.2
0

0
m

1
4
0

.4
0

0
m

1
4
0

.6
0

0
m

1
4
0

.8
0

0
m

1
4
1

.0
0

0
m

1
4
1

.2
0

0
m

1
4
1

.4
0

0
m

1
4
1

.6
0

0
m

1
4
1

.8
0

0
m

1
4
2

.0
0

0
m

1
4
2

.2
0

0
m

1
4
2

.4
0

0
m

1
4
2

.6
0

0
m

1
4
2

.8
0

0
m

1
4
3

.0
0

0
m

1
4
3

.2
0

0
m

1
4
3

.4
0

0
m

1
4
3

.6
0

0
m

1
4
3

.8
0

0
m

1
4
4

.0
0

0
m

1
4
4

.2
0

0
m

1
4
4

.4
0

0
m

1
4
4

.6
0

0
m

1
4
4

.8
0

0
m

1
4
5

.0
0

0
m

1
4
5

.2
0

0
m

1
4
5

.4
0

0
m

1
4
5

.6
0

0
m

1
4
5

.8
0

0
m

1
4
6

.0
0

0
m

1
4
6

.2
0

0
m

1
4
6

.4
0

0
m

1
4
6

.6
0

0
m

1
4
6

.8
0

0
m

1
4
0

.0
0
0

m

1
4
0

.2
0
0

m

1
4
0

.4
0
0

m

1
4
0

.6
0
0

m

1
4
0

.8
0
0

m

1
4
1

.0
0
0

m

1
4
1

.2
0
0

m

1
4
1

.4
0
0

m

1
4
1

.6
0
0

m

1
4
1

.8
0
0

m

1
4
2

.0
0
0

m

1
4
2

.2
0
0

m

1
4
2

.4
0
0

m

1
4
2

.6
0
0

m

1
4
2

.8
0
0

m

1
4
3

.0
0
0

m

1
4
3

.2
0
0

m

1
4
3

.4
0
0

m

1
4
3

.6
0
0

m

1
4
3

.8
0
0

m

1
4
4

.0
0
0

m

1
4
4

.2
0
0

m

1
4
4

.4
0
0

m

1
4
4

.6
0
0

m

1
4
4

.8
0
0

m

1
4
5

.0
0
0

m

1
4
5

.2
0
0

m

1
4
5

.4
0
0

m

1
4
5

.6
0
0

m

1
4
5

.8
0
0

m

1
4
6

.0
0
0

m

1
4
6

.2
0
0

m

1
4
6

.4
0
0

m

1
4
6

.6
0
0

m

1
4
6

.8
0
0

m

1
4
0

.0
0

0
m

1
4
0

.2
0

0
m

1
4
0

.4
0

0
m

1
4
0

.6
0

0
m

1
4
0

.8
0

0
m

1
4
1

.0
0

0
m

1
4
1

.2
0

0
m

1
4
1

.4
0

0
m

1
4
1

.6
0

0
m

1
4
1

.8
0

0
m

1
4
2

.0
0

0
m

1
4
2

.2
0

0
m

1
4
2

.4
0

0
m

1
4
2

.6
0

0
m

1
4
2

.8
0

0
m

1
4
3

.0
0

0
m

1
4
3

.2
0

0
m

1
4
3

.4
0

0
m

1
4
3

.6
0

0
m

1
4
3

.8
0

0
m

1
4
4

.0
0

0
m

1
4
4

.2
0

0
m

1
4
4

.4
0

0
m

1
4
4

.6
0

0
m

1
4
4

.8
0

0
m

1
4
5

.0
0

0
m

1
4
5

.2
0

0
m

1
4
5

.4
0

0
m

1
4
5

.6
0

0
m

1
4
5

.8
0

0
m

1
4
6

.0
0

0
m

1
4
6

.2
0

0
m

1
4
6

.4
0

0
m

1
4
6

.6
0

0
m

1
4
6

.8
0

0
m

1
4
0

.0
0

0
m

1
4
0

.2
0

0
m

1
4
0

.4
0

0
m

1
4
0

.6
0

0
m

1
4
0

.8
0

0
m

1
4
1

.0
0

0
m

1
4
1

.2
0

0
m

1
4
1

.4
0

0
m

1
4
1

.6
0

0
m

1
4
1

.8
0

0
m

1
4
2

.0
0

0
m

1
4
2

.2
0

0
m

1
4
2

.4
0

0
m

1
4
2

.6
0

0
m

1
4
2

.8
0

0
m

1
4
3

.0
0

0
m

1
4
3

.2
0

0
m

1
4
3

.4
0

0
m

1
4
3

.6
0

0
m

1
4
3

.8
0

0
m

1
4
4

.0
0

0
m

1
4
4

.2
0

0
m

1
4
4

.4
0

0
m

1
4
4

.6
0

0
m

1
4
4

.8
0

0
m

1
4
5

.0
0

0
m

1
4
5

.2
0

0
m

1
4
5

.4
0

0
m

1
4
5

.6
0

0
m

1
4
5

.8
0

0
m

1
4
6

.0
0

0
m

1
4
6

.2
0

0
m

1
4
6

.4
0

0
m

1
4
6

.6
0

0
m

1
4
6

.8
0

0
m

1
4
0

.0
0
0
m

1
4
0

.2
0
0
m

1
4
0

.4
0
0
m

1
4
0

.6
0
0
m

1
4
0

.8
0
0
m

1
4
1

.0
0
0
m

1
4
1

.2
0
0
m

1
4
1

.4
0
0
m

1
4
1

.6
0
0
m

1
4
1

.8
0
0
m

1
4
2

.0
0
0
m

1
4
2

.2
0
0
m

1
4
2

.4
0
0
m

1
4
2

.6
0
0
m

1
4
2

.8
0
0
m

1
4
3

.0
0
0
m

1
4
3

.2
0
0
m

1
4
3

.4
0
0
m

1
4
3

.6
0
0
m

1
4
3

.8
0
0
m

1
4
4

.0
0
0
m

1
4
4

.2
0
0
m

1
4
4

.4
0
0
m

1
4
4

.6
0
0
m

1
4
4

.8
0
0
m

1
4
5

.0
0
0
m

1
4
5

.2
0
0
m

1
4
5

.4
0
0
m

1
4
5

.6
0
0
m

1
4
5

.8
0
0
m

1
4
6

.0
0
0
m

1
4
6

.2
0
0
m

1
4
6

.4
0
0
m

1
4
6

.6
0
0
m

1
4
6

.8
0
0
m

1
4
0
.0

0
0
m

1
4
0
.2

0
0
m

1
4
0
.4

0
0
m

1
4
0
.6

0
0
m

1
4
0
.8

0
0
m

1
4
1
.0

0
0
m

1
4
1
.2

0
0
m

1
4
1
.4

0
0
m

1
4
1
.6

0
0
m

1
4
1
.8

0
0
m

1
4
2
.0

0
0
m

1
4
2
.2

0
0
m

1
4
2
.4

0
0
m

1
4
2
.6

0
0
m

1
4
2
.8

0
0
m

1
4
3
.0

0
0
m

1
4
3
.2

0
0
m

1
4
3
.4

0
0
m

1
4
3
.6

0
0
m

1
4
3
.8

0
0
m

1
4
4
.0

0
0
m

1
4
4
.2

0
0
m

1
4
4
.4

0
0
m

1
4
4
.6

0
0
m

1
4
4
.8

0
0
m

1
4
5
.0

0
0
m

1
4
5
.2

0
0
m

1
4
5
.4

0
0
m

1
4
5
.6

0
0
m

1
4
5
.8

0
0
m

1
4
6
.0

0
0
m

1
4
6
.2

0
0
m

1
4
6
.4

0
0
m

1
4
6
.6

0
0
m

1
4
6
.8

0
0
m

E
x
is

tin
g

 G
ro

u
n

d
 L

e
v
e

l

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 G

ro
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

1
9

3
/2

0
1

7

P
0

8
0

Mrs. Linda Pirie

Nursery @ land adjacent to Rothnick Croft

Existing & Proposed Site Sections

A
1

E
x
is

tin
g

 S
e
c
tio

n
 A

A
 @

 1
:1

7
5

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

e
c
tio

n
 A

A
 @

 1
:1

7
5

E
x
is

tin
g

 S
e
c
tio

n
 B

B
 @

 1
:1

7
5

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 S

e
c
tio

n
 B

B
 @

 1
:1

7
5

E
x
is

tin
g
 S

e
c
tio

n
 C

C
 @

 1
:1

7
5

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

e
c
tio

n
 C

C
 @

 1
:1

7
5

E
x
is

tin
g
 S

e
c
tio

n
 D

D
 @

 1
:2

0
0

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 S

e
c
tio

n
 D

D
 @

 1
:2

0
0

Page 37
Item 5



R
o

th
n

ic
k

C
ro

ft

1
4
1

.8
m

A
re

a
 o

f E
x

is
tin

g

P
la

n
te

d
 T

rees

A
r
e

a
 o

f e
x

is
ting

w
ild

 G
ors

e

E
x

is
tin

g
 T

ree

E
x

is
tin

g
 T

ree

A
r
e
a

 o
f E

x
is

ting

P
la

n
te

d
 T

re
es

A
re

a
 o

f E
xis

tin
g
 P

la
n

te
d
 T

re
e
s

C
h

ild
re

n's

T
im

be
r

W
o

r
k
s

h
op

W
ild

life
 P

ond

V
e

g
e

ta
b

le

P
a

tc
h

C
h

ic
ke

n

C
o

op

R
o

th
n

ic
k

C
ro

ft

1
4

1
.8

m

N
D

e
s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7

 E
v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

ve
n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4
1
8
3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o
.u

k

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 P
la

n
 @

 1
:1

2
5
0

S
ite

 P
la

n
 @

 1
:5

0
0

Page 38
Item 5



R
o
th

n
ic

k
C

ro
ft

A
re

a
 o

f E
xistin

g

P
la

n
te

d
 T

re
e

s

A
re

a
 o

f e
x
is

tin
g

w
ild

 G
o

rs
e

E
x
is

tin
g
 T

re
e

E
x
istin

g
 T

re
e

A
re

a
 o

f E
x
istin

g

P
la

n
te

d
 T

re
e

s

A
re

a
 o

f E
x
is

tin
g

 P
la

n
te

d
 T

re
e
s

C
h
ild

re
n

's

T
im

b
e
r

W
o

rk
sh

o
p

W
ild

life
 P

o
n

d

V
e

g
e

ta
b
le

P
a

tc
h

C
h
ic

k
e
n

C
o

o
p

S
u
rfa

c
e

W
a
te

r
D

ra
in

a
g
e

L
in

e

to
S

u
rfa

c
e

W
a
te

r

P
o

n
d
/W

e
tla

n
d

In
s
ta

lla
tio

n
-

A
s

p
e
r

S
.A

.M
cG

re
g
o

r's
d
ra

in
a
g
e

rep
o
rt

2
1

9
3

/
1
8

-
3
rd

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
8

S
u
rfa

c
e

W
a

te
r

D
r a

in
a
g
e

L
in

e

F
o

u
l
W

a
te

r
D

ra
in

a
g
e

L
in

e

2
0
 P

O
P

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t P
la

n
t

3
8
m

 lo
n
g

 a
n
d
 5

m
 w

id
e
 g

ra
v
e
l track

 w
ith

 p
erfo

rated
 1

1
0
m

m

d
is

trib
u
tio

n
 p

ip
e
 w

ith
 2

0
 x

 1
2
m

 lo
n
g
 an

d
 0

.7
m

 w
id

e
 g

rav
el

sp
u

rs w
ith

 p
e
rfo

ra
te

d
 1

1
0
m

m
 d

istrib
u
tio

n
 p

ip
e
s

e
v
e
ry

 2
m

 - A
s p

er S
.A

.M
cG

re
g
o

r's d
ra

in
a
g
e
 re

p
o
rt 2

1
9
3

 / 1
8

- - 3
rd

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 2

0
1
8

W
h
e
re

 a
re

a
s
 o

f d
ra

in
a
g
e
/s

o
a
k
a
w

a
ys

 in
te

rru
p
t tre

e
 p

la
n
tin

g
,

th
e
s
e
 s

a
p
lin

g
s w

ill b
e
 ca

re
fu

lly
 re

m
o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

n
te

d
 lo

ca
lly

a
ro

u
n
d
 th

e
 site

.

W
a
s
te

 S
to

ra
g
e

&
 C

o
lle

ctio
n

P
o

in
t

2
5

 C
a
r P

a
rkin

g

S
p

a
ce

s
 F

o
r

N
u
rse

ry
 U

s
e
rs

5
 C

a
r P

a
rk

in
g

S
p

a
c
e

s F
o
r

D
w

e
llin

g
 -

In
clu

siv
e

 o
f

D
o
u

b
le

 G
a

ra
g
e

A
re

a
 o

f G
ra

s
s

V
e

rg
e

A
re

a
 o

f G
ra

ss

V
e

rg
e

E
x
istin

g

D
riv

e
w

a
y

E
n

tra
ce

D
ra

in
a

g
e

C
h
a

n
n
e

l to
 b

e

in
s
ta

lle
d

 p
rio

r to

b
u
ild

in
g
 fo

r th
e

c
a
r p

a
rk

 s
u

rfa
c
e

w
a

te
r ru

n
o

ff.

In
s
p
e

ctio
n
 c

h
a
m

b
e
r

In
s
p
e

ctio
n
 c

h
a
m

b
e

r

In
d
ic

a
tiv

e
 n

e
w

 s
u
rfa

c
e
 w

a
te

r

d
ra

in
a

g
e

 p
ip

e
 to

 b
e
 in

s
ta

lle
d

a
n
d

 c
o
n
n

e
c
te

d
 to

 th
e

 e
x
istin

g

d
is

c
h
a

rg
e

 p
ip

e
.F

lo
w

 w
ill b

e

re
s
tric

te
d

 b
y a

n
 o

rifa
c
e
 p

la
te

p
rio

r to
 e

n
te

rin
g
 1

1
0

m
m

 p
ip

e

E
x
is

tin
g

 R
o

th
n
ick

 C
ro

ft

H
o

u
s
e

 D
isc

h
a
rg

e
 to

a
d
ja

c
e
n

t w
a
te

rc
o
u
rse

N

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7
 E

v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

v
e

n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4

1
8

3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o

.u
k

S
ite

 P
la

n
 @

 1
:3

0
0

Page 39
Item 5



N

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

tu
d

io

2
7

 E
v
a

n
 S

t.

S
to

n
e

h
a

ve
n

A
B

3
9

 2
E

Q

T
e

l: 0
1

5
6

9
 7

6
4
1
8
3

m
a

il@
id

d
-ltd

.c
o
.u

k

Page 40
Item 5



Page 41
Item 5



Page 42
Item 5



Page 43
Item 5



Page 44
Item 5



Page 45
Item 5



Page 46
Item 5



Page 47
Item 5



Page 48
Item 5



Page 49
Item 5



Page 50
Item 5



Page 51
Item 5



Page 52
Item 5



Page 53
Item 5



Page 54
Item 5



Page 55
Item 5



Page 56
Item 5



Page 57
Item 5



Page 58
Item 5



Page 59
Item 5



Page 60
Item 5



Page 61
Item 5



Page 62
Item 5



Page 63
Item 5



Page 64
Item 5



Page 65
Item 5



Page 66
Item 5



Page 67
Item 5



Page 68
Item 5



Page 69
Item 5



Page 70
Item 5



Page 71
Item 5



Page 72
Item 5



Page 73
Item 5



Page 74
Item 5



Page 75
Item 5



Page 76
Item 5



Page 77
Item 5



Page 78
Item 5



Page 79
Item 5



Page 80
Item 5



Page 81
Item 5



Page 82
Item 5



Page 1 of 8

Viewmount Arduthie Road Stonehaven AB39 2DQ  Tel: 01467 534333  Email: planningonline@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100115259-002

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning authority for your previous application and the date that this 
was granted.

Application Reference No: *

Date (dd/mm/yyyy): *

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

 APP/2018/1279

Full planning permission for the erection of children's day care nursery's, erection of children's workshop, formation of wildlife 
pond and erection of dwelling house at land adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven, Aberdeenshire, AB39 3QU

06/02/2019

Page 83
Item 5



Page 2 of 8

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Inspired Design & Development Ltd

Mrs

Gary

Linda 

Black

Pirrie 

Evan Street

Evan Street 

27

37

01569 764183

AB39 2EQ

AB39 2EQ

Scotland

United Kingdom

Stonehaven

Stonehaven

iddapplications@gmail.com

gary@idd-ltd.co.uk

Page 84
Item 5



Page 3 of 8

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Pre-Application Discussion Details Cont.

In what format was the feedback given? *

 Meeting  Telephone  Letter  Email

Please provide a description of the feedback you were given and the name of the officer who provided this feedback. If a processing 
agreement [note 1] is currently in place or if you are currently discussing a processing agreement with the planning authority, please 
provide details of this. (This will help the authority to deal with this application more efficiently.) * (max 500 characters)

Title: Other title: 

First Name: Last Name:

Correspondence Reference Date (dd/mm/yyyy):
Number:

Note 1. A Processing agreement involves setting out the key stages involved in determining a planning application, identifying what 
information is required and from whom and setting timescales for the delivery of various stages of the process. 

Planning confirmed due to Covid that an extension of the existing consent would be in place until September, and advised that an 
application to extend the validity of the existing consent should be submitted. 

Mr

Aberdeenshire Council

Gregor Spence 

07/03/2022

795780 387205

Page 85
Item 5



Page 4 of 8

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application
Site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular 
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

As you have indicated that you are proposing to make private drainage arrangements, please provide further details.

What private arrangements are you proposing? *

 New/Altered septic tank.

 Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewage treatment plants, or passive sewage treatment such as a reed bed).

 Other private drainage arrangement (such as chemical toilets or composting toilets).

10644.00

Redundant agricultural field 

0

30

Page 86
Item 5



Page 5 of 8

Please explain your private drainage arrangements briefly here and show more details on your plans and supporting information: *

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Porosity of the ground is poor with underlying rock, therefore drainage is to be package treatment plant 

Page 87
Item 5



Page 6 of 8

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

I hereby certify that –

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the 
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at 
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Gary Black

On behalf of: Mrs Linda  Pirrie 

Date: 25/08/2022

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 88
Item 5



Page 7 of 8

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Page 89
Item 5



Page 8 of 8

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Mr Gary Black

Declaration Date: 25/08/2022
 

Payment Details

Pay Direct      
Created: 25/08/2022 12:27

Page 90
Item 5



IMPORTANT – THIS IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT PLEASE RETAIN WITH YOUR 
TITLE DEEDS

Serving Aberdeenshire from mountain to sea – the very best of Scotland

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Application Reference: APP/2022/1845

TO: Inspired Design & Development Ltd
27 Evan Street
Stonehaven
Scotland
AB39 2EQ

FOR: Mrs Linda  Pirrie
37 Evan Street 
Stonehaven
AB39 2EQ

In pursuance of the powers exercised by them as Planning Authority, this Council 
having considered your application for the following:

Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of 
Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission 
APP/2018/1279) at Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven, 
AB39 3QU

and in accordance with the plan(s) docquetted as relative hereto and the particulars 
given in the application, do hereby give notice of their decision to REFUSE Full 
Planning Permission for the following reasons:

(1) The application is considered by the Planning Authority to not comply with the 
Development Plan.  The proposed nursery (Class 10 Use) is not well related to 
the population or in a town centre location, with no sequential justification 
provided for the siting and the location proposed is remote and not sustainably 
accessible by foot/cycle/public transport resulting in reliance upon the private 
car, being detrimental to the overarching sustainability targets and tackling the 
climate crisis, contrary to Policies 1 Tackling the climate and nature crisis, 2 
Climate mitigation and adaptation, 13 Sustainable transport, 15 Local Living 
and 20 minute neighbourhoods and 29 Rural development of National Planning 
Framework 4, and Policies B1 Town Centre Development, R2 Development 
Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside, P1 Layout, Siting and Design, P6 
Community Facilities and Public Amenities and RD1 Providing Suitable 
Services of the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023.

(2) The proposed dwelling is not on a previously developed brownfield site and is 
not associated with a primary industry or viable rural business, and does not 
comply with Policy 17 Rural homes and 29 Rural development of National 
Planning Framework 4, or Policy R2 Development Proposals Elsewhere in the 
Countryside of the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023

Page 91
Item 5



Serving Aberdeenshire from mountain to sea – the very best of Scotland

(3) Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate a functional and 
deliverable drainage solution to serve the proposed development, resulting in 
concerns relating to the potential risk of surface water flooding to others and a 
failure to adequately manage all rain and surface water through a deliverable 
sustainable urban drainage system that is within the full control of the applicant, 
contrary to Policy 22 Flood risk and water management of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policy C4 Flooding and RD1 Providing Suitable Services of 
the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023

Dated: 9 November 2023

Paul Macari
Head of Planning and Economy

List of Plans and Drawings
Reference Number: Location Plan 
Reference Number: P03 193/2017 Proposed Elevations
Reference Number: P08 193/2017 Existing And Proposed Site Sections
Reference Number: P06 193/2017 Version 1 Proposed Elevations
Reference Number: P04 193/2017 Proposed Elevation And Sections
Reference Number: P02 193/2017 Proposed First Floor Plan
Reference Number: P01 193/2017 Proposed Ground Floor
Reference Number: P07 193/2017 Version 1 Proposed Sections
Reference Number: P11 193/2017 Site Information- Drainage
Reference Number: P09 193/2017 Site Information
Reference Number: P12 193/2017 Site Information- Roads Information

Stamped copies of any plans and the decision notice associated with your 
application are available to view and can be downloaded through our Planning - 
Public Access Register by searching for your application using the application 
reference number.

Page 92
Item 5



Serving Aberdeenshire from mountain to sea – the very best of Scotland

NOTES

(i) In the case of any permission granted, this does NOT incorporate any 
building warrant for any operations or change of use which may be required 
under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003.  This must be obtained separately from 
the Council prior to the start of building operations.

(ii) Any permission granted does not incorporate any listed building consent which 
may be required.  This must be obtained separately prior to the start of building 
operations.

(iii) Any permission granted is without prejudice to any further consents required 
from Aberdeenshire Council in its role as landowner.

(iv) If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to 
refuse permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the 
proposed development, or to grant permission or approval subject to 
conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case 
under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
within three months from the date of this notice.  A Notice of Review form 
should be obtained from and submitted to:

Head of Legal and People
Aberdeenshire Council
Woodhill House
Westburn Road
Aberdeen
AB16 5GB 

Tel: 01467 532862         
Email: localreviewbodysubmissions@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

A form may also be obtained from the Council's website at - Aberdeenshire 
Council - Committees and Meetings

(v) If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the 
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably 
beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has 
been or would be permitted, the owner of the land may serve on the planning 
authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land's 
interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 93
Item 5



Page 94
Item 5



Page 95
Item 5



Page 96
Item 5



Page 97
Item 5



Page 98
Item 5



Page 99
Item 5



Page 100
Item 5



Page 101
Item 5



Page 102
Item 5



Page 103
Item 5



Page 104
Item 5



Page 105
Item 5



Page 106
Item 5



Page 107
Item 5



Page 108
Item 5



Page 109
Item 5



Page 110
Item 5



Page 111
Item 5



Page 112
Item 5



Page 113
Item 5



Page 114
Item 5



1

Emily Newlands

From: Lauren Mackie
Sent: 01 November 2023 14:59
To: Planning Online
Cc: Neil Mair
Subject: For Consideration: APP/2022/1845

Full Planning Permission for Erec on of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residen al Ins tu ons), 
Erec on of Children's Workshop, Forma on of Wildlife Pond and Erec on of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning 
Permission APP/2018/1279) at Land Adjacent To Rothnick Cro , Netherley, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU  
Grid Reference: 387228.795779 

Following on from discussions with Planning we have had confirmation that the previous condition is no longer 
deemed competent due to uncertainty over the applicant's ability to comply with it, and the lack of new information 
and certainty over a deliverable and functional surface water drainage system.  Therefore, this service objects to the 
application. 

Regards  
 
Lauren Mackie 
Civil Engineer/Technician 
Flood Risk and Coast Protec on 
Infrastructure Services 
Aberdeenshire Council 
Tel: 01467 534452 
  
 

Page 115
Item 5



1

Beverley Robertson

From: Peter Exon on behalf of Contaminated Land

Sent: 19 October 2022 12:39

To: Planning Online

Cc: David Niven

Subject: RE: Consultation for Application Ref No APP/2022/1845 

APP/2022/1845 Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-
Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection 
of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279); Land Adjacent To Rothnick 
Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU 

Environmental Protection Act 1990: Part IIA Contaminated Land 

Thank you for consulting us on the above application. After studying the proposals there do not appear to be any 
issues of concern under the above legislation in respect of this development and as a consequence, no further 
information regarding contaminated land is required. 

Regards, 

Peter. 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
Peter Exon 
Assistant Scientific Officer 

Aberdeenshire Council,  
Environment and Infrastructure Services,  
Environmental Health,  
Gordon House, 
Blackhall Road,  
Inverurie, AB51 3WA 

Tel: 01467 538529 

-----Original Message----- 
From: planning@aberdeenshire.gov.uk planning@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
Sent: 06 October 2022 12:03 
To: Contaminated Land contaminated.land@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
Subject: Consultation for Application Ref No APP/2022/1845  

Please find attached important correspondence from Aberdeenshire Council, Planning and Economy Service. 

Page 116
Item 5



Archived: 29 August 2022 14:15:19
From: Adam Sime 
Sent: 29 August 2022 13:56:17
To: Planning Online 
Cc: Developer Obligations 
Subject: APP/2022/1845
Sensitivity: Normal

Planning Application Ref: APP/2022/1845
Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation
of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279) | Land Adjacent To
Rothnick Croft Etherley Stonehaven
 
Lairhillock Primary School and Mackie Academy are currently operating within capacity.  The proposed development does not
engage the Developer Obligations and Affordable Housing policies or associated supplementary planning guidance of the
Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2017.  Therefore, in this instance, no contributions are required.  
 
 
Kind Regards
 
Adam Sime | Senior Developer Obligations Officer |
Legal and People | Business Services | Aberdeenshire Council | Banchory Town Hall | 1 Kinneskie Lane | Banchory | AB31 5NA

Tel: 01467 539495
email: adam.sime@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
 

Page 117
Item 5



PLANNING CONSULTATION

RECOMMENDATION: No Objection subject to condition
 (delete as appropriate)

APPLICATION REF: APP/2022/1845
PROPOSAL: Full Planning Permission for Erection of 

Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-
Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's 
Workshop, Formation of Wildlife
Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of 
Planning Permission
APP/2018/1279)

LOCATION: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft
Etherley
Stonehaven
AB39 3QU

AGENT: Inspired Design _ Development Ltd
DATE RECEIVED BY EH: 29 August 2022

Environmental Health Service has considered the following in respect of the above 
application: (delete as appropriate)

Proposed Water Supply

Please find comments below regarding each of these matters relating to the 
development proposed.

Standard comments requesting further information
or

Model conditions (referencing supporting assessments where appropriate)

1. WATER SUPPLY

0816 Public Water Supply

The proposed development shall be connected to the public water supply as 
indicated in the submitted application and shall not be connected to a private water 
supply without the separate express grant of planning permission by the planning 
authority.

Reason: To ensure the long term sustainability of the development and the safety 
and welfare of the occupants and visitors to the site.

The Environmental Health Service would recommend the following planning 
conditions are imposed. Should Development Management not be able to 

Page 118
Item 5



impose all of these conditions the Service would welcome further discussion 
on the matter.

Catherine Busson
(Senior) Environmental Health Officer
Date:20/9/22

Please note that the above observations do not include consideration of 
contaminated land issues. The Scientific Officer, Environment and 
Infrastructure (Environmental Health) will report separately to the Planning 
Officer on such matters.

Page 119
Item 5



1

Beverley Robertson

From: Nick Rae
Sent: 01 September 2022 15:25
To: Planning Online
Cc: David Niven
Subject: Consultation Response for Planning Reference APP/2022/1845

Consultee: Flood Risk & Coast Protection 
Planning Reference: APP/2022/1845 
Planning Case Officer: David Niven 
     
Proposal: Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential 
Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse 
(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279) 
Address: Land Adjacent to, Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Aberdeenshire, AB39 3QU 
Grid Reference: 387228.795779 
 
 
With regard to the above referenced application for renewal of planning permission; we do not object to this 
renewal on the basis that Condition 1, that was applied to the original grant of permission for application 
APP/2018/1279, is again applied as a condition to this renewal. 
 
 
Regards, 
 
Nick Rae 
Civil Engineer 
 
Flood Risk & Coast Protection 
Environment & Infrastructure Services 

 
---------------------------------- 
E: nick.rae@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
T: 01467 537254 
M: 07818 521335 
A: Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven, AB39 2DQ 
---------------------------------- 
www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
Follow us at: 

       

Page 120
Item 5



 

 

 

Reference APP/2020/1845 

Proposal Full planning permission for erection of Children’s Day Care 
Nursery, Erection of children’s workshop, formation of wildlife 
pond and erection of Dwellinghouse 

Location Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven  
AB39 3QU 

Date 29 August 2022 

 

 

Education and Children’s Services Response 

 

Primary School Catchment Area: Lairhillock School      

Secondary School Catchment Area: Mackie Academy 

 

 

Education & Children’s Services: 

Object to this application / do not object to this application 

Additional Comments 

 

 

 

 

Completed by:  Learning Estates Team, Education & Children’s Services  

Date:  08/09/22 

The catchment areas are in reference to the location of the dwellinghouse and not the 

location of the nursery. 

 

Page 121
Item 5



Infrastructure Services
Roads Development

Roads Development Planning Consultation form

Issue A9 Rev date: 16/04/2018 Page 1 App Ref: Document1

Technical Consultation No 1 for Planning Application Ref: APP/2022/1845

Application type: FPP (Full Planning Permission)

Proposal: Erection Of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential
Institutions), Erection Of Children's Workshop, Formation Of Wildlife Pond
And Erection Of Dwellinghouse

Location: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Etherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Date consultation request received: 29/08/2022

Planning Officer: DN

Roads Officer: MN

1. Visibility Requirements

Speed Limit at site: 60 mph

Design speed: 40 mph (assessed for both approaches)
)

Based on the minimum visibility requirements within Aberdeenshire Council’s current
standards and on the design speed a visibility of 2.4 metres by 120 metres will be
required In both directions

Does current application provide this? Yes No

2. Parking Requirements:

Is shown provision of 25 + 5 spaces acceptable Yes No

Note:

Sufficient parking has been provided to accommodate staff parking and drop off provision for
customers within the business car park, and 5 parking spaces for the dwelling is acceptable our
standards require 3.

Page 122
Item 5



Infrastructure Services
Roads Development

Roads Development Planning Consultation form

Issue A9 Rev date: 16/04/2018 Page 2 App Ref: Document1

Conditions (as selected below):
Prior to occupancy of development, parking as shown on P12 rev 0, surfaced in hard
standing materials must be provided within the site.

Prior to commencement of development, Visibility Splays, measuring 2.4m by 120m to be
formed on either side of the junction of the vehicular access with the public road. The visibility
splays so formed shall thereafter be kept free of all permanent obstructions above adjacent
carriageway level.

Prior to occupancy of development a refuse bin uplift store area shall be constructed (behind
any visibility splay) so as to be accessible for bin uplift & shall be secure enough to prevent
empty bins from being wind blown. Details must be submitted to Roads Development for
approval.

Prior to occupancy of development a suitable vehicle turning area, as shown on P12 rev 0,
must be formed within the site to enable all vehicle movements onto or from the public road
to be carried out in a forward gear.

Initialed by:

Date: 14/09/2022

3. Road Layout:

Is a Traffic Assessment required? Yes No

Access onto Public Road Network? Direct Indirect

Will the Shown Layout Require RCC? Yes No

Does the Shown Layout Appear to Comply with RCC? Yes No

If No, What are Main Items of Non-Compliance?

4. Other Comments:

5. Recommendations:
This Service does not object to this application subject to the following
conditions and advisories being applied should planning permission be
granted:-

Page 123
Item 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Tuesday, 30 August 2022 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Planning and Environment Service 
Aberdeenshire Council 
Stonehaven 
AB39 2DQ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft, Etherley, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU 

Planning Ref: APP/2022/1845  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0071741-CS9 

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential 
Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and 
Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279) 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 This proposed development will be fed from Invercannie Water Treatment Works. 
Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to allow us to 
fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a Pre-
Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via our 
Customer Portal or contact Development Operations.  
 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Waste 
Water infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we 
would advise applicant to investigate private treatment options.  

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 124
Item 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 

 
 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

Asset Impact Assessment  
 
Scottish Water records indicate that there is live infrastructure in the proximity of your 

development area that may impact on existing Scottish Water assets.  

 
 90mm HPPE water main in the site boundary 

 
 

The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water assets and contact our 
Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal for an appraisal of the proposals.  
 
The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified will be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction. Please note the disclaimer at the end of this 
response.  
 
Written permission must be obtained before any works are started within the area of our 
apparatus  
 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

Page 125
Item 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 

Page 126
Item 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 
 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Angela Allison 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127
Item 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 

 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 128
Item 5



Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 
 
 
Our Ref:   
Your Ref: APP/2022/1845
 
      
      
      
      
      
 
Please ask for:  Peter Stanworth
Direct Dial: 01467 533445 
      
 
Date: 06/09/022  
 
If you have difficulty reading this document please contact Peter Stanworth 
on 01467 533445 
 
Dear Sir/Madam
 
Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 

Formation 
 

387228.795779 
 
Thank you for submitting the Planning Application to my service for review and comment.   
 
Waste management has no objection subject to the proposed layout being designed to the 
satisfaction of Roads Development. Please avoid block paved roads as they are not sufficiently 
robust for the Waste Collection Vehicles to traverse. They also harbour weed growth. 
 
 
Access 
 
In all cases, vehicular access is of paramount importance.  Collection vehicles are generally 
Large Goods Vehicles (LGV) of approximately 10 metres in length and require adequate space 
to manoeuvre.  They have a turning circle of 21 metres diameter. Where possible the need for 
these large vehicles to reverse should be negated/minimised. Refuse vehicles should in any 
case not be required to reverse for a distance greater than 12 metres in accordance with British 
Standard 5906:2005.
 

Infrastructure Services

Waste Management

Unit 7 Harlaw Way

Harlaw Industrial Estate

Inverurie

Aberdeenshire

AB51 4SG

Tel  03456 08 12 07 

Fax  

www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk

   

Page 129
Item 5



Page 2 of 3 

 
 

It should be noted that where vehicles are expected to access a private development the road 
surface should be constructed of adequate quality and maintained to withhold the weight of 
vehicles up to 32 tonnes Gross Vehicle Weight.
 
The Council will also not take responsibility for fair wear and tear where access into private 
developments is requested.  In the event that a private road falls below an acceptable standard 
or that access becomes difficult for any reason for refuse/recycling vehicles the collection point 
will revert to the nearest public road.  Documents outlining the dimensions including turning 
circles of the refuse collection vehicles currently in service are attached to this letter. 
 
 
TOTAL BIN STORAGE FOR AT LEAST 3 X 240ltr bins should be provided per house 
 
 
Refuse Collection 
 
One bin per property is required for non-recyclable waste but each unit should have space for 2 
x 240 ltr wheeled bins (to allow for situations were more than one bin is required)  The 
property developer is required to pay for refuse bins.
 
Communal bins are permitted only if the developer can evidence they will be maintained by a 
factor.  If provided, bin stores should have adequate space for wheeled bins and sited close to 
the nearest road.  There should be a minimum of 100 mm allowed between each bin for ease 
of manoeuvring the bins.  
 
Recycling
 
Glass Recycling  
 
Given the size of this development, suitable spaces should be allowed for the provision of glass 
recycling points within the development for the use of residents.  This would most likely consist 
of a set of up to 3 x 240 litre wheeled bins encased in an aesthetically pleasing casing which 
would be individually labelled for the collection of brown, blue/green and white glass.
 
The waste service can assist in determining the best site for such a facility to ensure that it is 
accessible to both residents and collection crews.  It is suggested that this site is as centrally 
located for the convenience of all residents as possible.  The area would require to be on hard 
standing and could be screened.  Would require to be close to the access road for servicing. 
 
Kerbside Recycling Collection 
 
All new developments, in addition to the requirements for refuse collection bins (as above), 
should now also plan space for 2 x 240 litre bin for recyclables and 1 x food waste container (25 
litre) for each house/flat.  The same recommendations regarding bin stores, access, etc. will 
apply as they do for refuse. 
 
The recycling bins are for the collection of cans and foil, paper, cardboard, plastic bottles, 
plastic pots, tubs and trays and cartons.   

Page 130
Item 5



Page 3 of 3 

 
 

The food waste container is collected weekly.
 
The developer is required to pay for recycling and food waste bins. 
 
 
Commercial Developments 
 
It is difficult to assess the needs of any commercial development before it is occupied but space 
should be designated for storage of waste/recycling containers bearing in mind that some 
establishments may use large industrial type skips.  If there is a likelihood of any food premise 
being installed then it should be noted that this type of business usually generates significant 
volumes of waste.  It is desirable for commercial premises to have some indoor space allocated 
for storage of waste or recyclables.  Outdoor bin storage should be enclosed on 3 sides to 
prevent receptacles from moving away from their storage points and escape of waste.
 
Premises with statutory required clean up frontage under the terms of Section 93 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 will be required to present a litter prevention action plan to 
Waste Management before any objection is removed. 
 
All businesses will be affected by the Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 and we recommend 
that applicants for commercial developments familiarise themselves with these, more 
information can be found here: 
 
http://www.sepa.org.uk/waste/moving_towards_zero_waste/zero_waste_regulations.aspx 
 
 
Yours Faithfully  
 

P Stanworth 

Peter Stanworth
Waste Support Leader
 
attachments: 
Mercedes Econic Dimensions 
Turning Circles Table 2016 
Bin Dimensions  

Page 131
Item 5



Updated June 2018 
 

Trade Waste and Trade Recycling Service 
Containers 

We supply 6 different sizes of bin: 
 140L (smaller than a household wheeled bin)  

 240L (same as a household wheeled bin)  

 660L (metal bin with 4 wheels)  

 820L (metal bin with 4 wheels)  

 1100L (metal bin with 4 wheels)  

 1280L (our largest metal bin with 4 wheels  same as a bin at a Recycling Point) 
 

 

From left to right: 140L wheeled bin, 240L wheeled bin, 660L container, 820L container 1100L container. 

Bin Dimensions and Maximum weights - approximate outer dimensions including handles 

 

Bin size (litres) Height (cm) Width (cm) Depth (cm) 
Maximum weight 
capacity (kg) 

140 104 50 55 59 

240 110 58 74 96 

660 131 125 72 264 

820 137 123 78 328 

1100 157 125 98 440 

1280 143 135 100 440 

 

Wasteline 03456 08 12 07  
www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/waste  

 

 

Page 132
Item 5



Page 133
Item 5



P
age 134

Item
 5



P
age 135

Item
 5



Your planning consultation entitled Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft 

Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU for Planning Application Reference 

APP/2022/1845 on Ward Pages has closed, your proposal for this 

application to be determined by officers using delegated powers has been 

Accepted. Full results are shown below: 

      

  

Councillor Response Comments 
Interest 

Declared 

Cllr. Mel Sullivan 
Agree Officer 

Delegation 
 ●  

No Interest 

Declared 

Cllr. Catherine 

Victor 

Agree Officer 

Delegation 
 ●  

No Interest 

Declared 

Cllr. Shirley 

Burnett 
No Response  ●  No Response 

Cllr. David 

Aitchison 

Agree Officer 

Delegation 
 ●  

No Interest 

Declared 
 

  

      
 

Page 136
Item 5



From: Alan Innes
To: Planning Online
Cc: Kieran Buxton; Alan McMillan
Subject: OBJECTION TO PLANNING APPLICATION APP/2022/1845 FOR LAND ADJACENT TO ROTHNICK CROFT,

NETHERLEY, STONEHAVEN, AB39 3QU [BURNESSPAULL-ACTIVE.FID28101331]
Date: 29 September 2022 12:11:27
Attachments: Letter to Aberdeenshire Council.pdf

Dear Planning and Economy Service, Aberdeenshire Council (FAO: David Niven, Case Officer)
 
OBJECTION TO PLANNING APPLICATION APP/2022/1845 FOR LAND ADJACENT
TO ROTHNICK CROFT, NETHERLEY, STONEHAVEN, AB39 3QU
OUR REF: FOR/1041/00144

We act on behalf of Forbes Homes Limited.  On behalf of our client, please see the attached
letter objecting to planning application made under reference APP/2022/1845 for the reasons
noted in the letter.
 
Please note our client’s request (at the end of the letter) to be informed of any further
submissions made on behalf of the applicant in relation to drainage.
 
The attached letter is being emailed to you at this address, being the email address listed in the
Press and Journal advertisement of 9 September 2022.  We would be grateful if you could
confirm receipt of this email and attached letter today.  
 
Kind regards
 
Alan
 
 
Alan Innes
Senior Associate
Burness Paull LLP
 
Direct Dial: +44 (0)131 370 8961
Mobile: +44 (0)7850 004 837
Email: Alan.Innes@burnesspaull.com
LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/in/alaninnes/
Pronouns: He/him/his

 

Get the legal updates you need straight to your inbox – click here

Page 137
Item 5



www.burnesspaull.com 

1 Union Wynd, Aberdeen, United Kingdom,AB10 1DQ +44 (0)1224 621621 +44 (0)1224 627437 (Fax) 
50 Lothian Road, Edinburgh, United Kingdom, EH3 9WJ +44 (0)131 473 6000 +44 (0)131 473 6006 (Fax) 
120 Bothwell Street, Glasgow, United Kingdom, G2 7JL +44 (0)141 248 4933 +44 (0)141 204 1601 (Fax) 

Please be aware of the increased risk of cyber crime and fraud using email interception. When sending bank details by email, Burness Paull will
always use our secure email system and will never include them in the body of the email message. If you receive an email from Burness Paull
which provides different bank details to those already given to you, it is unlikely to be genuine. Please do not reply to the email and contact us
immediately. We will not take responsibility if you transfer funds to the wrong account. 

For information about how we use your personal data at Burness Paull, including your rights, please see our privacy policy 

This message is confidential and may be privileged. If it is not for you please inform us and then delete it. Any views or other information in this
message which do not relate to our business are not authorised by us and are not the views of Burness Paull LLP. 

No liability is accepted for viruses and it is your responsibility to scan any attachments. The e-mail system of Burness Paull LLP is subject to
random monitoring. 

Burness Paull LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in Scotland (SO300380) with its registered office at 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square,
Edinburgh EH3 9WJ and offices in Aberdeen, Edinburgh and Glasgow. We are regulated by the Law Society of Scotland and authorised and
regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority (838632). A list of members is available for inspection at our registered office. For more information
about us click here

Page 138
Item 5



ACTIVE: 111954047v7 

Aberdeen   Edinburgh   Glasgow 
 
Burness Paull LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in Scotland (SO300380) 
Registered office: 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9WJ 
Burness Paull is a registered trade mark of Burness Paull LLP 
VAT registration number GB 216 2185 32 
 
We are regulated by the Law Society of Scotland and authorised and  
regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority (838632). 
 
Lawyers with offices in Aberdeen, Edinburgh and Glasgow. 
A list of members is available for inspection at the firm’s registered office. 

Our Ref  FOR/1041/00144/AInnes/ACM 

Your ref  APP/2022/1845 (FAO: David Niven) 

 

 

 

BY EMAIL ONLY: 

planningonline@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 

FAO: David Niven (Case Officer) 

Planning and Economy Service 

Aberdeenshire Council 

Viewmount 

Arduthie Road 

Stonehaven 

AB39 2DQ 

29 September 2022  

Dear Planning and Economy Service, Aberdeenshire Council 

FORBES HOMES LIMITED  

OBJECTION TO PLANNING APPLICATION APP/2022/1845 FOR LAND ADJACENT TO 

ROTHNICK CROFT, NETHERLEY, STONEHAVEN, AB39 3QU 

We act for Forbes Homes Limited.  On behalf of our client, we are instructed to write to you to object 

to the planning application under reference APP/2022/1845 (the “2022 Application”).  The 2022 

Application is an application to renew the planning permission granted (with conditions) by 

Aberdeenshire Council, dated 6 February 2019, under reference APP/2018/1279 (the “2019 

Permission”).   

Our client objects to the 2022 Application on the grounds that the applicant has not demonstrated that 

it can provide a suitable drainage solution for the disposal of surface water. The applicant’s proposed 

drainage solution would require a connection to allow drainage onto our client’s land. The applicant 

has no rights to install such a connection and would not be able to deliver the proposed drainage 

solution.  

Background and Legal Position 

The land that is the subject of the 2019 Permission (and 2022 Application) is the subjects lying on 

the east side of Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven, being the land registered in the Land Register 

of Scotland under title number KNC18270 (the “Development Land”). 

Page 139
Item 5



 

ACTIVE: 111954047v7 2 

Our client is the heritable proprietor of land to the north of the Development Land, being the land 

registered in the Land Register of Scotland under Title Number KNC11340 (“FHL Land”).   

There is an unresolved court action between our client, as Pursuer, and (i) Linda Pirie (the 

“Applicant”) and (ii) George Pirie (the Applicant’s co-owner), at Aberdeen Sheriff Court under 

reference ABE-A84-19 (the “Court Action”).   

The Court Action concerns the entitlement that the Applicant and Mr Pirie have in respect of drainage 

through the FHL Land from the Development Land, and in particular for the development 

contemplated by the 2019 Permission (or any other proposed development).   

Our client’s position is that the Applicant and Mr Pirie have no right or title to use, for the drainage 

or sewerage in relation to the 2019 Permission (or any other proposed development), any 

watercourses, pipes, connections, drains and sewers in and under any part of the FHL Land.  Our 

client seeks remedies of declarator and interdict to reflect their position. 

By way or further explanation, the Development Land does not benefit from any existing drainage 

connections through the FHL Land.  The Development Land has no rights to install new connections 

through the FHL Land.  Further, the proposals for the Development Land involve a connection from 

that land, into a newly installed pipe through the adjacent Rothnick Croft, then into an existing pipe 

through the FHL Land (which pipe does serve Rothnick Croft).  That would both (i) use Rothnick 

Croft as a “bridge” to drain the Development Land and (ii) increase beyond current use and capacity 

the amount of water flowing through the existing pipe through the FHL Land.  Both matters are 

unlawful, and as such there is no legal basis on which the Development Land can be drained through 

the FHL Land. 

Opposition to the 2022 Application 

Our client’s opposition to the 2022 Application relates to (i) the suitability (from a legal and practical 

perspective) of the FHL Land for drainage of the Development Land (which is a position taken 

without prejudice to our client’s position in the Court Action); and (ii) unexplained differences 

between the 2022 Application and the underlying application that led to the 2019 Permission. 

(i) The suitability of the FHL Land for drainage 

The FHL Land is susceptible to flooding with the existing drainage arrangement.  The Applicant 

previously undertook a development on the adjacent Rothnick Croft subjects involving the demolition 

of the existing building and construction of a new dwellinghouse and outbuildings.  The roof and 

surface drainage areas were accordingly increased, which has led to an increase of water flowing into 

the previously mentioned pipe through the FHL Land.  That has exceeded the capacity of the existing 

drainage arrangement, leading to flooding and waterlogging on the FHL Land.  A number of horses 

kept on the FHL Land have either suffered health problems or died, which our client believes is as a 

result of the waterlogged condition of the land. 

The FHL Land does not have capacity to accept further water from the Development Land without 

further adverse consequences.  The Applicant and Mr Pirie admit in the on-going court action that (i) 

Page 140
Item 5



 

ACTIVE: 111954047v7 3 

the drainage system does not operate effectively; and (ii) that the ground in the FHL Land is 

waterlogged.   

For so long as they involve drainage onto and through the FHL Land (via the adjacent Rothnick Croft 

property), the drainage proposals are not appropriate because they will exacerbate the condition of 

the FHL Land.   

The 2022 Application is therefore contrary to Policy RD1 of the Aberdeenshire Local Development 

Plan 2017, which provides that surface water drainage must be dealt with in a sustainable manner and 

in ways that avoid pollution and flooding, and to Policy C4, which provides that the Council will not 

approve development that may contribute to flooding issues elsewhere. 

(ii) Unexplained differences between the 2022 Application and the 2019 Permission 

First, the 2022 Application does not go into the same detail as the underlying application for the 2019 

Permission in respect of drainage arrangements.  The underlying application for the 2019 Permission 

states: “Porosity of the ground is poor with underlying rock, therefore drainage is to be by packaged 

seweraged treatment plant, to partial soakaway within the site with final discharge to watercourse.” 

The 2022 Application states: “Porosity of the ground is poor with underlying rock, therefore drainage 

is to be package treatment plant”.  There is no reference to the underlined text above in the 2022 

Application. 

The 2022 Application does not make clear how the Applicant proposes that water being drained from 

the Development Land is ultimately to be discharged.  Our client presumes that the discharge will 

ultimately be into a watercourse, as detailed in the 2019 Permission.  However, our client notes that 

the only way the Development Land may be drained into a watercourse is through the FHL Land.  As 

we have outlined above, the Development Land does not benefit from such rights. 

The 2019 Application was approved despite the concerns of the Council’s Infrastructure Services 

(Flood Risk and Coast Protection). However, a condition was imposed requiring the submission of 

appropriate evidence to the Council to demonstrate that the existing drainage pipe infrastructure in 

the FHL Land is functioning effectively and could accommodate the new connection. The Applicant 

will not be able to satisfy this condition for the reasons detailed above. The 2022 Application should 

therefore be refused. 

Conclusion 

Our client’s position as to the determination of the 2022 Application is as follows:  

1. The 2022 Application should be refused because it does not provide for a suitable drainage 

proposal.  A drainage proposal over the FHL Land will not satisfy Condition 1 of the 2019 

Permission due to the existing issues with the drainage. 

2. Failing which, if the 2022 Application is to be granted and the planning authority considers 

that it remains appropriate and reasonable (notwithstanding the practical and legal issues 

noted above), Condition 1 of the 2019 Permission should remain imposed in respect of the 

Page 141
Item 5



 

ACTIVE: 111954047v7 4 

2022 Application.  However, we would query whether it is appropriate to permit an 

application with a condition which there is no legal or practical route to discharge. 

We request and would be grateful that should the Applicant make any further submissions in respect 

of this drainage issue, our client be given the opportunity to comment upon them. 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

for and on behalf of Burness Paull LLP 

 

T: +44 (0)131 370 8961 

M: +44 (0)7850 004 837 

E: Alan.Innes@burnesspaull.com 

 

Page 142
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Calum MacPherson

Address: 3 Stripeside Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3AB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:As I understand it, the nursery and house proposed in APP/2022/1845 has no drainage

solution. The ground on site is poor, with testing confirming bedrock and poor percolation value

and infiltration rates. Soakaways will not work. The applicant has no outfall from the previously

approved drainage, and no ability to provide one to the nearby watercourse as they do not own the

land nor hold the licence. The existing drainage at Rothnick Croft appears to be failing, and any

additional burden on that system will only add to the problems on adjoining land.

 

The site itself is also poorly located for a nursery, isolated and unsustainably located. There is no

justification for a house alongside it. The Committee approval previously should be reviewed and

the application rejected this time round.

Page 143
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr David Pascoe

Address: 1 Stripeside Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3AB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I wish to object to APP/2022/1845 for a nursery and house at Rothnick Croft, Netherley.

 

The site is isolated and only accessible by car.

 

The impact on traffic and road safety in the local area would be significant.

 

The site has no drainage solution at present, and no ability to provide a solution in the future.

There is existing drainage and flooding problems on adjacent fields from Rothnick Croft, any

additional development will only worsen this.

 

The inability to drain the site could be what has prevented the development progressing. The

previous approval was against the recommendation of the Planning Authority, and it appears that

a condition relating to drainage was added at the 11th hour to ensure that drainage was looked at

in more detail.

 

This repeat application allows further scrutiny, and the reliance of a condition to address such a

pivotal matter should not be repeated. A drainage solution, that the applicant can deliver on land

that is in their control to a watercourse that they hold the licence for, has to be secured to ensure

planning policy is met and that the development can be delivered properly.

 

If they can not provide that certainty at this stage, the application should be refused.

Page 144
Item 5



 

September 29, 2022 
 
Aberdeenshire Council 
ePlanning Team 
 
Sent by email to planning@aberdeenshire.gov.uk  
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
Re:  Objection to Application APP/2022/1845 Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley 
Stonehaven  
 
This representation has been prepared on behalf of Mr Deryck Forbes of Sunnybrae, 
Drumoak, Banchory, Aberdeenshire, AB31 5AD. This representation is in response to 
application APP/2022/1845 for a children’s nursery and dwellinghouse. Mr Forbes through his 
company is the owner of the land directly to the north of the application site and the 
ownership includes the existing discharge for the former croft at Rothnick and the field drain 
that discharges to the Burn of Elsick.  
 
The current permission requires that no works can proceed unless evidence of the proposed 
outfall can be provided. Drainage Report submitted with Application APP/2018/1279 states 
that it is proposed to install an overflow outlet pipe from the detention pond to join an 
installed drain located within land owned by Forbes Homes. This drain is providing an outfall 
for a single house to a water course. The Applicant has no right or title to use, for the 
drainage or sewerage of the proposed nursery development (or any other proposed 
development on that land), any watercourses, pipes, connections, drains and sewers in and 
under any part of Mr Forbes’ Land (whether directly or via Rothnick Croft). There is therefore 
no legal basis on which the proposed nursery development or the land on which it is situated 
can be drained as proposed. 
 
Access for additional properties will not be permitted as there is no available capacity for 
any more properties to discharge to this watercourse with a nearby development at 
Stripeside already discharging into this watercourse under a CAR licence. In these 
circumstances the application as previously approved for this site (APP/2018/1279) cannot 
be implemented.  
 
Mr Forbes objects to application APP/2022/1845 and the reasons for objection are set out 
below.  

Drainage 

Surface Water run-off from Rothnick Croft increased when the new dwelling house was 
constructed in place of the old croft (APP/2013/1809) with significant land raising undertaken 
and increased rainwater run-off from the house and garage roof areas along with the drive, 
significantly increasing and exceeding the capacity of the existing drainage arrangement 
within the field to the North, leading to flooding and water logging on the land. The ground 
assessment / drainage recommendation report and the approved site / location plan for 
APP/2013/1809 (new dwelling house) notes the drainage for this site connects into an existing 
drain which discharges to a watercourse to the North. However, there is no evidence to 
confirm that this is the case. The drainage report and the SEPA registration for the dwelling 
house (CAR/R/1113648) noted a point of discharge to a watercourse which is on the North 
boundary of Rothnick Croft (NO 8706 9579), which is a ditch with no flow of water and 

Page 145
Item 5



 

nowhere near the watercourse that runs through the fields to the North under Forbes Homes’ 
ownership. The discharge point is as per the grid reference above and not the watercourse 
running that runs through the fields. 
 
The applicant has investigated drainage solutions at Rothnick Croft and has installed a gully 
arrangement and pipes on the north boundary of the property. This has created blockages 
within the existing field drainage. Figure 1 provides an outline of the existing drainage 
installed at this location.  
 

 

Figure 1 Existing Drainage Arrangements 

  

Page 146
Item 5



 

At times of higher rainfall the water run-off flows down the public road and into Forbes 
Homes’ fields as shown in Figure 2 and 3. 

 

Figure 2 Aerial view of ponding at drainage outfall 

 

Figure 3 View of ponding at drainage outfall 

The fields to the north of the application site are used for keeping horses and Forbes Homes’ 
tenant has suffered harm to the horses resulting from flooding. The tenant (Karina Yule) has 
experienced increased costs from her local vet due to issues with several of the horse’s feet 
(as a result of the wet conditions) including issues such as abscesses and bacterial infections 
and suffered the loss of 4 horses.  

Policy RD1 states “connection to a private drainage infrastructure can be supported, if it is 
demonstrated satisfactorily that disposal of sewage can be achieved without negative 

Page 147
Item 5



 

impacts on public health, amenity or the environment and where cost and practicability 
show it to be a reasonable alternative. Appropriate supporting evidence should be provided 
to support using private drainage infrastructure.” (RD1.12). Policy RD1 also states that 
“Surface water drainage must be dealt with in a sustainable manner, in ways that promote 
its biodiversity value, and in ways that avoid pollution and flooding, through the use of an 
integrated Sustainable Drainage System.” (RD1.13). 

The comments on the previous application (APP/2018/1279) confirm that poor infiltration 
rates exist on the site. The enclosed consultation response from Flood Risk and Coastal 
Protection state that the poor infiltration would result in water rising to ground and running off 
the site. No evidence has been submitted with this application that indicates that he foul 
water soakaway on the site would work or that it would not cause flooding of neighboring 
land.  

The surface water is to discharge into a basin for which there is no detailed design for and it is 
not clear if it will ensure that water would discharge into the overflow and not onto Forbes 
Homes’ land causing flooding.  

Almost 4 years have passed since the original application for this development. During this 
time the applicant has not been able to provide any details to confirm how drainage will be 
provided from the site. The limited design and supporting information for both foul and 
surface water drainage does not demonstrate compliance with Policy RD1.  
 
Historic Use 

There was a Blacksmiths located within this area historically as identified on OS from 1868. 
There have been concerns raised that flood water from the site includes contaminants. A 
ground contamination report should have been carried out due to the fact there would 
have been ash disposed of on site, which should have been removed by a licensed 
contractor and further tests would have been carried out prior to a certificate being issued 
stating all was clear.  The fact that a horse in the fields to the north died due to toxic 
poisoning suggests there could be ground contamination from the overflow from Rothnick 
Croft.  

 

Figure 4 Historic Mapping NLS 1868 

Page 148
Item 5



 

Principle of Development 

The application is a repeat of APP/2018/1279, which was approved February 2019. Whilst this 
remains valid it cannot be implemented due to no legal right to utilise the existing drain 
within Mr Forbes’ land as explained. Within the determination of the previous application the 
Planning Authority acknowledged that the proposal in principle did not comply with Policy 
R2.  

The Planning Committee Decided to approve the application for 4 reasons listed below.  
Comment is made below setting out reasons why these reasons are no longer adequate to 
support approval on this site.  

1. National policy changes regarding day care, early years, is a material consideration 
to be taken into account when assessing against policies in the Local Development 
Plan,  
 
Information published by Aberdeenshire Council1 lists all of the nurseries available in 
the Portlethen cluster.  There is no evidence presented to suggest that there is 
insufficient capacity within these nurseries or that there is an unmet demand. 
Lairhillock Nursery located at the school is located within 1.5km of the application site 
and would be accessible to residents in the area surrounding the site. It is understood 
that there is capacity within this nursery.  
 
Previously supporting comments were made on the need for nursery provision, these 
same comments have not been received in response to this application.  
 

2. A rural nursery needed to be situated in a rural setting and the proposed site was 
considered to be suitable,  
 
A justification report was previously submitted, but has not been updated for this 
application. This report previously projected 50 children attending the nursery. As 
explained in this justification report, transport would then require parents to drop off 
and pick up at the proposed car park. This is a significant number of trips, with the 
addition of nursery staff that would be required to drive to the nursery. The catchment 
suggested would be very wide and it should be questioned whether there is not a 
more suitable and accessible location that a travel destination use should be 
located. This also does not fit with emerging policy in National Planning Framework 
promoting 20 minute walking neighbourhoods or existing policies that promote a 
town centre first approach for footfall generating uses.  
 
Lairhillock Primary School (which has a nursery) meets the rural need, and they have 
access to outdoor learning. All schools have early years provision and there are 
private nurseries in all towns nearby – which are sustainably located. There is no 
demonstrated need for this facility to meet an educational need in this location. 
 

3. Nursery provision would offer local employment opportunities for parents of the 
children attending nursey and also staff within the nursery,  
 
Development has not proceeded and none of the benefits outlined relating to jobs in 
the previous decision have been realised. Without a shortfall in the requirement for 

 
1 ELC Admission Booklet (aberdeenshire.gov.uk). 

Page 149
Item 5



 

provision of nurseries in the local area the development is unlikely to create new jobs. 
These jobs will most likely result in a displacement of existing jobs from the surrounding 
area. Given existing facilities are all more sustainably located this will have a negative 
impact on the carbon emissions associated with travel in the local area. This is not a 
sustainable development.  
 

4. Having a member of staff living on-site was seen as important to care for the small 
animals. 
 
Multiple schools across the country have small animals for learning purposes, they 
survive without a member of staff living in the school or on school grounds. Animals 
get tended to during the day, fed, then left overnight. To care for “pets” is not 
justification for a house. 
 
The justification for the dwellinghouse did rely previously on a comparison of existing 
property available within close proximity and the costs to build a new dwelling house 
on the site. The evidence presented was from May 2018 and is no longer of any 
relevance to this application. Given the departure from policy and the lack of any 
supporting justification for the dwelling there is no justification for a departure from 
policy R2 for supporting a dwelling at this location.  

Local Development Plan section on Shaping Development in the Countryside states that 
“We need to recognise the effect that rural living can have on wider aims shared with 
stakeholders on reducing the need to travel and on the issues of climate change and 
sustainable development.” The emerging Local Development Plan agreed by Aberdeenshire 
Council to be submitted for adoption identifies that Aberdeenshire is an area that “promotes 
sustainable development that reduces the need to travel, reduces reliance on private cars 
and promotes safe and convenient active travel opportunities”. This is in response to the 
response to climate change and balancing economic growth and development with the 
need to protect and improve the environment.  

The proposed development is designed around the use of private car for transport and has 
no access to more sustainable modes of travel. The Local Development Plan seeks to 
balance the need for rural development and its sustainability. All aspects of this proposal fail 
to meet these policy expectations and are significantly contrary to the aims and objectives 
of the Local Development Plan. 

It is respectfully requested that this application is refused.  

 
Faithfully, 

 
Daniel Harrington 
Director 
T +44 (0) 1224 586277   M +44 (0) 7557238719 | Daniel.Harrington@THE-ap.co.uk 
 
Enc -Comments by Flood Prevention Unit 
cc - David Niven 

Page 150
Item 5



From: Nick Rae
To: Planning Online; Jenny Ash
Cc: Lee Watson
Subject: Consultee Response for Planning Reference APP/2018/1279
Date: 01 November 2018 13:38:19
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
Rothnick Croft Surface Water Sketch.pdf
Rothnick Croft Surface Water DIA.pdf
Rothnick Croft Surface Water Calcs.pdf

Consultee: Flood Risk & Coast Protection
Planning Reference: APP/2018/1279
Planning Case Officer: Jenny Ash
Proposal: Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-
Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and
Erection of Dwellinghouse
Address: Land Adjacent to, Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven, Aberdeenshire, AB39 3QU
Grid Reference: 387228.795779
Good afternoon,
With regard to the above referenced application, Flood Risk & Coast Protection has received
revised surface water drainage design documents directly from the agent. Please find these
attached for your records.
Following our last consultee response, this department has engaged with the agent and
applicant’s engineer, during which we clarified that if a revised design was to include discharge
to ground, rather than a piped outfall to the nearby watercourse, then infiltration testing would
be required to be undertaken within the area of the site that the surface water discharge was
proposed to take place.
We note that this revised design no longer features the proposed detention pond and use of the
existing discharge pipe to a nearby watercourse (for which we had requested demonstration of
adequate function, in order to accept the new connection). The revised design consists of
attenuation tank and filter trench discharge components.
The revised design has now been reviewed by this department, including the Principal Engineer
for Flood Risk & Coast Protection (copied in to this response). It is noted that within the Drainage
Impact Assessment document it states that: “From a visual inspection of the test pits, and a trial
infiltration test, it was proved that the ground conditions within the site (brown/grey glacial tills
with varying fines content) are not suitable for a purely infiltration based drainage system”. The
revised design, whilst we acknowledge does provide attenuation, would ultimately discharge to
the filter trenches and due to the lack of / poor infiltration, result in surface water rising to
ground or near-ground level and running off the site.
As the infiltration testing has not proved that such a solution is viable, as well as existing
concerns raised by the neighbouring landowner regarding surface water issues within the
adjacent land, we unfortunately maintain our stance that we cannot support this application in
its current form.
Regards,
Nick Rae
Civil Engineer
Flood Risk & Coast Protection
Infrastructure Services

Page 151
Item 5



----------------------------------
E: nick.rae@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
T: 01467 537254
M: 07818 521335
A: Carlton House, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven, AB39 2QP
----------------------------------
www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk
Follow us at:

   

Page 152
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Jill Thomson

Address: 8 Stripeside Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3AB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I object to APP/2022/1845.

 

We were unaware of the previous application, and whilst approved it is incapable of delivery.

There is no drainage solution, the properties at Stripeside hold all capacity. The failure to provide

drainage is a clear failing of the development and the application should be refused.

 

The site is not an appropriate or sustainable location for a facility that will be visited/used by many

people. The isolated location is unsustainable. There will be heavy reliance on cars, which will

increase traffic, create noise pollution and have a negative impact on air quality in the local area.

The development does not meet the Town Centre First Principle, or the 20 Minute Neighbourhood

focus of national planning.

 

There is no justification for a house adjacent to the nursery, a house would not appear to meet any

planning policy and there is no essential need to live and stay overnight next to a nursery that

would be shut/locked at those times. The precedent of approving a house next to a nursery is

extremely worrying, any nursery worker or school teacher that is in need of a home would then

want to apply to live next to their place of work. Will housing be approved next to Lairhillock

Primary for all their staff? Planning policy for housing is restrictive for a reason, there is no

essential need for a house alongside the nursery.

The site is possibly contaminated too due to previous uses on/adjacent to the site, and unsuitable

for development without significant ground investigation and remediation.

 

There are multiple reasons to refuse the application on this site. The previous approval has proven

Page 153
Item 5



to be undeliverable, it was recommended for refusal by the planners previously, and the failure to

deliver and resolve the drainage issues should see this repeat application refused.

Page 154
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Sarah Walters

Address: 2 Stipeside Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3AB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I object to the house and nursery at Rothnick Croft APP/2022/1845.

 

The applicant's site causes water runoff to neighbouring land causing problems with flooding and

animal welfare.

The proposal has no drainage solution that is deliverable, with no capacity to discharge to the

nearby watercourse remaining, and the development is reliant upon land they do not own or have

rights to. The lack of any deliverable drainage solution fails to meet planning policy.

The site is remote and unsustainable for a use with potentially high visitors, causing traffic and

safety impacts on local roads.

The application should be refused.

Page 155
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Sylvia  Pike

Address: Burnside Farm Maryculter Aberdeen AB12 5GX

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279

 

This renewal is unwarranted as the applicant has had some 3 plus years to commence building

subject to complying with the conditions attached to the grant of permission but has not done so.

 

The applicants agent in submitting the renewal does reference the rock formation that has

prevented an acceptable drainage solution being proven by a suitably qualified professional adept

in these matters.

 

An installation of 2 composting toilets as approved by a subsequent planning application would

strongly suggest there is a drainage problem that has yet to be resolved.

 

The original planning application was recommended by Council planners for refusal and the

factors for this opinion are as relevant today as then, perhaps more so as there has been no

supporting evidence for justification of developing a greenbelt site or mitigation for private

transport to the site in the absence of any public bus service or other means.

Page 156
Item 5



Comments for Planning Application APP/2022/1845

 

Application Summary

Application Number: APP/2022/1845

Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft Netherley Stonehaven AB39 3QU

Proposal: Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions),

Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse

(Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279)

Case Officer: David Niven

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Tammy Stevenson

Address: 7 Stripeside Netherley AB39 3AB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The application is significantly flawed, and fails to comply with -

B1 as the employment use is not accessibly located or on allocated land.

R2 as there is no justification for a house or business.

P1 as the site is not safe and pleasant or well connected; it is remote and isolated and

unsustainable.

P4 as the site is contaminated and water run-off from previous uses has spread contamination to

adjacent fields.

E2 as the site is prominent and development will harm the green landscape visible from the

passing AWPR.

C4 as the site has no drainage solution and already contributes to flooding of adjacent land.

RD1 as the site is not safely accessible and has no drainage solution.

 

The applicant has not been able to meet the condition added when the Committee approved the

previous proposal.

Whilst the applicant obtained some comments in support to that application, suggesting there was

perhaps high demand for a nursery which perhaps swayed Councillors on the merits of the

application, the support does not appear to remain. If there was such genuine support for a viable

business that could be delivered, then it would have happened by now. 4 years have gone by, and

the development is no further forward.

 

The inability to provide a drainage solution, and lack of demand/necessity for a nursery, leaves the

proposal undeliverable. The previous approval by Committee overlooked some of the key

technical considerations such as contamination, drainage and flood risk. These matters should be

Page 157
Item 5



investigated in full during this repeat application before any decision can be made. If there is no

certainty over the applicant's ability to provide a proper drainage solution, the application must be

refused. To leave this matter to a condition which cannot be met, is not competent.

 

There is no need for a house alongside the nursery, it is not a function requiring a 24-hour

presence or significant safety surveillance at all hours, it is a business that would operate in the

day and be locked at night. If a house is approved for a nursery worker, then any employee may

have cause to apply for a house near their place of work setting an undesirable precedent.

 

The lack of a condition on the previous consent to ensure the nursery was built before/in tandem

with the house was perhaps an oversight. If there was a genuine case for the full development a

condition to secure the nursery before the house should have been attached.

 

Please refuse the application and stop this development causing flooding and drainage problems

for existing local residents.

Page 158
Item 5



Deeside Piper
URN: MJP0674591    Date: 09/09/2022    Section: ROP
Advertiser: Aberdeenshire Council    Page: 28/32

ARTS CRAFTS & HOBBIES

CLASSIFIED

PLEASE
mention this
newspaper
when you

respond to an
advertisement

Thanks

28 Deeside Piper Friday, September 9, 2022

ABERDEENSHIRE COUNCIL
TOWNAND COUNTRY PLANNING
(DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2013, Regulation 20(1) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDINGSAND
CONSERVATIONAREAS) (SCOTLAND)

ACT 1997, Regulation 60(2)(a) or 65(2)(a) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDING CONSENT
AND CONSERVATIONAREA CONSENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2015, Regulation 8

The applications listed below together with the
plans and other documents submitted with them
may be viewed electronically using the Planning
Register at https://upa.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/online-
applications/.
Comments may be made quoting the reference
number and stating clearly the grounds for making
comment. Comments can be submitted using the
Planning Register when viewing the application.
Alternatively, comments can be addressed to
Aberdeenshire Council, Planning and Economy
Service, Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ (or emailed to planningonline@
aberdeenshire.gov.uk). Please note that any comment
made will be published on the Planning Register.
Please note that even if you have made comments to
the applicant prior to this application being
submitted, or to the Council regarding a similar
application that has been made on this site before,
you will still need to make your comments to the
Council on the current application.
Commentsmust be received by 29 September
2022
Office dealing with applications listed below:
Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ
Address: Ivy Cottage, Cluniebank Road, Braemar,
Ballater, AB35 5ZP Proposal: Erection of Shed and
Fencing – APP/2022/1849
Address: Land to the East of Tannachie Farm
Cottage, Stonehaven Proposal: Erection of
Dwellinghouse and Installation of Air Source Heat
Pump – APP/2022/1862
Address: Plots 99, 100 & 101, Phase 4B Tarland
Road, Aboyne Proposal: Erection of 3
Dwellinghouses (Amendment to Planning Permission
Reference APP/2008/3443) – APP/2022/1875
Address: Rothesay Rooms, 3 Netherley Place,
Ballater, AB35 5QE Proposal: External Alterations
and Installation of Extract System, Formation of Bin
Store and Gate – APP/2022/1881
Address: Land to South of Wester Waterlair,
Fordoun, Laurencekirk, AB30 1JD Proposal:
Erection of Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1838
Address: Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft,
Netherley, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU Proposal:
Erection of Children’s Day Care Nursery (Class 10
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children’s
Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection
of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission
APP/2018/1279) – APP/2022/1845
Address: 7 Fetteresso Castle, Fetteresso,
Stonehaven, AB39 3UR Proposal: Installation of
Flue and Internal Boiler – APP/2022/1843
Address: Springfield, West Brae, Johnshaven,
DD10 0HJ Proposal: Part-Removal of a Non-
Load Bearing Partition Wall (Retrospective) –
APP/2022/1870
Address: Land at Cairnadrochit Road,
Cairnadrochit, Braemar Proposal: Erection of
Staff Welfare Facility – APP/2022/1821
Address: Struan Cottage, 6 Dundarroch Road,
Ballater, AB35 5NP Proposal: Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse and Erection of Car
Port/Workshop – APP/2022/1869
Office dealing with applications listed below:
45 Bridge Street, Ellon, AB41 9AA
Address: Longdrum, Whitecairns, AB23 8UP
Proposal: Change of Use of Agricultural Land to
Class 9 (Retrospective) and Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1669

For your FREE cash offer, visit

HOUSE BUYER
BUR E AU

FAST FOR
CASH

SELLYOURHOUSE

housebuyerbureau.co.uk/cash
Call free

0800 880 3232

SINCE 2010

BUYING

HOUSES

PLANNING NOTICES

PUBLIC NOTICES

A captivating
performance of a

woman fragmented.

"genuinely powerful...a captivating
portrait of a woman caught in the
dissonance of contradictory desires"

The List

Wednesday 28th September 2022
7:30pm - £10

Box office: 01330 825431
the Barn

Burn O Bennie, Banchory, Aberdeenshire AB31 5QA
www.thebarnarts.co.uk

TO ADVERTISE
CALL 0131 370 0846

WANTED

Page 159
Item 5



Mearns Leader
URN: MJP0674591    Date: 09/09/2022    Section: ROP
Advertiser: Aberdeenshire Council    Page: 26/32

ACCOUNTING & FINANCIAL
SERVICES

26 Mearns Leader Friday, September 9, 2022

TRAVEL

SALES

SERVICES

BUSINESS

PERSONAL

PUBLIC NOTICES

MOTORS

AGRICULTURE

JOBS

PROPERTY

PRIVATEADVERTISING:
advertising.scotland@nationalworld.com
01313700846(

TRADES&SERVICES:
advertising.scotland@nationalworld.com
01313700846(

JOBS:
jobs.north@nationalworld.com
0141 4734411(

PUBLIC&LEGALNOTICES:
publicnotices@nationalworld.com
02070237931(

TRADEPROPERTY:
advertising.scotland@nationalworld.com
01313700846(

TRADEMOTORS:
advertising.scotland@nationalworld.com
01313700846(

GET
INTOUCH

CLASSIFIED
DEADLINE:
17:00Tuesday

Acomplete version of our termsand
conditions canbe foundonline at
mearnsleader.co.uk

Index HOME SERVICES

LOOKING FOR
ANEWHOME?

VIEW PROPERTY FOR SALE
IN YOUR LOCAL AREA

DISCOVER HOMES

EVERY WEEK IN PAPER AND ONLINE

ABERDEENSHIRE COUNCIL
TOWNAND COUNTRY PLANNING
(DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2013, Regulation 20(1) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDINGSAND
CONSERVATIONAREAS) (SCOTLAND)

ACT 1997, Regulation 60(2)(a) or 65(2)(a) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDING CONSENT
AND CONSERVATIONAREA CONSENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2015, Regulation 8

The applications listed below together with the
plans and other documents submitted with them
may be viewed electronically using the Planning
Register at https://upa.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/online-
applications/.
Comments may be made quoting the reference
number and stating clearly the grounds for making
comment. Comments can be submitted using the
Planning Register when viewing the application.
Alternatively, comments can be addressed to
Aberdeenshire Council, Planning and Economy
Service, Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ (or emailed to planningonline@
aberdeenshire.gov.uk). Please note that any comment
made will be published on the Planning Register.
Please note that even if you have made comments to
the applicant prior to this application being
submitted, or to the Council regarding a similar
application that has been made on this site before,
you will still need to make your comments to the
Council on the current application.
Commentsmust be received by 29 September
2022
Office dealing with applications listed below:
Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ
Address: Ivy Cottage, Cluniebank Road, Braemar,
Ballater, AB35 5ZP Proposal: Erection of Shed and
Fencing – APP/2022/1849
Address: Land to the East of Tannachie Farm
Cottage, Stonehaven Proposal: Erection of
Dwellinghouse and Installation of Air Source Heat
Pump – APP/2022/1862
Address: Plots 99, 100 & 101, Phase 4B Tarland
Road, Aboyne Proposal: Erection of 3
Dwellinghouses (Amendment to Planning Permission
Reference APP/2008/3443) – APP/2022/1875
Address: Rothesay Rooms, 3 Netherley Place,
Ballater, AB35 5QE Proposal: External Alterations
and Installation of Extract System, Formation of Bin
Store and Gate – APP/2022/1881
Address: Land to South of Wester Waterlair,
Fordoun, Laurencekirk, AB30 1JD Proposal:
Erection of Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1838
Address: Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft,
Netherley, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU Proposal:
Erection of Children’s Day Care Nursery (Class 10
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children’s
Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection
of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission
APP/2018/1279) – APP/2022/1845
Address: 7 Fetteresso Castle, Fetteresso,
Stonehaven, AB39 3UR Proposal: Installation of
Flue and Internal Boiler – APP/2022/1843
Address: Springfield, West Brae, Johnshaven,
DD10 0HJ Proposal: Part-Removal of a Non-
Load Bearing Partition Wall (Retrospective) –
APP/2022/1870
Address: Land at Cairnadrochit Road,
Cairnadrochit, Braemar Proposal: Erection of
Staff Welfare Facility – APP/2022/1821
Address: Struan Cottage, 6 Dundarroch Road,
Ballater, AB35 5NP Proposal: Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse and Erection of Car
Port/Workshop – APP/2022/1869
Office dealing with applications listed below:
45 Bridge Street, Ellon, AB41 9AA
Address: Longdrum, Whitecairns, AB23 8UP
Proposal: Change of Use of Agricultural Land to
Class 9 (Retrospective) and Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1669

It’s not just travel
insurance, it’s
travel reassurance!

Call us FREE 7 days a week

0800 033 4161
avanti.co.uk

Over 35,000 reviews

SAVE20%‡

SUMMER

Quote: 20NWD

SALE

‡Discount applies to the base premium of policy and not to any medical screening costs where
relevant. Terms, conditions and exclusions apply. Trustpilot rating correct at time of print.

staysure.co.uk

Call FREE 7 days a week

0800 033 4896

Splash out less on
travel insurance!

Quote: NWD20
Rated Excellent

‡Discount applies to the base premium of policy and not to any medical screening costs where relevant.

*Based on the volume of plans from a panel of lenders Q1 2021 – Q3 2021. Age
Partnership is a trading name of Age Partnership Limited, which is authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. FCA registered number 425432.
Company registered in England and Wales No. 5265969. VAT registration number
162 9355 92. Registered address, 2200 Century Way, Thorpe Park, Leeds, LS15
8ZB. We offer a comprehensive range of equity release products from across the
market. Correct at time of print.

Equity reelease
a lifetimee mortg
is a loan secure
yyoouurr hhoommmmee,, oorr aa
reversionn plan. I
the valuee of you
and requuires pa
any existting mo
The monney rele
interest, wwill be a
upon deaath or
long-termm care.
release mmay aff
eennttiittlleemmeeenntt ttoo
means-tested b
now or in the fu
A personalised
illustration will explaain
features and risks.

Freephone 08000 810 817
To find out how much cash you could release, call

Releasse tax
home yyou l

Get rid of your
monthly mortgage
repayments

PLANNING NOTICES

PUBLIC NOTICESSERVICES

Page 160
Item 5



Ellon Times
URN: MJP0674591    Date: 08/09/2022    Section: ROP
Advertiser: Aberdeenshire Council    Page: 25/32

survey
your
best

career
options

with

Scotland
on Sunday

Ellon Times 25

GENERAL
NOTICES

Thursday, September 8, 2022

Councillor Gillian Owen
(Ward 9 Ellon
& District)

is available for consultation
onTuesday 13th September
at Market Street, Ellon –
under the cover across
the road from Rowlands
Pharmacy from 5-5.30pm
and on Saturday 24th
September at the Farmers
Market, Neil Ross Square,
Ellon from 10.30-11.30am.

ABERDEENSHIRE COUNCIL
TOWNAND COUNTRY PLANNING
(DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2013, Regulation 20(1) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDINGSAND
CONSERVATIONAREAS) (SCOTLAND)

ACT 1997, Regulation 60(2)(a) or 65(2)(a) or
PLANNING (LISTED BUILDING CONSENT
AND CONSERVATIONAREA CONSENT

PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND)
REGULATIONS 2015, Regulation 8

The applications listed below together with the
plans and other documents submitted with them
may be viewed electronically using the Planning
Register at https://upa.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/online-
applications/.
Comments may be made quoting the reference
number and stating clearly the grounds for making
comment. Comments can be submitted using the
Planning Register when viewing the application.
Alternatively, comments can be addressed to
Aberdeenshire Council, Planning and Economy
Service, Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ (or emailed to planningonline@
aberdeenshire.gov.uk). Please note that any comment
made will be published on the Planning Register.
Please note that even if you have made comments to
the applicant prior to this application being
submitted, or to the Council regarding a similar
application that has been made on this site before,
you will still need to make your comments to the
Council on the current application.
Commentsmust be received by 29 September
2022
Office dealing with applications listed below:
Viewmount, Arduthie Road, Stonehaven,
AB39 2DQ
Address: Ivy Cottage, Cluniebank Road, Braemar,
Ballater, AB35 5ZP Proposal: Erection of Shed and
Fencing – APP/2022/1849
Address: Land to the East of Tannachie Farm
Cottage, Stonehaven Proposal: Erection of
Dwellinghouse and Installation of Air Source Heat
Pump – APP/2022/1862
Address: Plots 99, 100 & 101, Phase 4B Tarland
Road, Aboyne Proposal: Erection of 3
Dwellinghouses (Amendment to Planning Permission
Reference APP/2008/3443) – APP/2022/1875
Address: Rothesay Rooms, 3 Netherley Place,
Ballater, AB35 5QE Proposal: External Alterations
and Installation of Extract System, Formation of Bin
Store and Gate – APP/2022/1881
Address: Land to South of Wester Waterlair,
Fordoun, Laurencekirk, AB30 1JD Proposal:
Erection of Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1838
Address: Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft,
Netherley, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU Proposal:
Erection of Children’s Day Care Nursery (Class 10
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children’s
Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection
of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission
APP/2018/1279) – APP/2022/1845
Address: 7 Fetteresso Castle, Fetteresso,
Stonehaven, AB39 3UR Proposal: Installation of
Flue and Internal Boiler – APP/2022/1843
Address: Springfield, West Brae, Johnshaven,
DD10 0HJ Proposal: Part-Removal of a Non-
Load Bearing Partition Wall (Retrospective) –
APP/2022/1870
Address: Land at Cairnadrochit Road,
Cairnadrochit, Braemar Proposal: Erection of
Staff Welfare Facility – APP/2022/1821
Address: Struan Cottage, 6 Dundarroch Road,
Ballater, AB35 5NP Proposal: Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse and Erection of Car
Port/Workshop – APP/2022/1869
Office dealing with applications listed below:
45 Bridge Street, Ellon, AB41 9AA
Address: Longdrum, Whitecairns, AB23 8UP
Proposal: Change of Use of Agricultural Land to
Class 9 (Retrospective) and Alterations and
Extension to Dwellinghouse – APP/2022/1669

PLANNING NOTICESPUBLIC
NOTICES

Tel: 0131 370 0846

Page 161
Item 5



From: Peter Stanworth <peter.stanworth@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 
Sent: Monday, February 19, 2024 11:33 AM
To: Local Review Body Submissions <localreviewbodysubmissions@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>
Cc: Gayle Buchan <gayle.buchan@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>; Michal Cieslewicz 
<michal.cieslewicz@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>
Subject: APP/2018/1279 review

Good morning,

I have considered my predecessors original reply which I have attached, I agree with the decisions 
that Lesley made at the time. If however you have any further questions or require any more 
information or advice, please contact me directly. 

The only difference from the time of the original application is that we now collect three waste 
streams Waste, Black bin. Paper & card, Blue bin and Cans and plastic containers, Orange bin. So 
adequate storage would be required. I have also attached the dimensions for our current collection 
vehicles.

Thank you for submitting your intentions for my attention.

Kind Regards

P Stanworth

Peter Stanworth

Waste Services Leader
Infrastructure Services
Aberdeenshire South 

Tel 01467 533445
Mob 07570 951096

Peter.stanworth@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

   Quick Notes Page 2    

Page 162
Item 5



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
Our Ref:    
Your Ref: APP/2018/1279 
 
      
      
      
      
      
 
Please ask for:  Lesley Forrest 
Direct Dial: 01467 536662 
      
 
Date: 29/06/2018  
 

If you have difficulty reading this document please contact Lesley Forrest 
on 01467 536662 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Proposal: Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care Nursery (Class 10 
Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife 
Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft, 
Netherley, Stonehaven, Aberdeenshire, AB39 3QU Grid Reference: 387228.795779 
 
Thank you for submitting the Planning Application to my service for review and comment.   
 
Waste management has no objection subject to the following conditions being met and the 
proposed layout being designed to the satisfaction of Roads Development. 
 
The lorry travels from West to East therefore can the bin store please be built on the left side of 
the road entrance bell-mouth (as you look at the property from the road).  That way, when the 
lorry pulls in the bins are naturally to the rear of the lorry for safe emptying.  

 
The bins will need to be enclosed on at least 3 sides to prevent them from escaping onto the 
road and situated behind the visibility splay in accordance with Roads Management 
requirements.   
 

 
Access 
In all cases, vehicular access is of paramount importance.  Collection vehicles are generally 
Large Goods Vehicles (LGV) of approximately 10 metres in length and require adequate space 
to manoeuvre.  They have a turning circle of 21.5 metres diameter. Where possible the need 
for these large vehicles to reverse should be negated/minimised.  Refuse vehicles should in any 
case not be required to reverse for a distance greater than 12 metres in accordance with British 
Standard 5906:2005. 

Infrastructure Services   

Waste Management   

Unit 7 Harlaw Way   

Harlaw Industrial Estate 

 

  

Inverurie 

 

  

Aberdeenshire   

AB51 4SG   

Tel  03456 08 12 07   

Fax     

www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk   

        

Page 163
Item 5



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 

 
It should be noted that where vehicles are expected to access a private development the road 
surface should be constructed of adequate quality to withhold the weight of vehicles up to 32 
tonnes Gross Vehicle Weight. 
 
The Council will also not take responsibility for fair wear and tear where access into private 
developments is requested.  In the event that a private road falls below an acceptable standard 
or that access becomes difficult for any reason for refuse/recycling vehicles the collection point 
will revert to the nearest public road.  Documents outlining the dimensions including turning 
circles of the refuse collection vehicles currently in service are attached to this letter. 
 
 
Commercial Developments 
It is difficult to assess the needs of any commercial development before it is occupied but space 
should be designated for storage of waste/recycling containers bearing in mind that some 
establishments may use large industrial type skips.  If there is a likelihood of any food premise 
being installed then it should be noted that this type of business usually generates significant 
volumes of waste.  It is desirable for commercial premises to have some indoor space allocated 
for storage of waste or recyclables.  Outdoor bin storage should be enclosed on 3 sides to 
prevent receptacles from moving away from their storage points. 
 
 
All businesses will be affected by the new Waste (Scotland) Regulations 2012 and we 
recommend that applicants for commercial developments familiarise themselves with these, 
more information can be found here: 
 
http://www.sepa.org.uk/waste/moving_towards_zero_waste/zero_waste_regulations.aspx 
 
 
Yours Faithfully 
 

 
 
Lesley Forrest 
Support Leader 
 
attachments: 
Mercedes Econic Turning Circles 
Mercedes Econic Front and Rear Plan 

Page 164
Item 5



Page 165
Item 5



Weight Distribution Calculation Page 1 of 2

CHASSIS:- MERCEDES ECONIC 2630LL EURO 6 6X2 REAR-STEER 4500mm W/B 1350mm BOGIE

BODY TYPE: POWERLINK 16

TAILGATE:- OPTIMISED POD:- 5M POD

HOIST:- TERBERG OMNIDEL LOAD CELLS:- NOT FITTED

DRAWING:- H1M2C605 Rev0 REVISION:- 0

DENSITY:- 600 kg/cu.m (COMPACTOR BODY)

DENSITY:- 500 kg/cu.m (POD BODY)

CHASSIS SPECIFICATION:- AXLE 1 - 8000 kg

Permitted (plated) Loading per axle AXLE 2 - 11500 kg

AXLE 3 - 7500 kg 19000 kg

Total Permitted (plated) GVW 26000 kg

UNLADEN CHASSIS:- AXLE 1 - 4440 kg

Weight of chassis per axle AXLE 2 - 2200 kg

AXLE 3 - 890 kg

3090 kg

WEIGHT OF BODY :- 5195 kg

CoG  OF BODY:- 3366 mm NOTE:

CoG PAYLOAD:- 2257 mm Mount Position is from front of body

MOUNT POSITION:- 2400 mm to centre of front wheel

WEIGHT OF HOIST:- 595 kg

CoG OF HOIST:- 6080 mm

WEIGHT OF TAILGATE:- 0 kg

CoG OF TAILGATE:- 0 mm

WEIGHT OF EJECTOR PLATE:- 395 kg

CoG OF EJECTOR PLATE (RETRACTED):- 300 mm

WEIGHT OF RECYCLING POD:- 1750 kg

CoG OF RECYCLING POD:- 1500 mm

WEIGHT OF RECYCLED MATERIAL:- 2500 kg

CoG OF RECYCLED MATERIAL:- 1500 mm

WEIGHT OF DRIVER:- 80 kg

CoG OF DRIVER:- 0 mm

WEIGHT OF EJECTOR CYLINDER 160 kg

CoG OF EJECTOR CYLINDER (RETRACTED):- 200 mm

DIMENSION AXLE 1 TO AXLE 2 4500 mm

DIMENSION AXLE 1 TO AXLE 3 5850 mm

FRONT AXLE REAR AXLE TOTAL FRONT AXLE % REAR AXLE %

CHASSIS 4440 3090 7530

BODY & TAILGATE -757 5952 5195

PRIMARY HOIST -408 1003 595

TAILGATE 0 0 0

EJECTOR PLATE 183 212 395

RECYCLING POD 1228 522 1750

RECYCLED MATERIAL 0 0 0

DRIVER 80 0 80

EJECTOR CYLINDER 77 83 160

UNLADEN WEIGHT (EJECTOR RETRACTED) 4845 10860 15705 30.8 69.2

UNLADEN WEIGHT (EJECTOR EXTENDED) 4534 11171 15705 28.9 71.1

PLATED WEIGHT 8000 19000 26000

BASED ON PAYLOAD DENSITY OF: 600 kg/cu.m

RCV PAYLOAD 582 7213 7795

POD PAYLOAD 1755 745 2500

TOTAL AXLE LOAD 7182 18818 26000 27.6 72.4

BASED ON MAX REAR AXLE LOAD

RCV PAYLOAD 597 7395 7991

POD PAYLOAD 1755 745 2500

TOTAL AXLE LOAD 7196 19000 26196 27.5 72.5

BASED ON GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT

RCV PAYLOAD 582 7213 7795

POD PAYLOAD 1755 745 2500

TOTAL AXLE LOAD 7182 18818 26000 27.6 72.4

Permitted combined rear axle weight

Combined rear axle weight (unladen)

25

26

27

28

29

30

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

%
 O

F
 T

O
T

A
L

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 W
E

IG
H

T
 O

N
 F

R
O

N
T

 A
X

L
E

% OF PAYLOAD

Weight Distribution Throughout Loading Cycle

NOTE: Recycling Pod full

DISCLAIMER: DATA RELATING TO ANY PRODUCTS SUPPLIED BY HEIL FARID EUROPEAN CO LIMITED IS GIVEN IN GOOD FAITH, BUT HEIL FARID EUROPEAN CO LTD SHALL HAVE 

NO LIABILITY OF ANY NATURE SHOULD THERE BE A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN ANY PRODUCTS SUPPLIED AND SUCH DATA.

Page 166
Item 5



Page 167
Item 5



F
ro

n
t S

te
e
rin

g
 

A
x
le

 to
:

S
e

c
o

n
d

 A
x
le

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

3
.4

5
1

3
1

5
.1

3
.9

1
4

.2
1

6
.3

4
.2

1
5

1
7

.2

4
.5

1
5

.9
1

8
5

.7
1

9
.2

2
1

.3

F
ro

n
t S

te
e
rin

g
 A

x
le

 to
:

S
e

c
o

n
d

 A
x
le

T
h

ird
 A

x
le

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

3
.4

5
4

.8
1

3
1

5
.1

3
.9

5
.2

5
1

6
.1

1
8

.2
1

8
2

0
.1

1
4

.2
1

6
.3

4
.2

5
.5

5
1

6
.9

1
9

1
5

1
7

.2

4
.5

5
.8

5
1

5
.9

1
8

4
.8

6
.1

5
1

6
.7

1
8

.8

F
ro

n
t S

te
e
rin

g
 A

x
le

 to
:

S
e

c
o

n
d

 A
x
le

T
h

ird
 A

x
le

F
o

rth
 A

x
le

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

k
e
rb

 to
 k

e
rb

w
a
ll to

 w
a
ll

3
.7

5
1

.3
5

1
.3

5
1

9
.4

2
1

.5
1

5
.7

1
8

3
2

3
5

L
L

8
x
4
 re

a
r-s

te
e
r

2
6

3
0

L
2
6
t 6

x
2
 re

a
r-s

te
e
r

M
e
rc

e
d

e
s
-B

e
n

z
 E

c
o

n
ic

T
u

rn
in

g
 C

irc
le

s
a
ll d

im
e
n
s
io

n
s
 in

 m
 (to

le
ra

n
c
e
 +

0
.5

m
)

3
2

3
5

L
L

8
x
4
 m

id
-s

te
e
r

1
8

3
0

L
4
x
2

** e
xtra

 c
o
s
t

2
6

3
0

L
2
6
t 6

x
4

2
6

3
0

L
2
6
t 6

x
2
 m

id
-s

te
e
r

** e
xtra

 c
o
s
t

Page 168
Item 5



Subject Notice of Review: LRB 604 - Planning Application No. APP/2022/1845 (Rothnick Croft, 
Netherley) 

From Dave Pascoe

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 20 February 2024 18:57

You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important

FAO Local Review Body,

Notice of Review: LRB 604 - Planning Application No. APP/2022/1845 (Rothnick Croft, Netherley)

I welcomed the refusal of this flawed application and hope to see this appeal dismissed. This is not a 
rural outdoor nursery, it is a nursery building. It is not outdoor learning and such a justification can 
not be relied upon. The land is there already to provide outdoor learning, there is no need for such a 
large building. The applicant has an existing nursery nearby in Chapelton, this would be the same 
function but in a remote and unsustainable location which will rely on private car use, posing a road 
safety impact in terms of increased traffic and increased pollution. There is no drainage solution for 
the development either, whilst the applicant’s house has a right to drain via adjoining land they have 
no right to increase this. Whilst a civil matter to a degree, it is a planning matter to ensure that all 
technical requirements of any development are and can be met – in this case there is no drainage 
solution so the proposal can not be supported.

Regards,

David Pascoe

Notice of Review: LRB 604 - Planning Application No. 
APP/2022/1845 (Rothnick Croft, Netherley) 
27 February 2024 09:43

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 169
Item 5



Subject Planning Permission

From Sarah Walters

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 21 February 2024 10:26

You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important

Dear Sir / Madam,

I would like to make the following comments in relation to reference LRB 604 (Notice of Review -
APP/2022/1845) which is due to be considered at a Local Review Body meeting on the 26th of April 
2024. The appeallant’s drainage has been failing for a considerable time. For them to point blame 
in their statement on the neighbouring land owner is clutching at straws in a desperate attempt to 
force this issue. They do not have any drainage solution to serve this development, and the existing 
drainage is failing as evidenced by the waterlogged and saturated conditions in the areas along their 
outflow. This has caused flooding of adjoining land, to the detriment of horses that graze in the 
adjacent field. The site in general remains unsustainable for a high-traffic generating use which will 
impact on road safety and air pollution. A nursery should be in a town location. An outdoor learning 
space does not require a large purpose built environment, merely a cabin to shelter in extreme 
weather conditions. There is no justification for a house alongside any nursery provision, small class 
pets do not require a 24 hour presence on site. Please reject this appeal.

Yours Faithfully,
Sarah Walters

Planning Permission
27 February 2024 09:41

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 170
Item 5



Subject LRB 604 - New Notice of Review - APP/2018/1279 - Comments

From Calum MACPHERSON

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 21 February 2024 14:55

You don't often get email from . Learn why this is 
important

Good Afternoon,
I recently received a Notice of Review in relation to Planning Application No. APP/2018/1279 
(APP/2022/1845 being the renewal) Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven and 
respond as follows:
Without a drainage solution no development should be approved. This poses a danger to adjacent 
land in terms of flood risk and general health & safety. Whilst there are some “civil matters” 
surrounding the case in terms of land access, the simple fact remains that the appellant has not 
provided any comfort that they can deliver a drainage solution to serve the proposed 
development. This is a clear policy failing and a planning application cannot be approved without 
resolving such a matter. The original approval was procedurally flawed in terms of the Committee 
not giving due consideration to the drainage issues, and this was quite rightly rectified through the 
recent refusal. Until a separate, different and deliverable drainage solution is provided, and as I 
understand that could only be in a new location requiring a change to the planning application site 
boundary which cannot be captured under this proposal, then this application cannot be 
supported. Even with a drainage solution I have reservation over the appropriateness of the site for 
a nursery – it is unsustainable, will rely on private car use which will increase carbon emissions and 
create a road safety issue on local rural roads. There is no justification for a house even if the 
nursery finds support. Please dismiss this appeal.
Regards,
Calum MacPherson

LRB 604 - New Notice of Review - APP/2018/1279 -
Comments
27 February 2024 09:44

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 171
Item 5



Subject RE: LRB 604 - New Notice of Review - APP/2018/1279

From Daniel Harrington

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 26 February 2024 14:37

Attachments

APP_2022_
1845 Com...

You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important

Dear michael,

I have been requested to make comment on behalf of Mr Forbes to the Local Review Case. 
Do I send this to you, see attached?

Kind regards,

Daniel P Harrington
MA (Hons) MRTPI
Director

m 07557 238719
e daniel.harrington@THE-ap.co.uk
w  www.THE-ap.co.uk

Thain Harrington Edward
Chartered Architects and Town Planning Consultancy Limited
24 North Silver Street, Aberdeen AB10 1RL

This message is confidential and may be privileged. If it is not for you please inform us and then delete it. Any views or other information in this 
message which do not relate to our business are not authorised by us and are not the views of THE Architecture + Planning.
No liability is accepted for viruses and it is your responsibility to scan any attachments.

From: Michal Cieslewicz <michal.cieslewicz@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> On Behalf Of Local Review Body 
Submissions
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 4:26 PM
Subject: LRB 604 - New Notice of Review - APP/2018/1279

Dear Sir/Madam,
Please find attached a letter, which provides you with details of a Notice of Review, which has been 
submitted to the Local Review Body, which seeks a review, of the Appointed Officers decision to 
Refuse Planning Permission.

RE: LRB 604 - New Notice of Review - APP/2018/1279
27 February 2024 09:33

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 172
Item 5



Refuse Planning Permission.
As you made representations during the consultation period for this planning action, you are now 
afforded the opportunity to make any additional comments, in response to the Notice of Review.
Please ensure that all comments/submissions are submitted by the date indicated on the letter.
If you have any queries, please contact Alison Mcleod directly, or the Local Review Body email 
address, 
localreviewbodysubmissions@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
Regards,
Michal.

Michal Cieslewicz
Assistant Committee Officer 
Legal & People
Aberdeenshire Council 

Tel: 01467 534344
E-mail: Michal.cieslewicz@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

The Legal Service is operating a new case management system. If you follow this AskLegal link you 

will be taken to the AskLegal Portal where you can submit a request for help from Committee 
Services. Using the portal will automatically create a new matter in the system and will allow the work 
to be allocated quickly.

This e-mail may contain privileged information intended solely for the use of the 
individual to whom it is addressed. If you have received this e-mail in error, please 
accept our apologies and notify the sender, deleting the e-mail afterwards. Any views 
or opinions presented are solely those of the e-mail's author and do not necessarily 
represent those of Aberdeenshire Council. 

Dh’fhaodadh fiosrachadh sochaire, a tha a-mhàin airson an neach gu bheil am post-
dealain air a chur, a bhith an seo. Ma tha thu air am post-dealain fhaighinn mar 
mhearachd, gabh ar leisgeul agus cuir fios chun an neach a chuir am post-dealain 
agus dubh às am post-dealain an dèidh sin. ’S e beachdan an neach a chuir am 
post-dealain a tha ann an gin sam bith a thèid a chur an cèill agus chan eil e a’ 
ciallachadh gu bheil iad a’ riochdachadh beachdan Chomhairle Shiorrachd Obar 
Dheathain. 

www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk

   Quick Notes Page 2    

Page 173
Item 5



February 26, 2024 

Aberdeenshire Council 
ePlanning Team 

Sent by email to planning@aberdeenshire.gov.uk  

Dear Sir / Madam 

Re: Response to Notice of Review APP/2022/1845 Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft 
Netherley Stonehaven 

This representation has been prepared on behalf of Mr Deryck Forbes of Sunnybrae, 
Drumoak, Banchory, Aberdeenshire, AB31 5AD. The response is in addition to the comments 
made on the planning application.  

In summary the circumstances have changed since permission for development was 
previously granted contrary to recommendation and the Development Plan is more strongly 
opposed to development such as this, in locations that are not accessible by sustainable 
modes of travel. The Appellant has submitted insufficient detail as a part of this application to 
justify such a departure from the Development Plan. Of particular concern to Mr Forbes is the 
lack of suitable drainage for the following reasons:  

• The Appellant does not have the right to use or provide new infrastructure to the
north on land owned by Mr Forbes.

• There has not been any suitable drainage design or details submitted with the
application to allow the relevant consultees to be satisfied

• The Appellant has provided no details of the connection to a water course.
• The existing dwelling is discharging both foul water and surface water to the same

pipe on Mr Forbes’ land, which is currently overwhelming the existing field drain. This
would not be adequate for additional drainage.

This Review must be determined on the basis of the information submitted with the 
application and the details related to drainage are insufficient to demonstrate compliance 
with the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan. More detailed comment is made below 
following the Appellant’s format in reference to the three reasons for refusal.  

Reason 1 – Location of Nursery 

The Appeal Site is located within the countryside in a rural location which is not on any bus 
route, not on an A or B class road which can accommodate much traffic and lies distant 
from any settlement which prevents any realistic connectivity by sustainable means due to 
the rural road network not being safe for pedestrian or cycle access to the site.  The newly 
adopted Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan (2023) Policy R2 would restrict employment 
proposals to brownfield sites only and would not support development in this location.  

The Appellant proposes a nursery building of 408sqm GIA. The play spaces total 248sqm and 
the Scottish Government standard of space (Early learning, childcare and out of school care 

Page 174
Item 5



 

services: design guidance1) indicates that play space should equal 3.7sqm per child under 2; 
2.8sqm for 2-3 year olds; and 2.3sqm for 3+ years. Using the 2.3sqm figure would provide a 
capacity of at least 67 children. Within previous documentation the applicant has made 
reference to expectation for 50 children. This is not a small nursery catering to a rural area 
given the scale and nature of the proposal.  
 
The Appellant’s case is principally, that permission should be granted as it was previously 
granted for the same proposal 5 years ago. The original decision on Application 
APP/2018/1279 was made in 06 February 2019 and expired two years ago on 06 February 
2022. There is a need to assess the proposal against the Development Plan, which has 
changed entirely since 2019 with the introduction of National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) in 
2023 and a new Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan (LDP) in 2023.  
 
The new Development Plan, particularly NPF4, puts much greater emphasis on sustainability 
and development being located in the right location, with particular focus on supporting 
local living and reducing the need to travel. NPF4 Policy 13 States “Development proposals 
for significant travel generating uses will not be supported in locations which would increase 
reliance on the private car, taking into account the specific characteristics of the area” 
NPF4 Policy 15 states “Development proposals will contribute to local living including, where 
relevant, 20 minute neighbourhoods.”  
 
LDP section on Shaping Development in the Countryside states that “We need to recognise 
the effect that rural living can have on wider aims shared with stakeholders on reducing the 
need to travel and on the issues of climate change and sustainable development.” The LDP 
identifies that Aberdeenshire is an area that “promotes sustainable development that 
reduces the need to travel, reduces reliance on private cars and promotes safe and 
convenient active travel opportunities”. This is in response to climate change and balancing 
economic growth and development with the need to protect and improve the environment.  

The proposed development is designed around the use of private car for transport and has 
no access to more sustainable modes of travel. The Local Development Plan seeks to 
balance the need for rural development and its sustainability. All aspects of this proposal fail 
to meet these policy expectations and are significantly contrary to the aims and objectives 
of the LDP. 

Information published by Aberdeenshire Council2 lists all of the nurseries available in the 
Portlethen cluster.  There is no evidence presented to suggest that there is insufficient 
capacity within these nurseries or that there is an unmet demand. Lairhillock Nursery located 
at the school is located within 1.5km of the application site and would be accessible to 
residents in the area surrounding the site. It is understood that there is capacity within this 
nursery.  

The only supporting reason offered for the location of the nursey is the benefits that children 
will gain from outdoor learning experiences and a questionable claim that a nursery in the 
countryside will assist efforts to reduce carbon emissions and adapt to climate change. 
Nursery Provision that meets guidance quoted does not require an out of town location. For 

 
1 Section Two: Environment - Early learning, childcare and out of school care services: design guidance - 
gov.scot (www.gov.scot) 
2 ELC Admission Booklet (aberdeenshire.gov.uk). 

Page 175
Item 5



 

example, the Great Western Nurseries3 in Portlethen provide outdoor facilities within an 
accessible location through the design and use of secure garden ground.  

Lairhillock Primary School (which has a nursery) meets the rural need, and they have access 
to outdoor learning. All schools have early years provision and there are private nurseries in 
all towns nearby – which are sustainably located. There is no demonstrated need for this 
facility to meet an educational need in this location. 

The previous approval now made 5 years ago was approved on the basis of two justification 
reports. No such information has been submitted with the Application or Appeal. The 
Appellant has offered limited evidence to justify why a departure is appropriate. This would 
be a nursey located with no access to sustainable modes of travel and the weight against a 
proposal such as this has shifted significantly towards refusal. 

it would not be possible for the planning authority to reach the same conclusion as in 2019 
based on the current Development Plan and lack of justification to support departure from 
the LDP.  

Reason 2 Need for Dwellinghouse 
 
Multiple schools across the country have small animals for learning purposes, they survive 
without a member of staff living in the school or on school grounds. Animals get tended to 
during the day, fed, then left overnight. To care for “pets” is not justification for a house.  A 
Nursery is not a primary industry, if the house was associated with agriculture or forestry there 
would be a need to justify an additional on-site presence. There is already an associated 
presence on site with the applicant residing at Rothnick Croft which would be within 100m or 
so of the nursery building and meet any need for out of hours attendance to the nursery.  
There are also several houses being built close by at Whiteside, Stripeside and Lairhillock 
which offer accommodation, or in the major allocated site at Chapelton.  

The justification for the dwellinghouse in the previous application 5 years ago relied on a 
comparison of existing properties available within close proximity and the costs to build a 
new dwelling house on the site. The evidence presented was from May 2018 and is no longer 
of any relevance to this application. Given the departure from policy and the lack of 
supporting justification for the dwelling there is no justification presented to consider 
departure from LDP Policy R2 for supporting a dwelling at this location.  

Reason 3 Drainage Solution 
 
The Appellant raises questions as to why the condition previously applied on drainage 
cannot be used for this application. The drainage layout submitted with the Application 
shows installation of an overflow outlet pipe from the detention pond to join an installed drain 
located within land owned by Forbes Homes. The Applicant has no right or title to use, for the 
drainage or sewerage of the proposed nursery development (or any other proposed 
development on that land), any watercourses, pipes, connections, drains and sewers in and 
under any part of Mr Forbes’ Land (whether directly or via Rothnick Croft). There is therefore 
no legal basis on which the proposed nursery development or the land on which it is situated 
can be drained as proposed. 
 
It is not only the lack of rights for connection which are of concern for the Appeal. There is 
also a lack of detail as to how compliance with the Development Plan can be achieved 

 
3 Portlethen 1 Details (greatwesternps.co.uk) 

Page 176
Item 5



 

through condition. The condition used previously on application APP/2018/1279 required 
details that the existing pipe to the watercourse is functioning without fault. This condition 
was based on a 100mm piped system to a suitable watercourse. What exists is a clay field 
drain that is outwith the application site and to a connection point to a watercourse that is 
unknown and not identified on plans. The information enclosed with this response (Appendix 
1) provides further information on the technical failings of the proposal. Access for additional 
properties will not be permitted as there is no available capacity for any more properties to 
discharge to this watercourse with a nearby development at Stripeside already discharging 
into this watercourse under a CAR licence. Appendix 2 identifies the current situation at the 
drainage connection with the house currently overwhelming the existing field drain.  
 
Policy RD1 states that “Surface water drainage must be dealt with in a sustainable manner, in 
ways that promote its biodiversity value, and in ways that avoid pollution and flooding, 
through the use of an integrated Sustainable Drainage System.” (RD1.13). The drain is already 
being overwhelmed by surface and sewage from the existing dwellinghouse and causing 
pollution and flooding.  

Given the lack of detail submitted with the application on where surface water will be 
directed to, and how it will be suitably managed, the Planning Authority is not able to ensure 
that the drainage will not result in flooding on neighbouring land. Flooding have objected to 
the application and the Council’s Report of Handling states that “inability to provide 
updated drainage information or offer an alternative drainage solution under cover of this 
application, leaves the development site with no functional or deliverable drainage 
solution”.  
 
 
 
Faithfully, 

Daniel Harrington 
Director 
T +44 (0) 1224 586277   M +44 (0) 7557238719 | Daniel.Harrington@THE-ap.co.uk 
 
Enc – 
Appendix 1 Letter from S.A. McGregor 
Appendix 2 Flooding Issues 
 
 

Page 177
Item 5



Appendix 1 Letter from S.A. McGregor  

Page 178
Item 5



Page 1 of 3 

 

  
 
 
Mr Deryck Forbes       Our Ref: SAM 2193 

        Date: 23 February 2024 
 
 
 

 

RE: Proposed New development on Land at Rothnick Croft, Netherley, APP/2018/1279 
 

S.A McGregor Geotechnical & Environmental On-Site Services provide engineering services including 
assessment of and design of drainage solutions. Designs previously submitted for drainage were 
prepared by our company and this note has been prepared to summarise the drainage matters as they 
relate to the above application.  
 

2013 
S. A. McGregor was first involved in developments at Rothnick Croft in 2013. 
 

The first development was for a replacement house comprising the demolition of the former cottage 
and erection of the new existing dwellinghouse. 
 

The former cottage was served by a septic tank with existing discharge to the drain at the rear/north 
of the site. 
 

The Netherley area is renowned for variable and often poor drainage properties of the underlying sub-
soils and a generally high groundwater table. 
 

At this time the existing foul water discharge, which served the original cottage, was upheld for the 
new dwellinghouse, with the recommendation that the septic tank was replaced by a more modern 
Package Sewage Treatment Plant (PSTP) in line with requirements of SEPA for the provision of 
secondary treatment prior to discharge to a waterbody. 
 

The surface waters from the new house development were also directed to the existing discharge 
point. 
 

S. A. McGregor were assured at the time that the applicants/homeowners had permission/servitude 
to continue to utilise this discharge into and through the neighboring land on property they did not 
own. 
 
2018 
In 2018 S. A. McGregor was again involved at Rothnick Croft for the new planning application on land 
at Rothnick Croft for the New Nursery and Dwellinghouse. 
 

Site investigations and ground assessment were undertaken, and drainage recommendations made. 
 

The proposed drainage is quite extensive with a very large foul water soakaway associated with a new 
PSTP and a large surface water pond/wetland.  
 

The pond was designed with an overflow outlet which would join the existing dwellinghouse discharge 
drain. 
 

Again, S. A. McGregor were assured that full rights to this discharge were in place. 

Serenje, Kingsford Steadings 
Alford, Aberdeenshire, AB33 8HN 

 

Page 179
Item 5



Page 2 of 3 

 

2022 
The 2018 application was recommended for refusal due to significant concerns and policy failings 
outlined by planning, and objection by flooding due to the lack of drainage solution. The approval 
contained a condition in relation to drainage which could not be met having not being implemented.   
 
A renewal application was applied for, and therefore S. A. McGregor were asked to comment on the 
proposed drainage recommendations. 
 

Since the original 2018 report there have been changes to the requirements of SEPA, Building 
Standards and Scottish Water for the provision of surface water disposal. 
 

These changes include for the increase in both the frequency and the amount of rainfall which has 
been very evident with recent flooding events causing overtopping of watercourses, waterlogging of 
land and overwhelming existing drainage systems. 
 

The applicant continues to maintain a right to use the existing discharge for the new development, 
however, the rights to the discharge were in place for the replacement house only and do not extend 
to any additional waters from the new application site. 
 
2023 
A brief walkover was undertaken by S. A. McGregor in early November 2023 after storm Babet to view 
the area of the existing discharge in the landowner’s field to the north of Rothnick Croft. 
 

The area was very waterlogged and the waterbody at the discharge was very grey indicating a failure 
of the drainage system because it had been overwhelmed by the combined drain from the 
dwellinghouse.  
 

It also appeared some excavations had been undertaken which may also have compromised the system 
causing it to fail with blockages, adding in new pipework or misaligning the original pipework within 
the boundary of Rothnick Croft.   
 

The pipework within the boundary of Rothnick Croft is 110mm diameter PVC but is connected to what 
is believed to be unglazed fireclay porous pipes (traditional field drains) which are in sections 380mm 
long with an internal diameter of 90-95mm.   
 

These types of porous sectional pipes are used for field drainage only, for gathering surface waters 
allowing natural seepage into the sub-soils and only small amounts of overflow to a nearby 
watercourses if available. 
 

These drains are not considered suitable for transporting large concentrations of surface waters which 
the applicant is proposing to do from his property across the neighbouring land and potentially to a 
watercourse.  
 

Currently the main field drain, approximately 300m in length, is likely to be collecting from smaller 
diameter porous drains formed in a traditional herringbone style used in farmland across Scotland. 
 

This style of drainage has no form of inspection nor sampling chambers generally required for 
domestic/commercial drainage use. 
 

The foul water currently discharging from the treatment plant of Rothnick Croft is via a 110mm PVC 
pipe into a fireclay porous pipe, a fireclay porous pipe is not suitable and should be a solid sealed pipe.  
 

The natural field drainage coupled with the drainage from the new dwellinghouse at Rothnick Croft 
connected via a slightly larger 110mm diameter drain is already causing the field drain system to 
become overwhelmed. This is causing silting up, blockages, backing up and leaking through the butted 
drain joints causing the adjacent field to flood. 
 

Page 180
Item 5



Page 3 of 3 

 

The nature of the field drains buried in the ground makes it difficult to clear blockages and repair burst 
sections without digging up large areas of the field causing problems for the landowner. 
 
It is evident that the existing drainage system does not appear to be coping well with the existing 
loading on it and therefore extremely unlikely to cope with additional loading from the proposed 
development for which it was not designed and installed to cope with. 
 

Additional surface waters from the proposed development may therefore have a detrimental impact 
on the neighboring land and the wider water environment. 
 
 
S. A. McGregor have since been informed that the applicants only have limited servitude rights in 
relation to the original cottage.  
 
The proposed continued use of the existing discharge drain through the adjacent land for the new 
development at Rothnick Croft has not been detailed to show how surface water will be appropriately 
managed from the development. There is no detail on upgrades required to existing drains out with 
the application site and therefore the proposed drainage design cannot be fully implemented.   
 
 
Without Prejudice 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
S. A. McGregor  
Geotechnical & Environmental On-Site Services 
 
 
 
 

Page 181
Item 5



Appendix 2 Flooding Issues 

Surface Water run-off from Rothnick Croft increased when the new dwelling house was 
constructed in place of the old croft (APP/2013/1809) with significant land raising undertaken 
and increased rainwater run-off from the house and garage roof areas along with the drive, 
significantly increasing and exceeding the capacity of the existing drainage arrangement 
within the field to the North, leading to flooding and water logging on the land 

The applicant has investigated drainage solutions at Rothnick Croft and has installed a gully 
arrangement and pipes on the north boundary of the property. This has created blockages 
within the existing field drainage. Figure 1 provides an outline of the existing drainage 
installed at this location.  

At times of higher rainfall the water run-off flows down the public road and into Forbes 
Homes’ fields as shown in Figure 2 and 3. 

Figure 2 Aerial view of ponding at drainage outfall 

Page 182
Item 5



Figure 3 View of ponding at drainage outfall 

The fields to the north of the application site are used for keeping horses and Forbes Homes’ 
tenant has suffered harm to the horses resulting from flooding. The tenant (Karina Yule) has 
experienced increased costs from her local vet due to issues with several of the horse’s feet 
(as a result of the wet conditions) including issues such as abscesses and bacterial infections 
and suffered the loss of 5 horses.  

Page 183
Item 5



Subject Rothnick Croft, LRB 604 representation

From Cameron Forbes

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 27 February 2024 13:43

You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important

Dear Sir / Madam,

The appellant appears to not understand the material change since their original application. There 
has been new local and national planning policy documents, which allow for a fresh appraisal of an 
application to ensure continued compliance (if it existed in the first place). Whilst weight is given to 
the planning history, that does not permit an automatic renewal. All material considerations must 
be taken into account, and primarily includes the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023, 
National Planning Framework 4, and the previous planning application. The policy context is firmer 
now than it was at the time of the original decision, and this proposal fails to comply. In terms of the 
planning history, the decision making process, content of that application and consideration by the 
Committee are all material. The drainage information was inaccurate and is now out of date and 
can’t be relied upon, hence requests to update and provide certainty that a solution exists. There is 
no solution so that is a clear material consideration. The decision making process is also material, 
the Committee did not give any consideration to the technical failing and lack of drainage solution.
The application, whilst a “renewal” is still seeking consent for a nursery and dwelling.  It must be 
assessed against current planning policy and take account of material considerations.
I draw your attention to our representation, sent in by Burness Paull, to this application.  The 
appellant has no drainage solution to serve this proposal.  Nobody is disputing their existing house 
has drainage rights across neighbouring land, but they have no rights to increase the burden, ie 
connect additional development, to that drainage infrastructure.  I appreciate this is a civil matter to 
a degree, but it very much informs the fact the appellant can not provide drainage for their 
development which is a very simple and basic planning policy failing.
The original drainage reports in the 2018 application were flawed.  Revisions during that application 
raised some questions, and when the Committee failed to adequately consider the matter problems 
arose with the Council’s flooding team expressing great concern due to the lack of any deliverable or 
functional drainage solution.  The planners, seemingly stuck between a rock and a hard place, 
attempt to facilitate a solution through a questionable planning condition.  Since then the condition 
has not been met, and the revised application offered a chance for further scrutiny to firm up on a 
deliverable and functional drainage solution which has not been forthcoming.  This technical failing 
has quite rightly contributed to the refusal of the application, and beyond any subjective support for 
the principle of a nursery, the drainage failing can not be set aside or dismissed.  The appeal must be 
dismissed on this basis – there is no drainage solution that can be delivered by the appellant that lies 
within the application site boundary for this proposal.  They need to look elsewhere and discharge 
by different means, in a different direction, on land that they could actually have control/rights to 
drain over.  That can only be done by a completely new application due to the necessary change in 
application red line site.
Beyond the significant technical failing and inability to provide a drainage solution, the proposal 
remains flawed in terms of the unsustainable location and large scale nursery proposed.  The 
justification on the basis of outdoor learning is in conflict with what is proposed – a large building 
with indoor learning space.  Outdoor learning would use the land/trees as the education space, 
perhaps with a small cabin for shelter.  The portacabin toilets approved on the site adhere to that 
function, but this large nursery building is not outdoor learning, it is simply a large Class 10 unit 
which as per planning policy should be in town centre locations; Policy P6 states Proposals for Use 
Classes 10 and 11 (Non-residential institutions and Leisure uses) will only be allowed outwith a town 
centre where a sequential approach has failed to identify a town centre location, otherwise Policy B1 

Rothnick Croft, LRB 604 representation
27 February 2024 13:47

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 184
Item 5



centre where a sequential approach has failed to identify a town centre location, otherwise Policy B1 
Town Centre Development will apply.  There is no sequential test in the original application, and the 
applicant does already own a nursery nearby in Chapelton, which is very much in a suitable 
location.  The same locational and sustainable focus is prevalent throughout NPF4.  The proposed 
nursery fails to meet any policy of local and national policy.

Yours Faithfully,
Cameron Forbes
(on behalf of Forbes Homes Ltd)

   Quick Notes Page 2    

Page 185
Item 5



Subject LRB 604 - Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven

From Jill Thomson

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 26 February 2024 22:42

You don't often get email from  Learn why this is important

Dear Sir / Madam,

APP/2022/1845 (renewal application for APP/2018/1279) is remote and isolated, therefore reliant 
on the private car which flies in the face of local and national policy, and does nothing for the global 
climate emergency. If this was to be a proper outdoor nursery, as exists elsewhere in the region, 
there would be no building required – the kids arrive and explore and learn in the outdoor 
setting. The original case for the proposal was not justified in terms of the case for a nursery, the 
justification for a house alongside was incredibly weak, and the application contained no drainage 
solution. When approved by the Kincardine and Mearns Committee they saw merit in the nursery, 
did not seem to scrutinise the weak case for a house which is very concerning, and paid no attention 
to the lack of a drainage solution which is of significant concern. With this repeat application the 
planning service were allowed to review the proposal and address the failings through the new local 
and national planning policies, which are materially different to what was in place during the original 
application. The case against a nursery in a remote location is strengthened by new policy seeking 
accessible developments, with class 10 uses specifically directed to town centres. There is no scope 
whatsoever for a house on this site. A further material consideration goes back to the questionable 
condition attached to the original approval, with the planning service quite rightly seeking comfort 
on the drainage before any permission could be granted. The failing to meet that condition is not 
about access rights to inspect an already failing drainage pipe, it is quite simply that Rothnick Croft 
has drainage rights but nothing else beyond that does. The applicant must provide a proper up to 
date drainage report to demonstrate a separate deliverable drainage system can be provided for the 
house and nursery, but they can’t. Without this, the application can not be supported.
It has been brought to my attention that the original consulting engineer the applicant used in their 
previous application has since confirmed that they were misled and that their drainage report was 
based on false information, and that the pipe in the ground is not what they were told it was – a 
field drain to gather water rather than proper pipes to transport water away from a property. As 
such, not only is the drainage report in the previous application well out of date, it was never 
accurate or suitable in the first instance. Regardless of legal rights to put any further drainage down 
that pipe, it is clear the drainage is failing at present and not fit for current purposes and not capable 
of taking any additional burden. The only option is to refuse this application.

Yours Faithfully,
Jill Thomson

LRB 604 - Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherley, 
Stonehaven
27 February 2024 13:51

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 186
Item 5



Subject LRB 604 (Notice of Review - APP/2022/1845)

From TAMMY STEVENSON

To Local Review Body Submissions

Sent 26 February 2024 21:32

You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important

Good Evening,

The following response is in relation to the above Notice of Review which I 

received details of from the Local Review Body. The planner quite rightly 

refused this application, which is what should have happened in the 

original. The Councillors did not fully consider the proposal, neglecting the 

drainage failings. Policy has evolved now too, which despite the appellant 
claiming there is no material change – the new local development plan and 
national planning framework are clearly material changes and put greater 
emphasis on sustainable development, development being in the right location, 
reducing carbon emissions, prioritising tackling the climate crisis, adhering to 20 
minute neighbourhood. All key themes in planning which this proposal 
completely fails to meet. The principle of development is incorrect, this is not a 
good location for a nursery – such a use should be in a town. If it is to be an 
outdoor nursery then there’s no need for such a large building. And there is no 
need whatsoever for a house. Beyond those failings, the applicant hasn’t 
provided any drainage to serve the development.
The emails from the Council’s Flooding team in APP/2018/1279 (dated 

16th August 2018, 25th September 2018 and 1st November 2018) highlight 

the drainage problem. The Committee did not give this due consideration 

in their original determination and put the problem onto Council officers 

through their simple desire to approve the development without ensuring it 

is technically competent. The consent was then granted with a 

questionable condition, which has not been met and can’t be met. Quite 

rightly the planner has tried to ensure a proper drainage solution is 

provided in this repeat application, and it hasn’t been hence the justified 

refusal. It would not be appropriate to simply “renew” the previous consent 

due to the questionable condition which clearly can’t be met, and it would 

not be competent in terms of the 6 tests of a planning condition to attach it 

again given the applicant can’t comply with the condition.

Quite simply there is not a deliverable drainage solution to serve this 

development. The existing house at Rothnick Croft has drainage rights 

over adjoining land FOR THAT HOUSE ONLY. The applicant can’t add to 

that drainage from additional development, ie this proposed nursery and 

house. Furthermore the pipe is not fit for purpose to serve the existing 

house in any case. Finally the drainage report submitted in the original 

application is significantly incorrect due to the inaccurate and misleading 

information given to the consultant, and it is now well out of date. Any 

LRB 604 (Notice of Review - APP/2022/1845)
27 February 2024 13:52

   Quick Notes Page 1    

Page 187
Item 5



information given to the consultant, and it is now well out of date. Any 

grant of consent for this development must be backed by a proper and up 

to date drainage report that identifies a deliverable drainage solution. Quite 

simply there is no solution and the development doesn’t comply with Policy 

RD1 of the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan or Policy 22 of National 

Planning Framework 4. Please do not ignore this major technical 

consideration like the Kincardine and Mearns Committee did when 

considering the original application.

Beyond the significant failing to identify a drainage solution, to repeat - the 

proposed nursery remains non-compliant with policy due to the isolated 

and unsustainable location. Even if the nursery was justified there is no 

scope for a house, the original case of “needing to look after class pets” is 

ridiculous and would set a dangerous precedent for any other weak 

justification to push for a house in a remote and unsustainable location. In 

terms of outdoor education facilities, the referenced documents are not 

planning policies and can’t be given much weight. Furthermore the 

applicant already has a nearby nursery at Chapelton and I believe uses this 

space for outdoor learning already, hence their application for portacabin 

toilets to meet that need. The land is there to be used for outdoor learning, 

and if it is genuinely an outdoor nursery there is no need for a building on 

site, and certainly no need for a house. Please reject this appeal.

Regards,

Tammy Stevenson

   Quick Notes Page 2    

Page 188
Item 5



 

 
 
 
 
 
Alison McLeod 

Committee Officer 

Business Services 

Legal and People 

Woodhill House 

Westburn Road 

Aberdeen AB16 5GB 

 

 

 

Design Studio, 

27 Evan Street, 

Stonehaven, 

AB39 2EQ 

Telephone: 01569 764183 

Mobile: 07896 991328 

Email: mail@idd-ltd.co.uk 

Web: www.idd-ltd.co.uk 

 

Date:  15th March 2024 

 
Subject:  193-2017 - Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day Care 

Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's 
Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse 
Address: Land Adjacent To Rothnick Croft, Netherley, Stonehaven, 
Aberdeenshire, AB39 3QU Grid Reference: 387228.795779 

 LRB 604 – Notice of Review – Further Representations Response 
 
Dear Sirs, 

Thank you for writing to us regarding further representations received by yourselves during 
the Notice of Review LRB 604, relating to the above application.  
 
We note that there are 8 representations received which primarily raise the following 
topics: 

1. Waste management and collection requirements, 
2. Drainage design concerns, 
3. Location of the nursery, 
4. Suitability of existing roads infrastructure and sustainable travel, 
5. Need for nursery building, 
6. Need for the house, 

 
Each point raised will now be reviewed and responded to individually. 
 
Waste Management 
We note that Waste Management do not object to the proposals Nevertheless, we take on 
board their requirements and the applicant commits to meeting their conditions during the 
implementation of the proposals, either prior to commencement or occupanct, whichever 
may be agreed.  
 
Drainage Concerns 
The rights to drain from the site and Rothnick Croft are written in Title. There is an ongoing 
civil dispute since interference with the drains, the applicant intends to demonstrate in 
court that there is a full and unconditional right to access and use the pipes beneath the 
neighbours land for drainage of both titles.  The Local Review Body are reminded that 
“any dispute about individual access rights is a civil matter between the parties and 
not an issue material to the decision” as indicated by the Planning and Environmental 
Appeals Division, Planning Appeal Reference PPA-110-2450 dated 29th February 2024. 
 

Page 189
Item 5



 

Comments from others regarding the legalities of these rights appears to be out with their 
expertise and should be discounted.  
 
Drainage was designed by S.A McGregor during the original application and is deliverable. 
Post approval of application APP/2018/1279 water build up has occurred.  Such works 
appear to have blocked the applicants drain, as S.A. McGregor was not witness to these 
works or the damage caused to the drains first hand, any comment implying flooding 
appear to be unjustified. Comments made by S.A McGregor, via a representative of the 
neighbouring landowner, should therefore be discounted as we consider them a conflict of 
interest.   
 

 

Figure 1 - Field pre-2019 not presenting signs of flooding. 

 

Figure 2 - Works being undertaken very early hours of the morning in September 2018. The applicant advises that 

these works were carried out by Forbes Homes Ltd,  after the committee granted planning. Works included digging 

a deep trench severing and removing parts of all drains leaving Rothnick Croft.  

Page 190
Item 5



 

 

Figure 3 – Water build up field post interference, showing the partial trench left to retain any water flowing 

naturally downhill.  

It is the applicants position that rights of drainage exist and it is not for the council to 
consider the ongoing litigation. Their role, as outlined in PPA-110-2450, is to consider the 
planning application and either grant or not. It is then for the court to determine whether 
the rights of drainage are sufficient to facilitate the drainage from the site. 
 
Location of Nursery 
Local development plan (Policy B1.1) seeks nurseries in ‘accessible locations’ which are 
‘accessible by modes of transport other than private car’. Such locations may include town 
centres.  
 
The local and national policy relating to the location of facilities such as nurseries and 
education facilities, appears not to be fit for purpose in Aberdeenshire. It is not safe nor 
practical for rural communities to travel to ‘accessible’ locations within town centres by any 
means other than private car. The local authority has not invested in a suitable public 
transport system not created safe walk, wheel and cycle routes. Furthermore, students 
attending a nursery, from the age of 0, should not be expected to walk, wheel and cycle 
along rural roads to attend nursery. 
 
The Care Inspectorates’ Coalition Position Statement outlines how outdoor play equips 
children with the essential skills to live a healthy and active life, whilst recommending that 
every child has a right to a local, easily accessible learning environment. Rural 
communities, such as Netherley, do not currently have a nursery which offers full time 
Early Learning and Childcare and the reality is that there is no viable alternative to a 
private car.  
 
We refer to the Local Review Body to the Rural Childcare Provision, Innovative Models 
and the Needs of Agricultural Families: Research publicised by Scottish Government.  
 
https://www.gov.scot/publications/challenges-rural-childcare-provision-innovative-models-
needs-agricultural-families/ 
 
This research finds and recommends: 

Page 191
Item 5



 

• Most children are driven to rural childcare services, with journeys varying from 15 
minutes to an hour. In many cases, public transport was not seen as adequate, 
although a small number of children and staff were lift-sharing. 

• This report highlights the need for both standard and innovative models of childcare 
provision in rural areas in order to improve sustainability and better meet the needs 
of families with a range of working patterns and childcare requirements. 

• Outdoor providers were also limited in their hours due to practical concerns, such 
as bad weather and shorter days in the winter. 

• Outdoor providers were also limited in their hours due to practical concerns, such 
as bad weather and shorter days in the winter. 

• The 2020-21 Programme for Government (PfG) sets out a range of commitments in 
this area, from the delivery of 1140 hours of free early learning and childcare, to 
increasing service provision and supporting repopulation in rural and remote 
communities. The PfG also sets out a commitment to look at wraparound care 

options that will give families more choice, greater opportunities to work, and 
greater financial freedom. This has the potential to benefit rural parents, and to 
positively affect women's employment opportunities and household incomes. 

• The PfG 2023-24 further sets out a commitment to support the childcare expansion. 

• We will empower parents, carers and children in those communities by designing 
and delivering childcare services around their needs, including testing how families 
can use their funded hours more flexibly, and widening access to a greater variety 
of provision, be it a childminder, a family centre, a nursery or an after school club. 

• From next year, we will begin work to phase in an expanded national offer for 
families with two-year-olds, focused on those who will benefit most. This will build 
on the foundations of the existing 1140 programme, which already makes high 
quality early learning and childcare available to around a quarter of families with 
two-year olds on the lowest incomes. 

• Taken together, we will expand access to funded childcare for 13,000 more children 
and families by the end of this Parliament. These are the next key steps in our long 
term programme of expansion and improvement to the childcare system in 
Scotland.” 

 
It is apparent the national and local planning policies do not align with Scottish 
Government recommendations regarding rural Early Learning and Childcare. 
 
The nursery aims to address the issues identified by the research and will provide a local 
facility and rural environment for rural children to attend Early Learning and Childcare. 
Whilst it is acknowledged that some travel may be required there are many pockets of 
family homes in the Netherley area, such as the sizeable Forbes Homes Ltd development 
at Stripeside, where a short travel distance to Rothnick Kindergarten would be more 
appropriate than longer travel distances to settlements such as Portlethen and 
Stonehaven; the facility may even make the development more appealing to prospective 
purchasers. It should be considered that traveling by private car to Rothnick Kindergarten 
has no additional impact than travel to such settlements. 
 
The government seeks to encourage and expand the workforce, encouraging parents back 
to work is essential to boost local economies. The Early Learning and Childcare expansion 
initiatives by government support the expansion of Early learning and Childcare to ensure 
that rural areas like Netherley are fully supported too, through viable projects that deliver 
quality full day, all year round childcare being supported and encouraged within local 
areas.  
 
Rothnick Kindergarten offers families in Netherley and the surrounding countryside a local 
nursery where travel to towns is reduced. Many families now work from home, travel to a 

Page 192
Item 5



 

nearby nursery and return home, having a local nursery is better for environment than 
travelling long distances unnecessarily, just for childcare.   Even if working in the office, 
Rothnick Kindergarten offers the rural population around Netherley a facility nearby, 
reducing travel distances and reducing their environmental impact whilst ensuring that 
local children have access to a local facility that meets the needs of working parents and 
supports children to meet with the peers, prior to school attendance.  
 
Other nurseries in the area include: 

1. Larhillock 
Age from 3 years, term time only 09:00 to 15:00.  
Max attendance 30 hours per week.  
No out of school care  available for primary school aged children. 
No baby or toddler provision. 
Small nursery outdoor play area. 
 

2. Hillside Primary School Nursery 
Limited 2 year old provision, 3 – 5 years 8am – 6pm. 
Max attendance 30 hours per week term time or 25 hours per week for 48 weeks. 
No additional wrap around hours for nursery children. 
No baby or toddler provision. 
Small nursery outdoor play area. 

 
3. Mucky Boots outdoor nursery 

3 years and over 08:30 to 16:30, term time only. 
Fully outdoor except in adverse weather when short term let of a nearby hall is 
sought.  No full day care provision.  
No additional wrap around care. 
No toddler or baby provision. 
Outdoors in public woodland. 
 

4. Croft Nursery (Chapelton) 
Children 0 – 12 years 07:30 to 18:00   
Children can attend up to 5 full days per week all year. 
A small number of out of school care places for P1 – P7 children.  
Caters for babies and toddlers. 
Access to a small outdoor play area. 
 

5. Great Western Early Years (Portlethen) 
Children 0 – 12 years 07:30 m to 18:00  
Children can attend up to 5 full days per week all year 
Provides small number of out of school care places for children attending P1-P7 at 
Portlethen schools.  
They have access to small outdoor play areas. 

 
The LRB’s support to recognise Rothnick Kindergarten as an innovative and sector leading 
nursery should be fully supported to meet the needs of the rural area of Netherley to 
support families and young children who require access to full day care.   
 
There is no Forest Kindergarten offering rural and outdoor learning opportunities to rural 
families in the area, all day and year round. It would not be appropriate to locate a forest 
kindergarten in a town centre due to the restrictive nature and impact of the setting, and its 
impact on the learning environment. The most appropriate location for such a nursery is in 
a rural setting.  
 

Page 193
Item 5



 

The Scottish Government have issued various documents supporting the expansion of 
Early Learning and Childcare settings across all of Scotland.  Out to Play - creating 
outdoor play experiences for children: practical guidance considers appropriate locations 
for such a nursery, a key part being land ownership. Land which is under the control of the 
applicant has more flexibility in terms of the control they have to operate from the land, 
whilst also being more commercially viable in that it can be rent free. The most appropriate 
location for such nurseries is on land under the applicant’s control, there appears to be no 
reasonable ground to deviate from this guidance in this case.  
 
It is also well known that Aberdeenshire Council have made further funding cuts forcing 
out-of-school care providers to close, https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-scotland-north-east-
orkney-shetland-68169124, which is not conducive to a stronger, more efficient workforce. 
Parents in the area will have even more limited options for out of school care, thus making 
it more essential that a local facility such as Forest Kindergarten at Rothnick that would 
support out of school care as well as Early Learning and Childcare is encouraged and 
supported to reduce the detrimental impact of current cuts on local families.  
 
Suitability of existing roads infrastructure and sustainable travel 
We reiterate that families traveling from rural areas to attend any nursery will have no 
viable alternative other than private car. It is not safe to travel by foot or wheel on rural 
roads, nor would it appropriate to expect that they do so, especially when considering that 
children attending Rothnick Kindergarten may be from 0 years upwards.  
 
No matter the location, a rural road must be used for rural families to attend any nursery. 
To prevent families from doing so is preventing their access to essential education 
facilities; contrary to the aims and objectives of Scottish Government, Care Inspectorate, 
NPF4 and Local Development Plan 2023.  
 
The Aberdeenshire Council Interactive Maps also identifies the road leading to Rothnick as 
part of the national cycle route (shown in green dots below). This suggests that should any 
older children wish to travel by bicycle, under the car of the parental figures, they’d be able 
to do so.  
 

 
Figure 4 – Extract of national cycle route.  

The Local Review Body are asked to consider that the roads are suitable for rural travel, 
by rural families to this rural facility.  
 
Need for Nursery Building 
In response to questions regarding the need for the nursery building, we can confirm that 
the Out to Play guidance indicates that a building will enhance and improve the learning 
environment and in doing so boost the learning and development of children. A building is 
particular necessary where a service requires to operate all year round with all age groups 
of children particularly babies and toddlers. Care Inspectorate fully support an integrated 
system whereby the service has access to its own indoor facilities as opposed to sharing a 
building with any other public service.  
 

Road leading to Rothnick forming a part of the national 

cycle route. 

Location of Forest Kindergarten at Rothnick. 

Page 194
Item 5



 

A building ensures that the service can operate a high quality service in all weathers and 
support continuity of childcare all day every day for children and families.   
 
The guidance suggests that having a building allowing children to go indoors when they 
wish not only results in better skills in later life, but also allows them to use essential 
facilities such as toilets, changing rooms, warmth, drinking water, hand washing, hot meals 
and appropriate shelter, particularly necessary for babies and toddlers.  The building also 
offers advantages to the nursery management giving them space for an office, staff room, 
training room and kitchen.  
 
Rothnick Kindergarten is an innovative and sector leading opportunity for the local 
community.  There are no other local nurseries with the opportunity for local families to 
have their children in Early Learning and Childcare in a wholly outdoor environment 
throughout the whole day, every day all year round supported by an on site building.  The 
building supports provision of exceptionally high quality care, and ensures that siblings of 
all ages including babies and toddlers can be cared for together. A building ensures 
access to appropriate areas for changing, sleeping, providing hot meals and to have 
adequate space for indoor activities when severe weather hampers full day access to 
outdoors. As well as providing play space for all ages, the building will also facilitate a 
kitchen to prepare hot meals and areas for rest and warmth. 
 
Forest Kindergarten at Rothnick would be operated in such a manner that the large doors 
to the indoor play room would remain open to offer benefits of the outdoor environment 
whilst under shelter. Representatives’ assessment of the area of the building is wholly 
flawed. The care inspectorate do not agree a capacity on an assessment of Gross Internal 
floor area, as the plans demonstrate, this area includes essential services and amenities. 
The care inspectorate agrees a capacity not only on size but also operational capacity, 
initial discussion with the care inspectorate indicates a capacity of 50 children.  
 
It should also be noted that the applicant, as well as delivering training in SVQ’s Level 2, 3 
and 4, is the only training provider for the Forest Kindergarten SCQF Level 7 qualification 
in the area. The building offers staff space to carry out essential training whilst studying for 
qualifications.  
 
As a training provider working with Skills Development Scotland the applicant would be 
creating employment and training opportunities for local people to develop a highly skilled 
workforce to support the service.  
 
Need for the House 
We reiterate that the house is essential to the operation of the business. Forest 
Kindergarten at Rothnick has small animals such as hens, lambs (which require 24 hour 
care) and other small animals, as well as their horticultural activities such as growing their 
own fruit and vegetables.   With animals as a core part of the Early Learning and Childcare 
experience, which is designed to develop children’s experiences and more develop for the 
future effective rural and environmental contributors it is essential for animal husbandry 
purposes, the safety and well-being of the animals, that the manager of the facility is 
required to live on site. The determination of the original planning application recognised 
and accounted for this, determining that “having a member of staff living on-site was seen 
as important to care for the small animals”.  
 
The applicant is a business owner and is responsible for running the business whilst the 
management of Rothnick Kindergarden, and the round the clock care, is the responsibility 
of the manager. The applicants dwelling is irrelevant to the proposals.   
 
 

Page 195
Item 5



 

We trust that the information contained above answers the further representation. We 
welcome any further feedback from the Local Review Body and can be contacted on 
01569 764183 should they have any queries.  
 
Yours sincerely 

Ally Steel BSc (Hons) MRICS 
Operations Director 
For and on behalf of Inspired Design & Development Ltd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulated by RICS 
 
 

 

Architectural Services – Building Surveying 
Principal Designer - Domestic Energy Assessment  

Retrofit Assessor – Retrofit Coordinator 
 

Inspired design & development limited.  Registered in Scotland SC 370675.   

Registered office: Design Studio, 27 Evan Street, Stonehaven, AB39 3EQ.   

Page 196
Item 5



Page 197
Item 6



Page 198
Item 6



Page 199
Item 6



Page 200
Item 6



Page 201
Item 6



Page 202
Item 6



Page 203
Item 6



Page 204
Item 6



Doug Irvine

Sylvan Stuart Ltd, Old Rayne, INSCH, Aberdeenshire, Scotland. AB52 6RX.
Tel: +44(0)1464 851208
Fax: +44(0)1464 851202
Website: www.sylvanstuart.com

From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Monday, October 9, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Cc: Helen Atkinson <helen.atkinson@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>; Planning Online 

<planningonline@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good morning,

Thank you for your recent email and sharing the information. I am sorry for delayed response.

Having discussed the proposal and the recent information with the wider team, the planning service 

is of the opinion that the additional information does not override the development plan and our 

recommendation would remain to refuse planning permission. 

Please be advised that you cannot request that the item be presented to GAC directly as this initially 

needs to go through the member notification system with a refusal recommendation. However, 

members would have the opportunity to pull the item to committee and may take a different view 

to the Planning Service. 

You will be informed of the date that the report is sent to Local Ward Members for further 

consultation by the planning service in due course.

Kind regards,

Negar Maydanchi

Planner (Development Management)

Planning and Economy

Environment and Infrastructure 

Aberdeenshire Council

Skype: 01467469920

Email: negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Please note normal working hours-Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm

Please remember to submit all planning applications, including revised drawings and additional 

supporting information via the National ePlanning Portal

Website: https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/

Keep up to date online with any changes to Planning Services 

Your feedback is important to us and helps us to improve our service we value your comments.

Freedom of Information request: Please send your enquiry to foi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Quick Notes Page 2

Page 205
Item 6



From: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com> 

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 12:30 PM

To: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon Negar,

Further to your email of 1 September, we strongly dispute your contention that that the presence of 

a residential worker is not essential, as this not only ignores severe weather events that have 

occurred since these operations commenced in 2018, but also fundamental animal welfare 

issues. On that basis your request for information on current residential accommodation available 

within the vicinity of the site is not relevant, but is in any event provided below. I also note that you 

appear to ignore the clear policy intent of NPF4, particularly Sustainable Places under Part 2 of 

National Planning Policy for Local Development Plans.

to R1.2 as referred to at R2.2, as it ignores the fourth bullet point stating what is permitted 

development:

�QX^?X\Q@Q;9^QYX Y@ 9X ?\^9:VQ\P?> d\? \d:T?;^ ^Y ^P? X?f >?e?VYZW?X^ :?QXN Y@ 9 \dQ^9:V? \;9V? 9X>

@Y[W�

I maintain that on-site residential accommodation is required in any event, and note you are making 

This established business (for which annual accounts are available) is becoming unviable as it cannot 

meet statutory animal welfare requirements due to the workers being unable to safely access the 

site in severe weather conditions. The applicants are currently having to restrict their livestock 

holding to late spring, summer and early autumn because of increasing weather related lack of 

access, as they cannot now carry livestock there over winter. I note in the addendum below the 

regular occurrence of extreme climate events since 2018.

The applicants currently live in a leased apartment at Cothal with a below market level rent on a 

lease which terminates in June 2024. Their income is modest, but they have sufficient funds to build 

a 120m² 3-

maintenance requirements thus minimal running costs. They intend to run the house off-grid and 

utilise photovoltaic panels combined with battery storage and no other mains connections. This 

proposal will make their current operations at least zero carbon with the intent of developing them 

further to be significantly carbon negative.

The labour requirement report submitted refers to publications by the U.K. Farm Classification 

Working Party, 2004, and The Farm Management Handbook 2021/22. Both these documents can 

only be retrospective and regarded as guidance based on area based calculations for the various 

onsite activities encompassing fruit and vegetable market gardening, livestock farming and forestry 

activities. The Full Time Equivalent requirement of 1.1 is not in dispute, but to suggest that 

Quick Notes Page 3

Page 206
Item 6



silviculture should be excluded from this appears in direct contradiction of planning policy where 

forestry operations can solely be used to justify related onsite residential accommodation.

Your interpretation of policy suggests there would be no justification for residential accommodation 

on a 100 Ha arable-only farm. I note that this is the average size of a U.K. farm, whereas in Europe 

that is 6Ha and activities are vastly more labour intensive per hectare. The increasing frequency of 

severe climate events also impacts significantly on the need for onsite residency for the market 

gardening activities where prompt remedial measures are required. Likewise, there are also issues 

with deer, rabbit and pigeon depredation. 

Your response to date takes no cognisance of NPF4 Part 2 - NPP Policy 1 to reduce emissions and 

adapt for impacts of climate change and Policies 2 and 3 to enhance biodiversity, which almost every 

using nature based solutions, such as forestry foraging pigs. Cherrypicking the FTE 1.1 labour 

breakdown to exclude forestry activities is not a justifiable application of policy, and is entirely 

unjustifiable in relation to livestock husbandry.

We request that you re-examine your view on this application in light of the further information 

contained herewith. If you maintain your previously expressed view, the applicants request that 

their application go forward for determination to the full Garioch Area Committee on the basis that 

your indisputably controversial interpretation of policy should be examined in public by elected 

members.

We aim to submit further supporting information on Monday 25th September. We will be pleased to 

provide any further information you may request.

Regards

Doug Irvine

Sylvan Stuart Ltd, Old Rayne, INSCH, Aberdeenshire, Scotland. AB52 6RX.
Tel: +44(0)1464 851208
Fax: +44(0)1464 851202
Website: www.sylvanstuart.com

Addendum

1. Severe weather events since 2018 that have had direct effect on Berwick Wood produce.

Sep 2018 Storm Ali (amber warning for wind)

Aug 2020 Thunderstorms/flash flooding

Feb 2021 Storm Darcy (Snow)

Nov 2021 Storm Arwen (wind red warning)

Jan 2022 Storm Malik (wind amber warning)

Jan 2022 - Storm Corrie (wind amber warning)

Nov 2022 Heavy rain/flooding

Jan 2023 - Snow

Feb 2023 Storm Otto (wind amber warning)

2. Currently available local property with 4km

Location Description Price over EPC rating

Denmill 4-bed semi-detached E

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed semi-detached F

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed detached D

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed detached D

Kinmuck 5-bed detached C

Quick Notes Page 4

Page 207
Item 6



Kinmuck 4-bed semi-detached £215,000 E

Cothal 5-bed detached £325,000 F

Newmachar 7-bed detached £450,000 E

Cothal 5-bed detached £465,000 D

Overton 5-bed detached £450,000 F

3. Narrative from Mhairi Player (applicant)

I was an occupational therapist for 10 years specialising in paediatrics and outdoor therapy. A series 

of bone tumours meant that I could no longer continue my career in the public sector. I began 

growing again as a way of compensating for the loss of income due to my illness and found that the 

benefits of outdoor activity combined with a higher quality diet due to access to fresh seasonal 

organically produced fruit and veg allowed me to regain my wellbeing, added my rehabilitation and 

allowed me to return to some form of employment. To continue to manage my long-term health 

needs I began to work alongside my father on his woodland - Berwick Woods in Hatton of Fintray. In 

2018 when he retired he passed full management over to me of the woodland. At this point I have 

started to grow veg and fruit on the woodland and was using volunteers to help develop a social 

prescribing nature- based business. In order for the business to move forward infrastructure such as 

water, power, shelter, protected growing space and an access road needed to be completed. While 

this was occurring I worked part-time on the woodland project, part-time for a community garden 

and part- time as a lecturer for Robert Gordon university. The infrastructure was 60% complete by 

March 2020 when the UK went into lockdown.

During lockdown, as food was required locally, we diverted our attention to supplying as many local 

people, small businesses and food hubs as possible. We added caterpillar and poly tunnels as quickly 

as possible and expanded our growing space. At the end of 2021 we were supplying 8 local 

businesses, 2 food hubs and 40 domestic customers. We were heavily hit by the storms in the winter 

2021/2022 which included storm Arwen. We lost our main polytunnel and all our caterpillar tunnels 

were uncovered so that we lost all our winter and over winter crop. Alongside this 2022 saw a 

change in consumer buying patterns. Concerns of rise in costs of living and problems with long 

supply chains. We have spent the last year changing our selling models in response to these changes. 

We have established a fairer model of selling called a community supported agriculture scheme and 

we have focused on production of our raw materials for growing and on creating a closed loop farm 

system (one that provides its own fertility rather than buying in expensive and often harmful inputs) 

which is better for the climate and more economically sustainable. We have an electric van, an 

onsite bore hole and off grid solar panels again to help met the zero-carbon agenda required by the 

Scottish government but also to improve the sustainability of our woodland farm. We are presently 

clearing the timber that fell during the storms previously mentioned which will allow us to meet our 

biodiversity targets, help with carbon sequestration and add more economical revenues and 

opportunities within the business.

In 2023 the Good Food Nation Bill became the Good Food Nation Act which require good food to be 

accessible to all people in Scotland. As part of this Aberdeenshire council has formed a fair food 

partnership to be able to tackle the issues around food which stop it being accessible to all. Our 

business forms and its direct selling/ short chain models form an important part of this.

Explanation of why it is essential to live on the Farm.

Our pigs are always kept outdoors, and need fed twice daily. They also need to be checked a 

minimum twice daily which would increase in Summer or winter. Pigs cannot easily loose heat (they 

do not sweat) and require lots of water to allow them to create wallows to allow them to regulate 

their temperature.

We have been monitoring access to the farm, and as of yet, no winter period has allowed us daily 

access even from the nearest village which is clearly an animal welfare issue. In order to be viable 

financially, ecologically and sustainably we need to breed pigs ourselves and have year-round pork 

stocks. This will enable us to supply a constant product to our direct consuming customers or the 

local businesses we supply to. This is not a matter of expansion this is a matter of viability, which 

clearly answers the question of why it is vital to live on the farm.

Quick Notes Page 5

Page 208
Item 6



From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 2:46 PM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon Dough,

Thanks for the new submission. 

previous email dated 11th July .

I note that business growth is the intention of the applicant, but this is not sufficient as this must be 

evidenced by the existing livestock or landholding that there is an essential need for an 

accommodation within the immediate vicinity of the place of employment.

accommodation available within the area as required by Policy R1 of ALDP2023.

The existing operation, therefore, does not justify agricultural need for erection of a dwelling house 

and sadly, the Planning Service are unable to support the application.

As was previously stated, this would be referred to the Local Members in the first instance for 

consideration with a recommendation of a refusal. However, you may however wish to withdraw 

the application at this stage. 

Could you please therefore provide confirmation on how you wish to proceed in writing?

Kind regards,

Negar Maydanchi

Planner (Development Management)

Planning and Economy

Environment and Infrastructure 

Aberdeenshire Council

Skype: 01467469920

Email: negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Please note normal working hours-Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm

Please remember to submit all planning applications, including revised drawings and additional 

supporting information via the National ePlanning Portal

Website: https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/

Keep up to date online with any changes to Planning Services 

.

Quick Notes Page 6

Page 209
Item 6



Your feedback is important to us and helps us to improve our service we value your comments.

Freedom of Information request: Please send your enquiry to foi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

From: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 9:34 AM

To: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Morning Negar,

I have uploaded a supplementary letter to the online portal from Allathan Associates in response to 

your comments below. We hope this addresses your comments below, better illustrates the work 

going on at Berwick Wood Produce ( https://berwick-wood-produce.ooooby.org/) and emphasises 

how the business is currently restricted by not living on site.

Best regards

Doug Irvine

From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 4:57 PM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Cc: berwickwoodproduce@gmail.com

Subject: Re: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon, 

I refer to the above planning application. 

The principle of development will be assessed against Policy R1.2 accommodation within the 

immediate vicinity of the place of employment required for a worker in a primary industry, where 

the presence of a worker is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise, and there is no 

suitable alternative residential accommodation available. 

Based on the labour requirement report submitted along the application ,the farm operation of 

Berwick wood has a total standard labour requirement for 2,094 SLRs . The calculation demonstrates 

that a substantial hour is related to the level of labour needed for forestry work and planting activity 

and 131 SLRs for Pig activity . Whilst there may be need for full time worker on the farm for this type 

activities, it is not essential to live on the farm.

In addition, sufficient information is not provided regarding the current residential accommodation 

available within the vicinity of the site. It appears that there are homes for rent and sale in Hatton of 

Fintray, 1.48 km to the south, which is not a significant journey for any employee to get to this 

location.

Quick Notes Page 7

Page 210
Item 6



Therefore, this proposal fails to meet the essential need justification for accommodation associated 

with a primary industry worker, and therefore does not comply with Policy R1 and R2 of the 

Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023 as well as Policy 17 of National Planning Framework.

At the outset, the application would go to Local Ward members with a refusal 
recommendation. However, the members would have an opportunity to take a different view 
and advise for referral to the Area Committee for further assessment. 

Kind regards,

Negar Maydanchi

Planner (Development Management)

Planning and Economy

Environment and Infrastructure 

Aberdeenshire Council

Skype: 01467469920

Email: negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Please note normal working hours-Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm

Please remember to submit all planning applications, including revised drawings and additional 

supporting information via the National ePlanning Portal

Website: https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/

Keep up to date online with any changes to Planning Services 

Your feedback is important to us and helps us to improve our service we value your comments.

Freedom of Information request: Please send your enquiry to foi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

This e-mail may contain privileged information intended solely for the use of the individual to whom 

it is addressed. If you have received this e-mail in error, please accept our apologies and notify the 

sender, deleting the e-mail afterwards. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the e-

mail's author and do not necessarily represent those of Aberdeenshire Council. 

- -dealain air a 

chur, a bhith an seo. Ma tha thu air am post-dealain fhaighinn mar mhearachd, gabh ar leisgeul agus 

cuir fios chun an neach a chuir am post- -

beachdan an neach a chuir am post-

Dheathain. 

www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Quick Notes Page 8

Page 211
Item 6



Page 212
Item 6



2>FFEHMB>H# 6EHCNLLEB# ^HOBKHBLL$LDEKB# 94(' '8=

PPP%L@IMF>HA?ECJE@MNKB%@IG

:@IMMELD @D>KEM>?FB @IGJ>HQ FEGEMBA ?Q CN>K>HMBB% 3D>KEMQ 8I% :3&+&*)( 3IGJ>HQ 8I% :3)+((.- <1; 8I0 /*, .+*+ -)

+$),&"(%Y ,FC

#GD *G?JNICZ

Page 213
Item 6



8BLF>?IJKGIEJ FGIKB#?<JK 7=GKD<F> &&#&' *LALJK '%'%

3GIKB#?<JK 7=GKD<F> ?OH?IC?F=?> KBLF>?IJKGIEJ <F> KGII?FKC<D >GNFHGLIJ >LICFA KB?

?M?FCFA G@ &&KB *LALJK <F> CFKG KB? EGIFCFA G@ &' *LALJK '%'%$ 0F HD<=?J (% KG )%EE GI

EGI? G@ I<CF @?DD NCKBCF ( BGLIJ GI D?JJ$

0EH<=KJ

JWT b]``T\bXPZ S]e\^]c`a RPcaTS eXSTa^`TPS UZPaW(UZ]]SX\V P\S SXa`c^bX]\ b] bWT `]PS P\S `PXZ

\Tbe]`Ya' eXbW <PZYX`Y' <XUT' FT`bW' ;SX\Qc`VW P\S bWT 7QT`STT\aWX`T P`TP PZZ PUUTRbTS Qg UZPaW(

UZ]]SX\V) ITdT`PZ aRW]]Za eT`T RZ]aTS PR`]aa 7QT`STT\aWX`T' P\S bWT`T eT`T `T^]`ba ]U ZXVWb\X\V

ab`XYTa) JWT dT`g WTPdg `PX\ U`][ bWT bWc\ST`ab]`[a aTT[a ZXYTZg b] WPdT QTT\ P UPRb]` X\ bWT

ZP\SaZX^ bWPb RPcaTS b`PX\ ST`PXZ[T\b Pb Ib]\TWPdT\' eWXRW b`PVXRPZZg ZTS b] bW`TT UPbPZXbXTa P\S P

\c[QT` ]U RPacPZbXTa)

:?<KB?I ><K<

JWT P\PZgaXa RWP`b Pb +1++ KJ9 ,- 7cVcab -+-+ aW]ea P ZX\T ]U R]\dTRbX]\ Paa]RXPbTS eXbW

aTdT`T bWc\ST`ab]`[a PR`]aa \]`bW(TPab IR]bZP\S' eXbW dT`g Wc[XS' W]b PX` PR`]aa bWT a]cbW ]U bWT

KA) FP`ba ]U a]cbWT`\ ;\VZP\S `TPRWTS ./ b] .0h9 ]\ Q]bW ,,bW P\S ,-bW 7cVcab)

Page 214
Item 6



JWT aT_cT\RT ]U `PX\(`PSP` X[PVTa Pb W]c`Zg X\bT`dPZa U`][ ,3 KJ9 ,, 7cVcab b] +4 KJ9 ,-

7cVcab aW]e b]``T\bXPZ S]e\^]c`a X\ bWT ;SX\Qc`VW P`TP Sc`X\V bWT TdT\X\V ]U bWT ,,bW []dX\V

\]`bWeP`S PR`]aa <XUT QTU]`T RZTP`X\V 7QT`STT\aWX`T Sc`X\V bWT []`\X\V ]U bWT ,-bW)

,3 KJ9 ,4 KJ9 -+ KJ9

-, KJ9 -- KJ9 -. KJ9

++ KJ9 +, KJ9 +- KJ9

Page 215
Item 6



+. KJ9 +/ KJ9 +0 KJ9

+1 KJ9 +2 KJ9 +3 KJ9

+4 KJ9

Page 216
Item 6



JWT aT_cT\RT ]U `PX\(`PSP` X[PVTa Pb .+([X\cbT X\bT`dPZa U`][ +/++ KJ9 b] +2++ KJ9 aW]e bWT

WTPdXTab `PX\UPZZ PR`]aa 7QT`STT\aWX`T Sc`X\V bWXa ^T`X]S)

?\ P\ TdT\b acRW Pa bWXa bWT`T [Pg QT P dT`g ZP`VT a^PbXPZ dP`XPbX]\ X\ `PX\UPZZ P[]c\ba PR`]aa P

`TZPbXdTZg a[PZZ P`TP' P\S P\g \Tbe]`Y ]U `PX\(VPcVTa eXZZ X\TdXbPQZg ab`cVVZT b] RP^bc`T bWT STbPXZTS

a^PbXPZ `PX\UPZZ ^PbbT`\) JWT UXVc`T QTZ]e aW]ea TabX[PbTS `PX\UPZZ b]bPZa PR`]aa IR]bZP\S U`][ +/++

Page 217
Item 6



b] +2++ KJ9 ]\ ,- 7cVcab -+-+ $a]c`RT5 CTb EUUXRT ]QaT`dPbX]\a H#:%) JWXa ^T`X]S R]dT`a bWT

[]ab X\bT\aT `PX\UPZZ PR`]aa bWT 7QT`STT\aWX`T P`TP) JWT `PX\(`PSP` X\SXRPbTa .+[[ ]` []`T

UPZZX\V eXSTZg PR`]aa 7QT`STT\aWX`T X\ P`]c\S . W]c`a eXbW a][T Z]RPbX]\a `TR]`SX\V 0+[[&6 X\

a][T Z]RPbX]\ bWXa P^^`]PRWX\V bWT 7cVcab ,43,(-+,+ Z]\V bT`[ PdT`PVT `PX\UPZZ U]` bWT eW]ZT

[]\bW)

JWT bPQZT QTZ]e ZXaba bWT WXVWTab W]c`Zg `PX\UPZZ b]bPZa `TR]`STS Pb CTb EUUXRT abPbX]\a X\ bWT P`TP) 7

`PX\(VPcVT Pb 9WTg\T $7QT`STT\aWX`T% ]^T`PbTS Qg bWT IR]bbXaW ;\dX`]\[T\b F`]bTRbX]\ 7VT\Rg

$I;F7% P\S Z]RPbTS RZ]aT b] Ib]\TWPdT\ Xa `T^]`bTS b] WPdT `TR]`STS 23)/[[ X\ P bW`TT(W]c`

^T`X]S X\RZcSX\V .1)1[[ X\ ]\T W]c`' P\S ]bWT` `PX\(VPcVTa X\ bWT P`TP X\SXRPbT .+ b] 0+[[ ]`

[]`T UPZZX\V X\ bWT dXRX\Xbg)

IbPbX]\ >]c`Zg b]bPZ

$[[%

>]c` T\SX\V

?\dT`QT`dXT $7QT`STT\aWX`T% /,)1 +1++ KJ9 ,- 7cVcab

7QT`STT\' 9`PXQab]\T .-)/ +2++ KJ9 ,- 7cVcab

;SX\Qc`VW H]gPZ 8]bP\XR =P`ST\ -0)3 -.++ KJ9 ,, 7cVcab

JWT bPQZT QTZ]e ZXaba bWT WXVWTab SPXZg `PX\UPZZ b]bPZa `TR]`STS Qg bWT \Tbe]`Y ]U `PX\(VPcVTa

`TVXabT`TS Qg bWT CTb EUUXRT U`][ +4++ KJ9 ,,bW b] +4++ KJ9 ,-bW 7cVcab -+-+) JWTaT `PX\UPZZ

b]bPZa e]cZS bg^XRPZZg `T^`TaT\b P^^`]fX[PbTZg bWT eW]ZT([]\bW 7cVcab Z]\V(bT`[ PdT`PVT `PX\

UPZZX\V eXbWX\ bWT a^PRT ]U P UTe W]c`a' ]` ZTaa) ITdT`PZ ]bWT` `PX\(VPcVTa X\ bWT \Tbe]`Y `TR]`STS

]dT` 0+[[)

Page 218
Item 6



IbPbX]\ :PXZg b]bPZ

$[[%

7cVcab ,43,(-+,+ Z]\V(bT`[

PdT`PVT $[[%

=`P\VT[]cbW HTUX\T`g $IbX`ZX\V% 40)+ 12),

FT`bW' D]`eXRW K\X]\ $FT`bW% 31)- (

Ib]\TWPdT\' 9WTg\T $7QT`STT\aWX`T% 24)+ (

DTeb]\ ]U <PZYZP\S $<XUT% 22)- (

=XZab]\ $CXS(B]bWXP\% 1-)3 1/)-

AX\`]aa $AX\`]aa(aWX`T% 1,)1 3,)/

JWT [P^ QTZ]e aW]ea ZXVWb\X\V PRbXdXbg `TR]`STS PR`]aa IR]bZP\S QTbeTT\ ,-++ KJ9 ,, 7cVcab

P\S ,-++ KJ9 ,- 7cVcab -+-+)

JWc\ST`ab]`[a X\ bWT KA P`T dT`g U`T_cT\bZg Paa]RXPbTS eXbW P Q`TPY(S]e\ U]ZZ]eX\V W]b' Wc[XS

eTPbWT`' eXbW b]``T\bXPZ S]e\^]c`a ]UbT\ PRR][^P\XTS Qg ZP`VT WPXZ P\S ZXVWb\X\V ab`XYTa) IcRW

TdT\ba ]UbT\ `TacZb WXVWZg Z]RPZXaTS ZP`VT `PX\UPZZ b]bPZa ]U aW]`b Sc`PbX]\) E\T TfP[^ZT ePa ]\ -3

@c\T -+,-' P SPg ]U aTdT`T bWc\ST`ab]`[a PR`]aa bWT KA eXbW eXSTa^`TPS UZPaW(UZ]]SX\V' WPXZ P\S

ZXVWb\X\V ab`XYTa PR`]aa MPZTa P\S \]`bWT`\ ;\VZP\S) JWXa TdT\b RZ]aTS bWT MTab 9]Pab [PX\ ZX\T

ScT b] P ZP\SaZX^ \TP` JTQPg X\ 9c[Q`XP' P\S bWT MTab >XVWZP\S ZX\T ePa QZ]RYTS \TP` JcZZ]RW

8`XSVT Pa P ZP\SaZXST ST`PXZTS P U`TXVWb b`PX\)

7cbW]`5 CXYT AT\S]\' CTb EUUXRT DPbX]\PZ 9ZX[PbT ?\U]`[PbX]\ 9T\b`T

BPab c^SPbTS ,+*+4*-+-+

Page 219
Item 6



=IXITI YMQVIT YIEVLIT EQH UVRTP 1ETG[# 3IFTWET[ )')(

>LI ?7 IZSITMIQGIH E YIIN RJ UIXITI YMQVIT YIEVLIT JTRP , VR (* 3IFTWET[# YMVL IEUVITO[

YMQHU HTEYMQK E FMVVITO[ GROH EMTJORY JTRP IEUVITQ 2WTRSI% =VRTP 1ETG[ FTRWKLV URPI

UVTRQK YMQHU EQH LIEX[ UQRY VR SETVU RJ URWVL$IEUV 2QKOEQH RQ ,VL# YLMOI SITUMUVIQV UQRY

ULRYITU TIUWOVIH MQ UMKQMJMGEQV EGGWPWOEVMRQU EGTRUU IEUVITQ 2QKOEQH EQH =GRVOEQH%

1E[VMPI VIPSITEVWTIU UVTWKKOIH VR TMUI EFRXI JTII\MQK# EQH# GRPFMQIH YMVL VLI YMQH#

TIUWOVIH MQ UIXITI YMQH$GLMOO# SETVMGWOETO[ RQ VLI IZSRUIH IEUV GREUV% 9WGL RJ IEUVITQ

=GRVOEQH IZSITMIQGIH HIIS O[MQK UQRY YMVL HISVLU MQ URPI SOEGIU RJ )' VR *'GP RT PRTI%

((VL&()VL 3IFTWET[ YEU E FMVVITO[ GROH QMKLV YMVL VIPSITEVWTIU RJ $(' VR $(+]0 EGTRUU

IEUVITQ =GRVOEQH# EQH VLTII UVEVMRQU JEOOMQK FIORY $)']0% .V /TEIPET# $)*%']0 PEHI VLMU VLI

?7^U ORYIUV VIPSITEVWTI UMQGI 1IGIPFIT (--+%

6PSEGVU

G[\d O[R WQS QOb`SR dWRS`]_SOR a_OcSY RW`_b]aW\[% dWaV _\OR` QY\`SR OQ_\`` ZO[f SO`aS_[ Q\O`aOY

Q\b[aWS`4 ?S[a O[R 9``Se dS_S ]O_aWQbYO_Yf OTTSQaSR Pf RSS] `[\d' <OgO_R\b` Q\[RWaW\[` ZORS

R_WcW[U Q\[RWaW\[` RWTTWQbYa dWaV `ScS_OY OQQWRS[a`' HVS_S dS_S OY`\ a_OW[ QO[QSYYOaW\[`' 5 [bZPS_ \T

`QV\\Y` VOR a\ QY\`S OQ_\`` aVS `\baV&SO`a O[R @W[Q\Y[`VW_S O[R `ScS_OY 7\cWR cOQQW[OaW\[ QS[a_S`

dS_S OY`\ `Vba' 5 XWaS`b_TS_ RWSR \[ O PSOQV W[ GbTT\YX' GQ\aYO[R dO` OY`\ OTTSQaSR Pf RSS] YfW[U

`[\d% dWaV a_O[`]\_a RW`_b]aW\[ O[R `QV\\Y QY\`b_S`% O[R aVS VO_P\b_ Oa BOW_[ dO` T_\gS[ \cS_'

HVS_S dO` RSS] YfW[U `[\d OQ_\`` GQ\aYO[Rk` Z\b[aOW[`% dWaV YO_US OQQbZbYOaW\[` O[R `ScS_S

R_WTaW[U' HVS GaScS[`\[ `Q_SS[ Oa aVS dSOaVS_ `aOaW\[ Oa 7OW_[U\_Z 7VOW_YWTa #//,ZO`Y$ dO` Pb_WSR

W[ `[\d% O[R O[ Sea_SZS OcOYO[QVS _W`X dO` _S]\_aSR W[ aVS DS[aYO[R <WYY` `\baV \T 9RW[Pb_UV'

GScS_OY WZ]_S``WcS WUY\\` dS_S PbWYa Pf ZSZPS_` \T aVS ]bPYWQ'

AIEVLIT HEVE

HVS O[OYf`W` QVO_a Oa *+)) IH7 0 :SP_bO_f +)+* `V\d` O[ O_SO \T Y\d ]_S``b_S #`a\_Z 8O_Qf$

Y\QOaSR OQ_\`` aVS BSaVS_YO[R` P_W[UW[U VSOcf `[\d O[R `a_\[U dW[R` a\ `\baV&SO`a 9[UYO[R'

Page 220
Item 6



HVS O[OYf`W` QVO_a Oa *+)) IH7 1 :SP_bO_f +)+* `V\d` aVS I? W[ O PWaaS_Yf Q\YR SO`aS_Yf OW_`a_SOZ

dWaV O ]S_`W`aS[a TSSR \T `[\d `V\dS_` \TT aVS B\_aV GSO OTTSQaW[U aVS SO`a Q\O`a'

HVS O[OYf`W` QVO_a Oa *+)) IH7 ** :SP_bO_f +)+* `V\d` VWUV ]_S``b_S \cS_ GQO[RW[OcWO

SeaS[RW[U a\ Q\cS_ ZbQV \T aVS I?% dVWYS T_\[aOY `f`aSZ` `aO_a ]b`VW[U W[a\ aVS TO_ `\baV&dS`a'

Page 221
Item 6



HVS `OaSYYWaS WZOUS \[ ** :SP_bO_f +)+* `V\d` YfW[U `[\d T_\Z ?S[a a\ 7OWaV[S``% SeaS[RW[U

T_\Z aVS Q\O`a O[R W[YO[R OQ_\`` aVS SO`a AWRYO[R`% DS[[W[S` O[R ZbQV \T GQ\aYO[R' 6O[R` \T

`[\d T_\Z YW[S` \T `V\dS_` W[ aVS SO`aS_Yf OW_TY\d QO[ QYSO_Yf PS `SS[ OQ_\`` @W[Q\Y[`VW_S O[R

M\_X`VW_S' **aV(*+aV dO` aVS Q\YRS`a [WUVa \T aVS `]SYY% dWaV aSZ]S_Oab_S` TOYYW[U PSY\d &+)h7 W[

GQ\aYO[R i aVW` \QQb__SR RbS a\ O Q\ZPW[OaW\[ \T QYSO_ `XWS`% YfW[U `[\d O[R YWUVa dW[R`' =ZOUS

Q\]f_WUVa ASa CTTWQS ( BC55 ( B5G5'

Page 222
Item 6



HVS `OaSYYWaS WZOUS \[ ** :SP_bO_f +)+* `V\d` YfW[U `[\d O_\b[R aVS Q\O`aYW[S` \T aVS `\baVS_[

B\_aV GSO' =ZOUS Q\]f_WUVa ASa CTTWQS ( BC55 ( B5G5'

HVS _OW[&_ORO_ WZOUS` Oa *+)) IH7 0aV O[R *+)) IH7 1aV :SP_bO_f `V\d VSOcf `[\d OTTSQaW[U

`\baV&SO`a 9[UYO[R% dWaV O TSSR \T `[\d `V\dS_` _b[[W[U W[ \TT aVS B\_aV GSO'

Page 223
Item 6



HVS ZO]` PSY\d `V\d ROWYf ZOeWZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S O[\ZOYWS` T_\Z 0 a\ *, :SP_bO_f +)+*'

HSZ]S_Oab_S` dS_S dSYY PSY\d OcS_OUS aV_\bUV\ba aVS I? T\_ aVS dSSX% _SOQVW[U \[Yf * \_ +h7

dWRSYf' KWaV YfW[U `[\d O[R O `a_\[U SO`aS_Yf dW[R% 1aV :SP_bO_f dO` ]O_aWQbYO_Yf Q\YR OQ_\`` aVS

`\baV&SO`a dVS_S aSZ]S_Oab_S` _SZOW[SR PSY\d T_SSgW[U OYY ROf i dWaV ROWYf ZOeWZbZ

aSZ]S_Oab_S` \T &*'.h7 Oa F\aVOZ`aSR% <S_aT\_R`VW_S O[R &+'-h7 Oa KfQV 7_\``% 9O`a Gb``Se i 1

a\ *)h7 PSY\d OcS_OUS T\_ aVS aWZS \T fSO_' 9cS[ QS[a_OY @\[R\[ _SZOW[SR PSY\d T_SSgW[U dWaV O

ROWYf ZOeWZbZ \T &)'*h7 Oa Ga >OZS`k` DO_X'

HVS ZO]` PSY\d `V\d ROWYf ZW[WZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` T_\Z 2 a\ *+ :SP_bO_f +)+*' HVS Q\YRS`a [WUVa

dO` **aV(*+aV :SP_bO_f' HSZ]S_Oab_S` TSYY PSY\d &.h7 OQ_\`` Z\`a \T aVS I? O[R &*) a\ &*.h7 \_

Y\dS_ OQ_\`` [\_aV&SO`a GQ\aYO[R i O_\b[R *-h7 PSY\d OcS_OUS T\_ aVS aWZS \T fSO_' C[Yf O TSd

Q\O`aOY T_W[US` W[ aVS dS`a O[R `\baV S`QO]SR O T_\`a' 8OWYf ZW[WZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` O_S \P`S_cSR

T_\Z )2)) a\ )2)) IH7 O[R `W[QS aVS Y\dS`a aSZ]S_Oab_S` \QQb__SR O_\b[R )2)) IH7% aVW`

OQQ\b[aSR T\_ aVS cS_f Y\d aSZ]S_Oab_S` \[ P\aV **aV O[R *+aV'

Page 224
Item 6



HVS ZO] PSY\d `V\d` ROWYf ZW[WZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` OQ_\`` GQ\aYO[R O[R [\_aV&SO`a 9[UYO[R \[

** :SP_bO_f +)+*' AW[WZO dS_S dWRSYf &. a\ *)h7 OQ_\`` [\_aVS_[ 9[UYO[R% dVWYS Wa dO` O[

SeQS]aW\[OYYf Q\YR [WUVa OQ_\`` SO`aS_[ GQ\aYO[R' HVS ]_\cW`W\[OY ROWYf O_SO&OcS_OUS ZW[WZbZ

aSZ]S_Oab_S T\_ SO`aS_[ GQ\aYO[R dO` &*+',h7 ZOXW[U aVW` aVS Q\YRS`a [WUVa VS_S `W[QS ,_R

8SQSZPS_ +)*) #&*,'.h7$' HV_SS `aOaW\[` TSYY PSY\d &+)h73 &+)'2h7 Oa 6OYZ\_OY O[R &+,')h7 Oa

6_OSZO_ #P\aV 5PS_RSS[`VW_S$ O[R &+*',h7 Oa ?W[P_OQS% GbaVS_YO[R' HSZ]S_Oab_S` TSYY dSYY PSY\d

&*)h7 ScS[ \[ aVS Q\O`a% dWaV &*0'+h7 Oa HOW[ FO[US% 7_\ZO_af% &*.'+h7 Oa @\``WSZ\baV% A\_Of% &

*.'+h7 Oa 8fQS% 5PS_RSS[% &*+'+h7 Oa @SbQVO_`% :WTS O[R &*,')h7 Oa 9RW[Pb_UV% ;\UO_PO[X'

GScS_OY `aOaW\[` W[ aVW` O_SO _SQ\_RSR aVSW_ Q\YRS`a :SP_bO_f [WUVa `W[QS *201 O[R Oa @\``WSZ\baV

Wa dO` aVS Q\YRS`a :SP_bO_f [WUVa W[ O /2&fSO_ _SQ\_R'

Page 225
Item 6



HVS Y\dS`a aSZ]S_Oab_S \T aVS `]SYY% &+,')h7 Oa 6_OSZO_% dO` aVS I?k` Y\dS`a aSZ]S_Oab_S `W[QS

&+0'+h7 Oa 5Ya[OVO__O% GbaVS_YO[R \[ ,) 8SQSZPS_ *22. #aVS I?k` S^bOY&Y\dS`a aSZ]S_Oab_S \[

_SQ\_R$' FOcS[`d\_aV #B\_aV M\_X`VW_S$ _SQ\_RSR O ZW[WZbZ \T &*.',h7 \[ *+aV #aVW` \QQb__W[U

OTaS_ )2)) IH7 \[ **aV$ i ZOXW[U aVW` 9[UYO[Rk` Y\dS`a aSZ]S_Oab_S `W[QS ** :SP_bO_f +)*+'

HSZ]S_Oab_S` PSY\d &+)h7 O_S Q\Z]O_OaWcSYf b[b`bOY W[ aVS I?% VOcW[U YO`a \QQb__SR W[ +)*)%

+))* O[R *22.% dVWYS W[ _SQS[a fSO_` &*.h7 VO` OY`\ PSS[ b[b`bOY' HVS TWUb_S PSY\d Q\b[a` aVS

[bZPS_ \T ROf` Pf fSO_ T_\Z *2/* dWaV Oa YSO`a \[S `aOaW\[ _SQ\_RW[U &*.h7 O[R &+)h7 \_ Y\dS_' =[

P\aV QO`S` aVS_S dS_S US[S_OYYf Z\_S ROf` W[ aVS fSO_` T_\Z *2/* a\ aVS ZWR&*21)` Q\Z]O_SR a\

aVS `SQ\[R VOYT \T aVS `S_WS`' =[ *21+ aVS_S dS_S \cS_ .) \P`S_cOaW\[` \T &+)h7 OQ_\`` 9[UYO[R

O[R GQ\aYO[R W[ O PWaaS_Yf Q\YR `]SYY PSadSS[ 0aV O[R *.aV >O[bO_f% dVWYS W[ *22. aVS_S dS_S \cS_

,) \P`S_cOaW\[` \T &+)h7 OQ_\`` GQ\aYO[R T_\Z +1aV a\ ,)aV 8SQSZPS_' =[ +)*) aVS_S dS_S `ScS_OY

`]SYY` \T `ScS_S dW[aS_ dSOaVS_ dWaV &+)h7 _SQ\_RSR W[ P\aV >O[bO_f O[R 8SQSZPS_ O[R &*.h7

_SQ\_RSR \[ ,0 `S]O_OaS ROf` W[ >O[bO_f% :SP_bO_f% AO_QV% B\cSZPS_ O[R 8SQSZPS_'

A\_S aVO[ ,) `aOaW\[` OQ_\`` aVS I? _SQ\_RSR ZW[WZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` PSY\d &*)h7 \[ **

:SP_bO_f +)+*% ZOXW[U aVW` aVS Z\`a dWRS`]_SOR `ScS_S T_\`a `W[QS :SP_bO_f +)*+'

Page 226
Item 6



HVS TWUb_S PSY\d `V\d` V\b_Yf OW_ aSZ]S_Oab_S Oa 5cWSZ\_S #=[cS_[S``&`VW_S$% 6_OSZO_

#5PS_RSS[`VW_S$ O[R 7OW_[U\_Z `bZZWa #*+,0ZO`Y$ aV_\bUV aVS `]SYY' HSZ]S_Oab_S` Oa 6_OSZO_

TSYY PSY\d &*)h7 T\_ T\b_ Q\[`SQbaWcS [WUVa`% dWaV aVS Q\YRS`a [WUVa **aV(*+aV TOYYW[U PSY\d &+)h7%

O[R ROfaWZS aSZ]S_Oab_S` _SZOW[W[U dSYY PSY\d T_SSgW[U' 6f Q\[a_O`a aVS OW_ aSZ]S_Oab_S Oa

7OW_[U\_Z `bZZWa _SZOW[SR _SYOaWcSYf `aSORf Oa O_\b[R &*)h7'

HVS TWUb_S PSY\d `V\d` V\b_Yf OW_ aSZ]S_Oab_S Oa KSfP\b_[S #B\_T\YX$% AO[`a\[ #?S[a$ O[R Ga

>OZS`k` DO_X #@\[R\[$' B\aS aVS RWTTS_S[a f&OeW` `QOYS' =[ Q\[a_O`a a\ GQ\aYO[R% aSZ]S_Oab_S`

OQ_\`` `\baV&SO`a 9[UYO[R _SZOW[SR US[S_OYYf QY\`S a\ )h7% dWaV aVS SO`aS_Yf dW[R aS[RW[U a\

Z\`aYf `b]]_S`` aVS RWb_[OY aSZ]S_Oab_S cO_WOaW\[' HVS_S dS_S ]O_aWQbYO_Yf `a_\[U SO`aS_Yf dW[R` Oa

aVS `aO_a \T aVS `]SYY% S`]SQWOYYf \[ Se]\`SR SO`aS_[ Q\O`a`% dWaV KSfP\b_[S _SQ\_RW[U O ZOeWZbZ

Ub`a \T -1?a #..Z]V$ \[ aVS 0aV' KW[R` W[YO[R Ub`aSR dWRSYf Oa O_\b[R +) a\ ,)?a #+, a\ ,.Z]V$

_S`bYaW[U W[ `ScS_S dW[R&QVWYY O[R R_WTaW[U \T YfW[U `[\d'

Page 227
Item 6



HVS TWUb_S PSY\d `V\d` V\b_Yf `[\d RS]aV` Oa aV_SS `aOaW\[` OQ_\`` aVS `\baV&SO`a3 AO[`a\[

#?S[a$% 5[R_Sd`TWSYR #9``Se$ O[R HWPS[VOZ #B\_T\YX$% O[R OY`\ 5P\f[S #5PS_RSS[`VW_S$' *) a\

+)QZ TSYY Oa aVS`S Y\QOaW\[` W[ aVS `\baV&SO`a \[ 0aV O[R 1aV% dWaV aVW` YfW[U YO_USYf b[&ZSYaSR b[aWY

aVS *.aV' 5a 5P\f[S% ]S_`W`aS[a `[\d `V\dS_` YSR a\ O ZbQV U_SOaS_ RS]aV \T `[\d% SeQSSRW[U

,)QZ T_\Z 1aV a\ *.aV% dWaV O ZOeWZbZ RS]aV \T -+QZ'

HVS TWUb_S PSY\d `V\d` `[\d RS]aV` \[ *) :SP_bO_f +)+*' DO_a` \T ?S[a O[R 9O`a 5[UYWO

_SQ\_RSR RS]aV` \T *. a\ +)QZ \_ Z\_S T_\Z aVS VSOcf `[\d \T 0 :SP_bO_f% Pba `[\d RS]aV` b]

aVS SO`a Q\O`a dS_S Z\_S af]WQOYYf . a\ *)QZ' HVS RSS]S`a YfW[U `[\d dO` OQ_\`` GQ\aYO[R

O_\b[R 9RW[Pb_UV% :WTS% 5[Ub`% ?W[QO_RW[S`VW_S O[R 5PS_RSS[`VW_S dWaV RS]aV` \T +) a\ ,)QZ \_

Z\_S% W[QYbRW[U ,1QZ Oa 5P\f[S% 5PS_RSS[`VW_S% ,.QZ Oa :SaaS_QOW_[% ?W[QO_RW[S`VW_S% +/QZ Oa

AfY[STWSYR% 5[Ub` O[R +,QZ Oa DS[WQbWX% AWR&@\aVWO[' HVS_S dO` OY`\ RSS] YfW[U `[\d ]O_a` \T

OQ_\`` aVS [\_aV DS[[W[S` dWaV +*QZ Oa 7\]YSf% 7\b[af 8b_VOZ' <\dScS_% Z\`a QS[a_OY O[R

dS`aS_[ ]O_a` \T aVS I? `VSYaS_SR T_\Z aVS SO`a _SZOW[SR `[\d T_SS'

HVW` dO` aVS I?k` Z\`a `ScS_S `]SYY \T dW[a_f dSOaVS_ `W[QS aVS j6SO`a T_\Z aVS 9O`ak ScS[a \T YOaS

:SP_bO_f a\ SO_Yf AO_QV +)*1' 5YaV\bUV ZW[WZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` TSYY Y\dS_ Rb_W[U :SP_bO_f +)+*%

ROWYf ZOeWZbZ aSZ]S_Oab_S` dS_S US[S_OYYf Y\dS_ Rb_W[U aVS +)*1 ScS[a dWaV jWQS&ROf`k #aVS

aSZ]S_Oab_S _SZOW[W[U PSY\d )h7 OYY ROf$ Z\_S dWRS`]_SOR i ]O_aWQbYO_Yf \[ +1 :SP_bO_f O[R *

AO_QV +)*1' =[ +)*1 aVS `[\d dO` OY`\ US[S_OYYf ZbQV Z\_S dWRS`]_SOR O[R RSS]S_% dWaV

`WU[WTWQO[a RS]aV` OQ_\`` KOYS`% QS[a_OY `\baVS_[ O[R `\baV&dS`a 9[UYO[R' HVS_S dO` OY`\ O P_WST

`]SYY \T dWRS`]_SOR `[\d O[R Y\d aSZ]S_Oab_S` dVWQV QOb`SR RW`_b]aW\[ W[ YOaS >O[bO_f ( SO_Yf

:SP_bO_f +)*2'

0aV a\ *,aV :SP_bO_f +)+* dO` O [\aOPYS `]SYY \T `ScS_S dW[aS_f dSOaVS_ i ]O_aWQbYO_Yf W[

Q\Z]O_W`\[ a\ `ScS_OY cS_f ZWYR dW[aS_` W[ aVS YO`a TSd RSQORS`% Pba d\bYR [\a PS Q\[`WRS_SR

SeQS]aW\[OY Q\Z]O_SR a\ Y\[U&aS_Z QYWZOaS _SQ\_R`% YS`` `ScS_S aVO[ +)*1 O[R cS_f ZbQV YS``

`ScS_S aVO[ aVS SeQS]aW\[OY T_SSgW[U dSOaVS_ \T 8SQSZPS_ +)*)'

Page 228
Item 6



5baV\_3 AWXS ?S[R\[% ASa CTTWQS BOaW\[OY 7YWZOaS =[T\_ZOaW\[ 7S[a_S

@O`a b]ROaSR *2()+(+)+*

Page 229
Item 6



C[VYT >ISQR IUL Z[VYT 4VYYQM% ;IU\IY_ +)++

C[VYTZ >ISQR IUL 4VYYQM% IYYQ]QUO QU X\QKR Z\KKMZZQVU% JYV\OP[ LITIOQUO UVY[P&^MZ[MYS_

^QULZ [V UVY[PMYU CKV[SIUL IUL UVY[P&MIZ[ 6UOSIUL' >ISQR% UITML J_ [PM 5IUQZP

>M[MVYVSVOQKIS :UZ[Q[\[M% JYV\OP[ ^QLMZWYMIL ^QUL O\Z[Z VN V]MY .)<[ #.1TWP$% IUL ^IZ

VUM VN [PM [MU TVZ[ ZQOUQNQKIU[ ^QU[MY Z[VYTZ [V INNMK[ [PM E< ZQUKM [PM Z[VYT UITQUO

Z_Z[MT ^IZ QU[YVL\KML NVY [PM +)*-(+)*. ZMIZVU' 4VYYQM% IYYQ]QUO VUS_ ,. PV\YZ SI[MY%

JYV\OP[ N\Y[PMY LITIOQUO ^QULZ% ^Q[P O\Z[Z YMIKPQUO 0)<[ #1+TWP$ I[ C[VYUV^I_ 2QYWVY[

#GMZ[MYU :ZSMZ$ IUL /1<[ #1*TWP$ I[ :U]MYJMY]QM #<QUKIYLQUMZPQYM$'

:TWIK[Z

Gc\ ]R\]YR cR^R XVYYRQ Oe SNYYV[T `^RR_ V[ F`NSS\^Q_UV^R N[Q 5OR^QRR[ QaR `\ _`\^Z ANYVX' GUR^R

cR^R cVQR_]^RNQ ^R]\^`_ \S _`^aP`a^NY QNZNTR cV`U SNYYV[T O^VPX_ N[Q QRO^V_% N[Q `UR ^\\S \S N

U\a_R cN_ OY\c[ \SS V[ ;N`R_URNQ' :NYYV[T `^RR_ ^R_aY`RQ V[ Y\__ \S ]\cR^ _a]]YVR_ `\ `R[_ \S

`U\a_N[Q_ \S U\ZR_ V[ N^RN_ _aPU N_ 5OR^QRR[_UV^R% B\^`UaZOR^YN[Q N[Q 7\a[`e 8a^UNZ%

NY`U\aTU `UR Rd`R[` \S `UR QNZNTR cN_ [\` N_ _VT[VSVPN[` N_ S^\Z _`\^Z 5^cR[ V[ YN`R B\bRZOR^'

GUR^R cN_ ZNW\^ QV_^a]`V\[ `\ ^NVY _R^bVPR_ V[ [\^`U&RN_` 9[TYN[Q N[Q FP\`YN[Q% N[Q QVSSVPaY` Q^VbV[T

P\[QV`V\[_ cV`U N [aZOR^ \S \bR^`a^[RQ Y\^^VR_' :R^^e _NVYV[T_ V[ FP\`YN[Q cR^R QRYNeRQ \^

PN[PRYYRQ' FRbR^NY _PU\\Y_ V[ 5OR^QRR[_UV^R% `UR <VTUYN[Q_ N[Q A\^Ne cR^R PY\_RQ QaR `\ _`\^Z

QNZNTR \^ ]\cR^ \a`NTR_'

GMI[PMY LI[I

GUR N[NYe_V_ PUN^` N` *+)) HG7 +2 >N[aN^e +)++ _U\c_ _`\^Z ANYVX `\ `UR [\^`U&RN_` \S `UR H?

cV`U N[ N__\PVN`RQ P\YQ S^\[` _cRR]V[T _\a`U&RN_` NP^\__ `UR P\a[`^e' GUR `VTU`Ye ]NPXRQ V_\ON^_

]^\bVQR N[ V[QVPN`V\[ \S `UR _`^R[T`U \S `UR [\^`U&cR_`R^Ye cV[Q_'

Page 230
Item 6



GUR ZN] ORY\c _U\c_ ZNdVZaZ Ta_` _]RRQ_ S^\Z _`\^Z ANYVX \[ +2 >N[aN^e +)++' ;a_`_ \S /)

`\ 0)?` #/2 `\ 1*Z]U$ cR^R ^RP\^QRQ cVQRYe NP^\__ _`N`V\[_ V[ FP\`YN[Q N[Q [\^`U&RN_` 9[TYN[Q'

GUR UVTUR_` Ta_`_ cR^R 1*?` #2,Z]U$ N` 6^VfYRR J\\Q #B\^`UaZOR^YN[Q$% 0-?` #1.Z]U$ N`

=[bR^OR^bVR #?V[PN^QV[R_UV^R$% 0+?` #1,Z]U$ N` 9ZYRe A\\^ #JR_` L\^X_UV^R$% 0)?` #1*Z]U$ N`

@\PU ;YN_PN^[\PU #<VTUYN[Q$ N[Q /2?` #02Z]U$ N` F\a`U HV_` #JR_`R^[ =_YR_$' JV[Q_ Ta_`RQ N`

\bR^ *))?` NP^\__ FP\`YN[Qg_ Z\a[`NV[ _aZZV`_ cV`U *+1?` #*-0Z]U$ N` 7NV^[T\^Z FaZZV`% *+,0

ZR`^R_ NO\bR ZRN[ _RN YRbRY #ZN_Y$'

Page 231
Item 6



GUR N[NYe_V_ PUN^` N` )))) HG7 ,* >N[aN^e +)++ _U\c_ _`\^Z 7\^^VR V[ `UR B\^`U FRN% O^V[TV[T

Sa^`UR^ bR^e _`^\[T [\^`U&cR_`R^Ye cV[Q_ NP^\__ `UR H?'

GUR ZN] ORY\c _U\c_ ZNdVZaZ Ta_` _]RRQ_ S^\Z _`\^Z 7\^^VR S^\Z ,) `\ ,* >N[aN^e +)++'

;a_`_ \S /) `\ 0)?` #/2 `\ 1*Z]U$ cR^R ^RP\^QRQ NTNV[ NP^\__ ]N^`_ \S FP\`YN[Q N[Q [\^`UR^[

9[TYN[Q% NY`U\aTU `UR N^RN NSSRP`RQ Oe `UR UVTUR_` Ta_`_ cN_ TR[R^NYYe _ZNYYR^ V[ Rd`R[` `UN[

_`\^Z ANYVX' GUR UVTUR_` Ta_`_ cR^R 1)?` #2+Z]U$ N` F`\^[\cNe 5V^]\^` #JR_`R^[ =_YR_$% 02?`

#2*Z]U$ N` =[bR^OR^bVR #?V[PN^QV[R_UV^R$% /0?` #00Z]U$ N` @\PU ;YN_PN^[\PU #<VTUYN[Q$ N[Q //?`

#0/Z]U$ N` F\a`U HV_` #JR_`R^[ =_YR_$' JV[Q_ NTNV[ Ta_`RQ N` \bR^ *))?` #**.Z]U$ NP^\__

FP\`YN[Qg_ Z\a[`NV[ _aZZV`_'

Page 232
Item 6



GUR PUN^` ORY\c _U\c_ U\a^Ye ZNdVZaZ Ta_` _]RRQ_ Qa^V[T _`\^Z_ ANYVX N[Q 7\^^VR N` F`\^[\cNe

5V^]\^`% =[bR^OR^bVR N[Q 6^VfYRR J\\Q% cV`U `UR_R `c\ [NZRQ _`\^Z_ \[Ye N^\a[Q ,/ U\a^_ N]N^`'

5` =[bR^OR^bVR% 02?` #2*Z]U$ Qa^V[T _`\^Z 7\^^VR cN_ `UR UVTUR_` cV[Q Ta_` \[ ^RP\^Q N` `UV_

_`N`V\[% RdPRRQV[T 01?` #2)Z]U$ \[ 1 8RPRZOR^ +)**% cV`U cV[Q \O_R^bN`V\[_ S\^ `UV_ _`N`V\[ S^\Z

+)*)'

Page 233
Item 6



GUR PUN^` ORY\c _U\c_ U\a^Ye ZNdVZaZ Ta_` _]RRQ_ Qa^V[T _`\^Z_ ANYVX N[Q 7\^^VR N` 7NV^[T\^Z

FaZZV` #*+,0ZN_Y$% 7NV^[cRYY #2+1ZN_Y$ N[Q 6RNYNPU BN 6N #00,ZN_Y$$ N[Q ]^\bVQR_ N[

V[QVPN`V\[ \S `UR SR^\PV`e \S cV[Q Ta_`_ NP^\__ FP\`YN[Qg_ Z\a[`NV[ _aZZV`_' 5` 7NV^[T\^Z _aZZV`%

ZNdVZaZ Ta_` _]RRQ_ Qa^V[T _`\^Z ANYVX cR^R N^\a[Q 2)?` #*)-Z]U$ \^ UVTUR^ S\^ N ]R^V\Q \S

NYZ\_` +- U\a^_% cV`U Ta_`_ \S \bR^ *))?` #**.Z]U$ S\^ 1 U\a^_ S^\Z ),)) HG7 `\ **)) HG7 \[

+2`U N[Q N ]RNX Ta_` \S *+1?`' H[S\^`a[N`RYe% `UV_ _`N`V\[ Rd]R^VR[PRQ _\ZR Y\__ \S QN`N S\^ O\`U

[NZRQ _`\^Z_' GUV_ cN_ `UR H?g_ UVTUR_` ^RP\^QRQ cV[Q Ta_` _V[PR *+2?` #*-1Z]U$ S^\Z _`\^Z

7\[\^ \[ +. 8RPRZOR^ +)*/' GUR H? ^RP\^Q V_ *.)?` #*0,Z]U$ N` 7NV^[T\^Z FaZZV` \[ +)

AN^PU *21/'

GUR `NOYR ORY\c ]^\bVQR_ N P\a[` \S `UR [aZOR^ \S _`N`V\[_ ^RP\^QV[T N ZNdVZaZ Ta_` \S /)?`

#/2Z]U$% \^ UVTUR^% _V[PR _`\^Z [NZR_ cR^R V[`^\QaPRQ S\^ `UR +)*.(+)*/ _RN_\[' GUV_ ]^\bVQR_ N

N O^\NQ V[QVPN`V\[ \S `UR _]N`VNY Rd`R[` \S `UR _`^\[TR_` cV[Q_' GUR^R cR^R +, H? _`N`V\[_

Page 234
Item 6



^RP\^QV[T Ta_`_ RdPRRQV[T /)?` Qa^V[T _`\^Z ANYVX% Oe `UV_ ZR`^VP ZNXV[T `UV_ _`\^Z NZ\[T `UR

`\]&`R[ Z\_` _VT[VSVPN[` [NZRQ _`\^Z_ _V[PR `UR _`\^Z [NZV[T _e_`RZ cN_ V[`^\QaPRQ' CS `UR +)

QN`R_ V[ `UR `NOYR% NYY Oa` `c\ N^R S\^ [NZRQ _`\^Z_' <\cRbR^% ^N[XV[T _`\^Z_ V_ P\Z]YRd N_ V`

QR]R[Q_ \[ `UR _]N`VNY Rd`R[`% _RbR^V`e% Qa^N`V\[ N[Q QV^RP`V\[ \S `UR cV[Q Ta_`_ S^\Z RNPU _`\^Z%

NYY \S cUVPU cVYY UNbR QVSSR^V[T PUN^NP`R^V_`VP_% N[Q V[ NQQV`V\[ V` QR]R[Q_ \[ `UR _]N`VNY QV_`^VOa`V\[

\S `UR [R`c\^X \S _`N`V\[_ ^RP\^QV[T cV[Q _]RRQ_' GUR^RS\^R% `UV_ P\Z]N^V_\[ cVYY [\` NYcNe_ ^RSYRP`

`UR _RbR^V`e \S `UR VZ]NP`_ S^\Z N[ V[QVbVQaNY _`\^Z' :\^ RdNZ]YR% N ^RQ cN^[V[T S\^ cV[Q cN_

V__aRQ S\^ _`\^Z 5^cR[ \[ +/ `\ +0 B\bRZOR^ +)+* S\^ [\^`U RN_` P\N_`NY ^RTV\[_% Oa` `UV_ Q\R_

[\` SRN`a^R \[ `UV_ `NOYR #P\a[` 2$% N[Q V_ cUe `UR [N`V\[NY _RbR^R cRN`UR^ cN^[V[T _R^bVPR

NPP\a[`_ S\^ O\`U `UR ZR`R\^\Y\TVPNY UNfN^Q% N[Q `UR ]\`R[`VNY VZ]NP`_'

5 ^RQ cN^[V[T S\^ cV[Q cN_ ]^RbV\a_Ye V__aRQ S\^ _`\^Z ;R^`^aQR N[Q `UV_ V_ N^TaNOYe `UR Z\_`

_VT[VSVPN[` ZNW\^ cV[`R^ _`\^Z _V[PR `UR _`\^Z [NZV[T _e_`RZ cN_ V[`^\QaPRQ% cV`U ,* _`N`V\[_

#N^\a[Q N SVS`U \S `UR [R`c\^X$ ^RP\^QV[T Ta_`_ \S \bR^ /)?` #/2Z]U$ N[Q *+ _`N`V\[_ \bR^ 0)?`

#1*Z]U$' @\\XV[T _YVTU`Ye Sa^`UR^ ONPX% \bR^ `UR YN_` QRPNQR% `UR S\a^ Z\_` _VT[VSVPN[` _`\^Z_ N^R .

8RPRZOR^ +)*, #P\a[` ./$4 , >N[aN^e +)*+ #P\a[` -+$% 1 8RPRZOR^ +)** #P\a[` -)$ N[Q *+

:RO^aN^e +)*- #P\a[` ,2$'

5I[M 4V\U[ C[VYT

+2()*(+)*/ ,* ;R^`^aQR

)2()+(+)+) ,* 7VN^N

*2()2(+)*1 ,) 5YV

)*()+(+)*/ +- <R[^e

+1()*(+)++ +, >ISQR

*/(*)(+)*0 *2 9d&Ua^^VPN[R C]URYVN

+,()+(+)*0 *0 8\^V_

+/(*+(+)*/ */ 7\[\^

**()*(+)*0 */ a[&[NZRQ

*,()*(+)+) */ 6^R[QN[

+/(**(+)+* *. 5^cR[

)1()+(+)*/ *- =Z\TR[

+,(*+(+)*/ *- 6N^ON^N

*/()+(+)+) *- 8R[[V_

)0(*+(+)*0 *, 7N^\YV[R

),()*(+)*1 *, 9YRN[\^

*1()*(+)*1 *, 8NbVQ

++()+(+)+) *+ a[&[NZRQ

+2(**(+)*. ** 7Y\QNTU

+2(*+(+)*. ** :^N[X

5a`U\^3 AVXR ?R[Q\[% AR` CSSVPR BN`V\[NY 7YVZN`R =[S\^ZN`V\[ 7R[`^R

@N_` a]QN`RQ ),()+(+)++

Page 235
Item 6



Storm Otto, 17 February 2023 

Storm Otto on 17 February 2023 was the first named storm of the 2022/2023 storm season. 

The storm was named by the Danish Meteorological Institute and brought gusts of over 

60Kt to parts of northern and eastern Scotland and north-east England. The storm tracked 

rapidly eastwards across northern Scotland before moving across the North Sea toward 

Norway. This was a fairly typical Atlantic winter storm for the UK. 

Impacts 

Thousands of homes across northern Scotland experienced power cuts overnight 16th to 17th. 

The storm caused transport disruption, with trains, buses and ferry services delayed or cancelled, 

and fallen trees blocked many routes in Aberdeenshire. There was some damage to buildings and 

vehicles and over 100 schools were closed in Aberdeenshire. These impacts were fairly typical for 

a named winter storm. Storm Otto then continued east where it caused further weather impacts to 

southern Norway and Sweden, and northern Denmark. 

Weather data 

The analysis chart at 0600UTC 17 February 2023 shows the centre of storm Otto over the 

Northern Isles driving very strong north-westerly winds across Scotland and north-east England. 

Page 236
Item 6



The rain-radar image at 0000UTC 17 February 2023 shows heavy rain across western Scotland 

as storm Otto approaches. 

Page 237
Item 6



The satellite image at 1127UTC 17 February 2023 shows the storm centre to the west of Norway, 

having tracked rapidly eastwards across the North Sea. 

Page 238
Item 6



The map below shows maximum gust speeds from storm Otto on 17 February 2023. The 

strongest winds were across the Western Isles, northern and eastern Scotland and north-east 

England, with gusts of 60 to 70Kt (69 to 81mph). The highest gusts were 72Kt (83mph) at 

Inverbervie, Kincardineshire, 70Kt (81mph) at Tain Range (Ross & Cromarty) and 70Kt (81mph) at 

Lossiemouth (Moray). Further south in England, Emley Moor (West Yorkshire) recorded a gust of 

65Kt (75mph) and Brizlee Wood (Northumberland) a gust of 61Kt (70mph). Winds were 

particularly high across Scotland’s mountain summits with 106Kt (122mph) recorded at Cairngorm 

Summit, 1237 metres above mean sea level (masl). Inverbervie recorded its highest February gust 

on record, in data from 1992.  

Page 239
Item 6



The chart below shows hourly maximum gust speeds at Stornoway Airport (Western Isles), 

Lossiemouth (Moray) and Inverbervie (Kincardineshire) from 15 to 19 February 2023. Overall, 

wind gusts from this event were not exceptional and this was a fairly typical Atlantic winter storm 

for the UK. 

Author: Mike Kendon, Met Office National Climate Information Centre 

Last updated 22/02/2023 

Page 240
Item 6



Page 241
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-+'.() '/0'1(23'/-//*+,-+'.() '/0'1(23'/-//
456'%27$868%#'6%9(6&829'):8#';(62829'<=%(#%'>52)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA8>%'B%():%6'456'%27$868%#'6%9(6&829'):8#';(62829'<=%(#%'>52)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA8>%'B%():%6'C%#DC%#D

E:52%,E:52%,)6786)966)6366 )FGH(8=,FGH(8=,)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

I8#8),I8#8),)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

Y'0;<) ) Z;'E++) ) M%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'E) [%'-&<<) )

YN+-E++') ) YN+-E++'</%-+) ) I&-#H) )

\%(+#') *%#-) ) T%0/(#'E) )

X+$A++'
*+,--'.$2'J-'1(2'/-//*+,--'.$2'J-'1(2'/-// ))#'E
-K,--'?52'J*'1(2'/-//-K,--'?52'J*'1(2'/-//

Y(()-+0%&'<)])#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

L%2)6(=3'M(N#8&%'O'48A%L%2)6(=3'M(N#8&%'O'48A%

P6(H<8(2P6(H<8(2

Q89:=(2&#'O'F8=%(2'.8(6Q89:=(2&#'O'F8=%(2'.8(6

Y>N+-)A#-'%'0
B82&B82&

Page 242
Item 6



Page 243
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"# # $% & '() '"# # $% & '() ' *+,-.'/0 1 '2 '3(45 '6*7+*+,-.'/0 1'2 '3(45 '6*7+
/8 0 '% 4 9 $ 1 0 1 % # '0 % : ( 0 & 1 4 : '); 1 # '<( 0 4 1 4 : '= > % ( # % '? 8 4 )( ? ) '); % '@ % ) 'A B B 1 ? % 'C% ( ); % 0 '/8 0 '% 4 9 $ 1 0 1 % # '0 % : ( 0 & 1 4 : '); 1 # '<( 0 4 1 4 : '= > % ( # % '? 8 4 )( ? ) '); % '@ % ) 'A B B 1 ? % 'C% ( ); % 0 ' D % # ED % # E

F ; 8 4 % ,F ; 8 4 % , )6786)966)6366 )G HI ( 1 > ,G HI ( 1 > , )+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+ ?0&,?;@

J1 # 1 ) ,J1 # 1 ) , )AAA?>+$&44 %1+ ?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$ ?)I+$)J44%1+

K

\'0;<) ) 2+-$/) #'E) ]%'-&<<) )

\N+-E++') ) \N+-E++'</%-+ ) ) I&-#H) )

^%(+#') *%#-) ) _%0/(#'E) )

J-@'+H) R<(#'E<) ) */+$(#'E) R<(#'E<) )

Z+$A++'
76,**'@8 4'.'3(4'6*7+76,**'@8 4'.'3(4'6*7+ ))#'E
7N,**'O $% 'P'3(4'6*7+7N,**'O $% 'P'3(4'6*7+

\(()-+0%&'<)`)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

Q% 4 )0( >5 ' O ( K# 1& % 'R ' /1B %Q% 4 )0( >5 ' O ( K# 1& % 'R ' /1B %

S 0( I= 1( 4S 0( I= 1( 4

T1:; >( 4 & # 'R 'G 1 >% ( 4 ' L 1( 0T1:; >( 4 & # 'R 'G 1 >% ( 4 ' L 1( 0

A 0E4 % K'R 'L; % )>( 4 &A 0E4 % K'R 'L; % )>( 4 &

[+((&A)A#-'%'0
C14&C14&

Page 244
Item 6



Page 245
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"# # $% & '() '"# # $% & '() ' *+,-.'/0 1 '2 '3(45 '6*7+*+,-.'/0 1'2 '3(45 '6*7+ '' '' 89 & () % & '() '89 & () % & '() ' 7*,6*': $4';'3(45'6*7+7*,6*': $4';'3(45 '6*7+
/< 0 '% 4 = $ 1 0 1 % # '0 % > ( 0 & 1 4 > ')? 1 # '@( 0 4 1 4 > '9 A % ( # % 'B < 4 )( B ) ')? % 'C % ) 'D E E 1 B % 'F% ( )? % 0 '/< 0 '% 4 = $ 1 0 1 % # '0 % > ( 0 & 1 4 > ')? 1 # '@( 0 4 1 4 > '9 A % ( # % 'B < 4 )( B ) ')? % 'C % ) 'D E E 1 B % 'F% ( )? % 0 ' G % # HG % # H

I ? < 4 % ,I ? < 4 % , )6786)966)6366 )J KL ( 1 A ,J KL ( 1 A , )+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+ ?0&,?;@

M1 # 1 ) ,M1 # 1 ) , )AAA?>+$&44 %1+ ?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$ ?)I+$)J44%1+

K

]'0;<) ) P;'E++) ) T%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'E) ^%'-&<<) )

]N+-E++') ) ]N+-E++'</%-+ ) ) I&-#H) )

_%(+#') *%#-) ) `%0/(#'E) )

J-@'+H) R<(#'E<) ) */+$(#'E) R<(#'E<) )

[+$A++'
*+,**'C< 4'.'3(4'6*7+*+,**'C< 4'.'3(4'6*7+ ))#'E
*;,**'P $% 'Q'3(4'6*7+*;,**'P $% 'Q'3(4'6*7+

](()-+0%&'<)a)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

R% 4 )0( A5 ' P ( N# 1& % 'S ' /1E %R% 4 )0( A5 ' P ( N# 1& % 'S ' /1E %

T 0( L9 1( 4T 0( L9 1( 4

U1>? A( 4 & # 'S 'J 1 A% ( 4 ' : 1( 0U1>? A( 4 & # 'S 'J 1 A% ( 4 ' : 1( 0

D 0H4 % N'S ':? % )A( 4 &D 0H4 % N'S ':? % )A( 4 &

\+((&A)A#-'%'0
F14&F14&

Page 246
Item 6



Page 247
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)V)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' **+,*'-$% './'0$1 2 '.3.***+,*'-$%'./'0$1 2'.3.* '' '' 45&()%&'() '45&()%&'() ' 3,+,6'7%&'.8'0$1 2'.3.*3,+,6'7%&'.8'0$1 2'.3.*
9:;'%<=$>;>%#';%?(;&><?')@>#'A(;<><?'51%(#%'B:<)(B)')@%'C%)'DEE>B%'7%()@%;'9:;'%<=$>;>%#';%?(;&><?')@>#'A(;<><?'51%(#%'B:<)(B)')@%'C%)'DEE>B%'7%()@%;'F%#GF%#G

H@:<%+H@:<%+)6576)866)6366 )IJK(>1+IJK(>1+)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

L>#>)+L>#>)+)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J
U+$@++'
3M+33'7%&'.8'0$1 '.3.*3M+33'7%&'.8'0$1 '.3.* ))#'D
3M+33'-@$'.6'0$1 '.3.*3M+33'-@$'.6'0$1 '.3.*

W+#;&')4&-):BD#$+

.#-'%'0)#-+#)+K$+'D+D)+#;$@#-D;)#1-&;;)QM+-D++';/%-+

Q=M+-)@#-'%'0
N(><N(><

Page 248
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' **+,*'-$% './'0$1 2 '.3.***+,*'-$%'./'0$1 2'.3.* '' '' 45&()%&'() '45&()%&'() ' 3,+,6'7%&'.8'0$1 2'.3.*3,+,6'7%&'.8'0$1 2'.3.*
9:;'%<=$>;>%#';%?(;&><?')@>#'A(;<><?'51%(#%'B:<)(B)')@%'C%)'DEE>B%'7%()@%;'9:;'%<=$>;>%#';%?(;&><?')@>#'A(;<><?'51%(#%'B:<)(B)')@%'C%)'DEE>B%'7%()@%;'F%#GF%#G

H@:<%+H@:<%+)6576)866)6366 )IJK(>1+IJK(>1+)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

L>#>)+L>#>)+)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J

QM+-D++') ) QM+-D++';/%-+) ) H&-#G) )

L%0/(#'D) )

U+$@++'
3M+33'7%&'.8'0$1 '.3.*3M+33'7%&'.8'0$1 '.3.* ))#'D
3M+33'-@$'.6'0$1 '.3.*3M+33'-@$'.6'0$1 '.3.*

Q(()-+0%&';)X)#:$/&-%$%+;)#44+1$+D

O;(K5>(<O;(K5>(<

P>?@1(<&#'Q'I>1%(<'R>(;P>?@1(<&#'Q'I>1%(<'R>(;

Q=M+-)@#-'%'0
N(><N(><

Page 249
Item 6



Page 250
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'()'"##$%&'()'*+,-.'/$%'.0'1(23'4*45*+,-.'/$%'.0'1(23'4*45
678'%29$:8:%#'8%;(8&:2;')<:#'=(82:2;'>?%(#%'@72)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'D%()<%8'678'%29$:8:%#'8%;(8&:2;')<:#'=(82:2;'>?%(#%'@72)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'D%()<%8'E%#FE%#F

G<72%,G<72%,)6786)966)6366 )HIJ(:?,HIJ(:?,)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

K:#:),K:#:),)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

S'0;<) ) 2+-$/) #'E) W%'-&<<) )

SO+-E++') ) SO+-E++'</%-+) ) I&-#H) )

Q%0/(#'E) )

V+$A++'
.P,**'/$%'.0'1(2'4*45.P,**'/$%'.0'1(2'4*45))#'E
45,PQ'/$%'.0'1(2'4*4545,PQ'/$%'.0'1(2'4*45

S(()-+0%&'<)X)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

S%2)8(?3'/(N#:&%'T'6:C%S%2)8(?3'/(N#:&%'T'6:C%

U8(J>:(2U8(J>:(2

L:;<?(2&#'T'H:?%(2'R:(8L:;<?(2&#'T'H:?%(2'R:(8

S>O+-)A#-'%'0
R27=R27=

Page 251
Item 6



Page 252
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-+'./$'01'2345'0*06*+,-+'./$'01'2345'0*06
738'%9:$;8;%#'8%<(8&;9<')/;#'=(89;9<'>?%(#%'@39)(@)')/%'A%)'BCC;@%'D%()/%8'738'%9:$;8;%#'8%<(8&;9<')/;#'=(89;9<'>?%(#%'@39)(@)')/%'A%)'BCC;@%'D%()/%8'E%#FE%#F

G/39%,G/39%,)6786)966)6366 )HIJ(;?,HIJ(;?,)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

K;#;),K;#;),)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

T'0;<) ) G(#1@>#''#'</%-+) ) Z;'E++) ) M#(@%-@) ) M%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'E) [%'-&<<) )

TN+-E++') ) TN+-E++'</%-+) ) I&-#H) )

\%0/(#'E) )

Z#-(%'0$&') ) Z;-/#>) ) V#$+</+#E) ) \#-$(+C&&() ) I%EE(+<N-&;0/) ) "+A1#<$(+) ;C&') SH'+) ) "&-$/) SH'+<%E+) )

"&-$/;>N+-(#'E) ) ]+E1#-) #'E) G(+,+(#'E) ) *&;$/) SH'+<%E+) ) *$&1@$&'^&'^S++<) ) *;'E+-(#'E) )

J-@'+H) O<(#'E<) )

U#<$) R&$/%#') ) UE%'N;-0/) ) I%E(&$/%#') G&;'1%() ) *1&$$%</) Y&-E+-<) ) .+<$) R&$/%#') )

"&-$/) _&-@</%-+) )

Y+$A++'
61,**'78;'0L'234'0*0661,**'78;'0L'234'0*06 ))#'E
*+,**'M() '0N'234'0*06*+,**'M() '0N'234'0*06

T(()-+0%&'<)`)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

O%9)8(?5'.(P#;&%'Q'7;C%O%9)8(?5'.(P#;&%'Q'7;C%

R8(J>;(9R8(J>;(9

S;</?(9&#'Q'H;?%(9'M;(8S;</?(9&#'Q'H;?%(9'M;(8

238)/'H(#)'H9<?(9&238)/'H(#)'H9<?(9&

B8F9%P'Q'M/%)?(9&B8F9%P'Q'M/%)?(9&

MD'M@3)?(9&5'T3)/;(9'U38&%8#MD'M@3)?(9&5'T3)/;(9'U38&%8#

V38F#/;8%'Q'S$JW%8V38F#/;8%'Q'S$JW%8

T>N+-)A#-'%'0
D;9&D;9&

Page 253
Item 6



Page 254
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-+'./0'12'3456'1+1**+,-+'./0'12'3456'1+1*
.4/'%78$0/0%#'/%9(/&079'):0#';(/7079'<=%(#%'>47)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA0>%'B%():%/'.4/'%78$0/0%#'/%9(/&079'):0#';(/7079'<=%(#%'>47)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA0>%'B%():%/'C%#DC%#D

E:47%,E:47%,)6786)966)6366 )FGH(0=,FGH(0=,)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

I0#0),I0#0),)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

S'0;<) ) O;'E++) ) M%4+) )

SN+-E++') ) SN+-E++'</%-+) )

O;-/#>) ) Y#-$(+C&&() ) "&-$/) ZH'+<%E+) ) "&-$/;>N+-(#'E) ) Q+E1#-) #'E) G(+,+(#'E) ) *&;$/) ZH'+<%E+) )

*$&1@$&'T&'TZ++<) ) *;'E+-(#'E) )

U#<$) R&$/%#') ) *1&$$%</) X&-E+-<) )

X+$A++'
*J,++'./0'12'345'1+1**J,++'./0'12'345'1+1* ))#'E
+1,++'K() '1L'345'1+1*+1,++'K() '1L'345'1+1*

S(()-+0%&'<)[)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

M%7)/(=6'N(O#0&%'P'.0A%M%7)/(=6'N(O#0&%'P'.0A%

Q/(H<0(7Q/(H<0(7

34/):'F(#)'F79=(7&34/):'F(#)'F79=(7&

KB'K>4)=(7&6'R4):0(7'S4/&%/#KB'K>4)=(7&6'R4):0(7'S4/&%/#

Q+E)A#-'%'0
B07&B07&

Page 255
Item 6



Page 256
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"# # $% & '() '"# # $% & '() ' *+,- .'/% & '.0'1(23'4*.+*+,- .'/% & '.0'1(23 '4*.+
56 7 '% 2 8 $ 9 7 9 % # '7 % : ( 7 & 9 2 : '); 9 # '<( 7 2 9 2 : '= > % ( # % '? 6 2 )( ? ) '); % '@ % ) 'A B B 9 ? % '/% ( ); % 7 '56 7 '% 2 8 $ 9 7 9 % # '7 % : ( 7 & 9 2 : '); 9 # '<( 7 2 9 2 : '= > % ( # % '? 6 2 )( ? ) '); % '@ % ) 'A B B 9 ? % '/% ( ); % 7 ' C % # DC % # D

E ; 6 2 % ,E ; 6 2 % , )6786)966)6366 )F GH ( 9 > ,F GH ( 9 > , )+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+ ?0&,?;@

I9 # 9 ) ,I9 # 9 ) , )AAA?>+$&44 %1+ ?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$ ?)I+$)J44%1+

K

V'0;<) ) 2+-$/) #'E) W%'-&<<) ) *$%-(%'0) )

VM+-E++') ) VM+-E++'</%-+ ) ) I&-#H) )

X%(+#') *%#-) ) R%0/(#'E) )

J-@'+H) Y<(#'E<) ) */+$(#'E) Y<(#'E<) )

V-0H(() #'E) T;$+) )

T+$A++'
.4,**'/% & '.0'1(2'4*.+.4,**'/% & '.0'1(2'4*.+ ))#'E
.4,**'N ;$'.O'1(2'4*.+.4,**'N ;$'.O'1(2'4*.+

V(()-+0%&'<)Z)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

Q% 2 )7( >3 ' N ( K# 9& % 'P ' 59B %Q% 2 )7( >3 ' N ( K# 9& % 'P ' 59B %

R 7( H= 9( 2R 7( H= 9( 2

S9:; >( 2 & # 'P 'F 9 >% ( 2 ' J 9( 7S9:; >( 2 & # 'P 'F 9 >% ( 2 ' J 9( 7

A 7D2 % K'P 'J; % )>( 2 &A 7D2 % K'P 'J; % )>( 2 &

J)7( ); ?>K& %J)7( ); ?>K& %

U+((&A)A#-'%'0
J 26 <'J 26 <' P ' "? %P '"? %

Page 257
Item 6



Page 258
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'()'"##$%&'()'*+,-+'./$'*0'1234'5+55*+,-+'./$'*0'1234'5+55
627'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')/:#'<(78:8;'=>%(#%'?28)(?)')/%'@%)'ABB:?%'C%()/%7'627'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')/:#'<(78:8;'=>%(#%'?28)(?)')/%'@%)'ABB:?%'C%()/%7'D%#ED%#E

F/28%,F/28%,)6786)966)6366 )GHI(:>,GHI(:>,)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

J:#:),J:#:),)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

Q'0;<) ) 2+-$/) #'E) X%'-&<<) )

QN+-E++') ) QN+-E++'</%-+) )

W+$A++'
++,++'67:'*N'123'5+55++,++'67:'*N'123'5+55))#'E
*-,++'67:'*N'123'5+55*-,++'67:'*N'123'5+55

Q(()-+0%&'<)Y)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

P%8)7(>4'.(L#:&%'Q'6:B%P%8)7(>4'.(L#:&%'Q'6:B%

R7(I=:(8R7(I=:(8

Q>N+-)A#-'%'0
O(:8O(:8

Page 259
Item 6



Page 260
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' **+,-'.$% '//'0$12'*3*3**+,-'.$%'//'0$12'*3*3
456'%78$969%#'6%1(6&971'):9#';(67971'<=%(#%'>57)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA9>%'B%():%6'456'%78$969%#'6%1(6&971'):9#';(67971'<=%(#%'>57)(>)'):%'?%)'@AA9>%'B%():%6'C%#DC%#D

E:57%+E:57%+)6786)966)6366 )FGH(9=+FGH(9=+)+':;%-%+<=>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@

I9#9)+I9#9)+)AAA?>+$&44%1+?0&,?;@BC-+>%;>B/#D#-E>#'#0+-

F)G-&A')1&CH-%0/$?)I+$)J44%1+

K

V'0;<) ) M%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'E) W%'-&<<) )

VN+-E++'</%-+) ) I&-#H) )

XE%'N;-0/) ) .+<$) Y&$/%#') )

U+$A++'
**+,-'.$% '//'0$1'*3*3**+,-'.$%'//'0$1'*3*3 ))#'E
3-+33'B%&'/*'0$1'*3*33-+33'B%&'/*'0$1'*3*3

V(()-+0%&'<)Z)#;$/&-%$%+<)#44+1$+E

J%7)6(=2'.(K#9&%'L'49A%J%7)6(=2'.(K#9&%'L'49A%

M6(H<9(7M6(H<9(7

NB'N>5)=(7&2'O5):9(7'P56&%6#NB'N>5)=(7&2'O5):9(7'P56&%6#

V>N+-)A#-'%'0
.:$7&%6#)56H.:$7&%6#)56H

Page 261
Item 6



Page 262
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)Z)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-.'/01'-2'3(45'-+--*+,-.'/01'-2'3(45'-+-- '' '' 67&()%&'() '67&()%&'() ' *.,89'/01'-2'3(45'-+--*.,89'/01'-2'3(45'-+--
/:0'%4;$101%#'0%<(0&14<')=1#'>(0414<'7?%(#%'@:4)(@)')=%'A%)'BCC1@%'D%()=%0'/:0'%4;$101%#'0%<(0&14<')=1#'>(0414<'7?%(#%'@:4)(@)')=%'A%)'BCC1@%'D%()=%0'E%#FE%#F

G=:4%,G=:4%,)6576)866)6366 )HIJ(1?,HIJ(1?,)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

K1#1),K1#1),)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J
Y+$@++'
+L,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--+L,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+-- ))#'D
*.,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--*.,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--

L+#;&')4&-):BD#$+

F&'4%D+'1+)%')$/+)&11:--+'1+)&4)$/+);$-&'0+;$)@%'D;)/#;)%'1-+#;+D)#'D)$/+)%=B#1$)=#$-%K)/#;)N++'):BD#$+D

$&)-+4(+1$)$/%;M)B:;/%'0)$/+)@#-'%'0)1&(&:-)$&)S=N+->

S=N+-)@#-'%'0
D14&D14&

Page 263
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-.'/01'-2'3(45'-+--*+,-.'/01'-2'3(45'-+-- '' '' 67&()%&'() '67&()%&'() ' *.,89'/01'-2'3(45'-+--*.,89'/01'-2'3(45'-+--
/:0'%4;$101%#'0%<(0&14<')=1#'>(0414<'7?%(#%'@:4)(@)')=%'A%)'BCC1@%'D%()=%0'/:0'%4;$101%#'0%<(0&14<')=1#'>(0414<'7?%(#%'@:4)(@)')=%'A%)'BCC1@%'D%()=%0'E%#FE%#F

G=:4%,G=:4%,)6576)866)6366 )HIJ(1?,HIJ(1?,)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

K1#1),K1#1),)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J

S'0:;) ) [:'D++) ) R%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'D) \%'-&;;) )

SN+-D++') ) SN+-D++';/%-+) ) H&-#G) )

]#;$) X&$/%#') ) ]D%'N:-0/) ) H%D(&$/%#') F&:'1%() ) *1&$$%;/) Y&-D+-;) ) .+;$) X&$/%#') )

Y+$@++'
+L,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--+L,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+-- ))#'D
*.,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--*.,++'M() '-N'3(4'-+--

S(()-+0%&';)^)#:$/&-%$%+;)#44+1$+D

O%4)0(?5'P(Q#1&%'R'/1C%O%4)0(?5'P(Q#1&%'R'/1C%

S0(J71(4S0(J71(4

MD'M@:)?(4&5'T:)=1(4'U:0&%0#MD'M@:)?(4&5'T:)=1(4'U:0&%0#

S=N+-)@#-'%'0
D14&D14&

Page 264
Item 6



Page 265
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)V)&4)5

"# # $% & '() '"# # $% & '() ' *+,-.'/ $% '01'2 % 3 4'5*01*+,-.'/ $% '01'2 % 3 4'5*01 '' '' 63 & () % & '() '63 & () % & '() ' *7,55'8% & '0+'2 % 3 4'5*01*7,55'8% & '0+'2 % 3 4 '5*01
9: ; '% < = $ > ; > % # '; % ? ( ; & > < ? ')@ > # 'A( ; < > < ? '3 B % ( # % 'C : < )( C ) ')@ % 'D % ) 'E F F > C % '8% ( )@ % ; '9: ; '% < = $ > ; > % # '; % ? ( ; & > < ? ')@ > # 'A( ; < > < ? '3 B % ( # % 'C : < )( C ) ')@ % 'D % ) 'E F F > C % '8% ( )@ % ; ' G % # HG % # H

I @ : < % ,I @ : < % , )6576)866)6366 )J KL ( > B ,J KL ( > B , )+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+ >0&,>:?

M> # > ) ,M> # > ) , )@@@>=+$&44 %1+ >0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$ >)H+$)I44%1+

J
U+$@++'
*1,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01*1,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01 ))#'D
01,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*0101,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01

W+#;&')4&-):BD#$+

X/+)@#-'%'0)/#;)M++'):BD#$+D)$&)%'1(:D+)=&-+)&4)$/+)'&-$/+#;$)&4)S'0(#'D)#'D);(%0/$(G)D+(#G)$/+

+'D)$%=+>)X/+)(%?+(%/&&D)&4)%=B#1$;)/#;)#(;&)M++')%'1-+#;+D)$&)/%0/>

R=M+-)@#-'%'0
8><&8><&

Page 266
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"# # $% & '() '"# # $% & '() ' *+,-.'/ $% '01'2 % 3 4'5*01*+,-.'/ $% '01'2 % 3 4'5*01 '' '' 63 & () % & '() '63 & () % & '() ' *7,55'8% & '0+'2 % 3 4'5*01*7,55'8% & '0+'2 % 3 4 '5*01
9: ; '% < = $ > ; > % # '; % ? ( ; & > < ? ')@ > # 'A( ; < > < ? '3 B % ( # % 'C : < )( C ) ')@ % 'D % ) 'E F F > C % '8% ( )@ % ; '9: ; '% < = $ > ; > % # '; % ? ( ; & > < ? ')@ > # 'A( ; < > < ? '3 B % ( # % 'C : < )( C ) ')@ % 'D % ) 'E F F > C % '8% ( )@ % ; ' G % # HG % # H

I @ : < % ,I @ : < % , )6576)866)6366 )J KL ( > B ,J KL ( > B , )+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+ >0&,>:?

M> # > ) ,M> # > ) , )@@@>=+$&44 %1+ >0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$ >)H+$)I44%1+

J

R'0:;) ) F(#1?=#''#';/%-+) ) Y:'D++) ) L#(?%-?) ) L%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'D) Z%'-&;;) ) *$%-(%'0) )

RM+-D++') ) RM+-D++';/%-+ ) )

Y:-/#=) ) "&-$/:=M+-(#'D) )

F:=M-%# ) )

F&:'$G) R'$-%= ) ) F&:'$G) R-=#0/) ) F&:'$G) Y&@') ) F&:'$G) L+-=#'#0/) ) F&:'$G) Q&'D&'D+--G) )

F&:'$G) XG-&'+) )

Y:=4-%+;) #'D) [#((&@#G) ) S#;$) Q&$/%#') ) SD%'M:-0/) ) H%D(&$/%#') F&:'1%() ) *1&$$%;/) U&-D+-;) )

.+;$) Q&$/%#') )

R-0G(() #'D) U:$+) ) S#;$) RG-;/%-+) ) S#;$) Y:'M#-$&';/%-+) ) S#;$) W+'4-+@;/%-+ ) ) [(#;0&@) )

N',+-1(GD+) ) "&-$/) RG-;/%-+) ) "&-$/) Q#'#-?;/%-+ ) ) W+'4-+@;/%-+ ) ) *&:$/) RG-;/%-+) )

*&:$/) Q#'#-?;/%-+ ) ) .+;$) Y:'M#-$&';/%-+) )

U+$@++'
*1,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01*1,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01 ))#'D
01,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*0101,**'8% & '0+'2 % 3 '5*01

R(()-+0%&';)\)#:$/&-%$%+;)#44+1$+D

U% < );( B4 ' / ( R# >& % 'V ' 9>F %U% < );( B4 ' / ( R# >& % 'V ' 9>F %

W ;( L3 >( <W ;( L3 >( <

X: ;)@ 'J( # ) 'J< ?B( < &X: ;)@ 'J( # ) 'J< ?B( < &

X: ;)@ '8% # ) ' J< ?B( < &X: ;)@ '8% # ) ' J< ?B( < &

X: ;)@ % ;< ' ";% B( < &X: ;)@ % ;< ' ";% B( < &

28'2C: )B( < & 4 ' Y: )@ >( < 'Z : ;& % ;#28'2C: )B( < & 4 ' Y: )@ >( < 'Z : ;& % ;#

2);( )@ CBR& %2);( )@ CBR& %

R=M+-)@#-'%'0
8><&8><&

Page 267
Item 6



Page 268
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)U)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-.'/%&'0'1%23'4*45*+,-.'/%&'0'1%23'4*45
167'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')<:#'=(78:8;'>?%(#%'@68)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'/%()<%7'167'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')<:#'=(78:8;'>?%(#%'@68)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'/%()<%7'D%#ED%#E

F<68%,F<68%,)6576)866)6366 )GHI(:?,GHI(:?,)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

J:#:),J:#:),)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J
Q+$@++'
**,**'17:'-'1%2'4*45**,**'17:'-'1%2'4*45 ))#'D
5K,**'L() 'M'1%2'4*455K,**'L() 'M'1%2'4*45

P:-$/+-)X+$#%(;)Y1&'$%':+DZ

R/+);$-&'0)+#;$+-(G)@%'D;)@%(()(%?+(G)(+#D)$&)D-%4$%'0);'&@N)$+=B&-#-G)M(%CC#-D)1&'D%$%&';N)#'D)%1+)4&-=%'0)&'

+KB&;+D)B&@+-)(%'+;)#'D)B/&'+)=#;$;>

W=M+-)@#-'%'0
L86=L86=

Page 269
Item 6



"#$%&'#()*+,+-+).+#$/+-).#-'%'0)*+-,%1+

2#0+)5)&4)5

"##$%&'() '"##$%&'() ' *+,-.'/%&'0'1%23'4*45*+,-.'/%&'0'1%23'4*45
167'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')<:#'=(78:8;'>?%(#%'@68)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'/%()<%7'167'%89$:7:%#'7%;(7&:8;')<:#'=(78:8;'>?%(#%'@68)(@)')<%'A%)'BCC:@%'/%()<%7'D%#ED%#E

F<68%,F<68%,)6576)866)6366 )GHI(:?,GHI(:?,)+'9:%-%+;<=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?

J:#:),J:#:),)@@@>=+$&44%1+>0&,>:?AB-+=%:=A/#C#-D=#'#0+-

E)F-&@')1&BG-%0/$>)H+$)I44%1+

J

W'0:;) ) F(#1?=#''#';/%-+) ) P%4+) ) 2+-$/) #'D) [%'-&;;) ) *$%-(%'0) )

WM+-D++') ) WM+-D++';/%-+) ) H&-#G) )

V%0/(#'D) )

W-0G(() #'D) Q:$+) )

Q+$@++'
**,**'17:'-'1%2'4*45**,**'17:'-'1%2'4*45 ))#'D
5K,**'L() 'M'1%2'4*455K,**'L() 'M'1%2'4*45

W(()-+0%&';)\)#:$/&-%$%+;)#44+1$+D

N%8)7(?3'O(P#:&%'Q'1:C%N%8)7(?3'O(P#:&%'Q'1:C%

R7(I>:(8R7(I>:(8

S:;<?(8&#'Q'G:?%(8'L:(7S:;<?(8&#'Q'G:?%(8'L:(7

L)7()<@?P&%L)7()<@?P&%

W=M+-)@#-'%'0
L86=L86=

Page 270
Item 6



Page  of 

Berwick Wood site visit was commissioned by Northwoods Rewilding Network to assess the conditions 

of waterways and bring a set of recommendations to achieve a potential ecological uplift of the site. 

The site visit was carried out on the 10th of November 2023 by Maja Pepper from River Revivers. 

Weather conditions were optimum - clear, dry and sunny. Flow level was medium. 

Berwick Wood is located north of the town of Hatton of Fintray, near Aberdeen. The main watercourse 

north of Berwick Wood is the River Don.  

The unnamed waterways were given names on this report  Channel 1, 2 & 3 to clarify.  

eft hand bank  always refers to the observer 

looking . 

Map 1: Site geology shows that the brown areas (circled in red) at the pond and the Eastern side of 

Berwick Wood has peat formation which is a partially decomposed mass of semi-carbonised 

vegetation which has grown under waterlogged, anaerobic conditions, usually in bogs or wetland. The 

rest of the areas are principally Banchory Till Formation - gravelly and sandy diamicton composed 

principally of decomposed Neoproterozoic metamorphic rocks and Caledonian igneous rocks. And 

interlayered psammite and semipelite, with subsidiary pelite and sporadic minor calcareous horizons. 

Page 271
Item 6



Page  of 

Map 2: Berwick Wood waterways. Sitka spruce plantation green coloured. Some areas have been 

harvested already. Channel 1 is connected to the pond. Channel 3 discharges into Channel 2. Channel 

1 and 2 are not connected at present. 

Fig. 1: View of the pond that connects to 

Channel 1. (Grid Ref. NJ 84161 18059). 

Fig. 2: View downstream of Channel 1 which 

connects with the pond from Fig.1. It is a 

straightened narrow channel (<1m wide) 

experiencing tunnelling effect due to channel 

incision and tall grass growth. 

Scots pine 

mature stands. 

Channel 1

Channel 2

Channel 3

Page 272
Item 6



Page  of 

Fig. 3: View downstream of the upper section of 

the straightened Channel 2 which flows parallel 

to the previous one but it does not connect to 

the pond. Would benefit from installation of 

wood or brash structures to create sinuosity and 

retain water. 

Fig. 4: View downstream of the lower section of 

the Channel 2. Brash bridge made by the forestry 

for extraction purposes.  

Fig. 5: View downstream of Channel 2. 

Starightened and slow flowing. Stone 

embankment on the right hand bank (in red) 

preventing lateral movement of the channel. 

Recommendation - removal of right hand bank 

embankment and installation of wood and brash 

structures would give more sinuosity and 

encourage water retention. 

Fig. 6: Stands of Scots pine within the Sitka 

spruce plantation. South field has been clear 

felled recently while the north field (behind the 

Scots pine) is still standing. See Map 2. (Grid Ref. 

NJ 84577 18377). 

Recommendation  retain and expand the area 

of mature Scots pine and remove Sitka spruce 

progressively or by clear fell. This will give 

diversity in structure, habitat and dynamism to 

the site. 

Page 273
Item 6



Page  of 

Fig. 7: View upstream of the straightened 

channel 3 (peatland area NE site on the Map 1). 

Recommendation  addition and installation of 

woody structures to increase water retention.  

Fig. 8: Waterlogged anaerobic conditions on the 

upper section of the channel 3.  

Recommendation  possible pond creation. 

Fig. 9: View downstream of Channel 3. Channel 

bed vegetated. No gravel sediments instream. 

Stone embankment on the right hand bank 

preventing lateral movement of the channel. 

Recommendations  partial or total removal of 

the embankment and installation of woody 

brash structures to retain water on site. Possible 

pond creation. 

Fig. 10: Channel 3 confluence with Channel 2. 

Waterlogged conditions. (Grid Ref. NJ 84227 

18078). Possible linked ponds. 

Channel 2

Channel 3

Page 274
Item 6



Page  of 

The restoration recommendations have been selected specifically for Berwick Wood site. A 

conversation with Mhairi Player on site and the accompanied walkover described the landowner

objective is to remove the -native Sitka spruce plantation and replace it with native flora. River 

Revivers agrees with this approach. 

A desk study analysing old maps and the geology of the site has determined the best action to take to 

improve the ecology of Berwick Wood. These actions are summarised below: 

It is highly recommended that deer population is brought down to 

sustainable densities where native trees can establish and natural regeneration could occur 

in the future. There are deer stalkers at present culling deer but effort would need to be 

increased in order to allow native woodland to establish. This could be done in two ways; one 

way is to cull deer and the other is to erect a deer fence to exclude deer from the site. Deer 

culling is usually the preferred option if possible as deer are woodland animals and would exist 

naturally but in much lower numbers. However, it would take longer in time to establish native 

woodland this way.  

This action is 

already happening at present, and the landowners  vision for the future is to replace the whole 

area with native flora. The important action for management to consider in the future is to 

keep on top of the eradication of self-seeded Sitka spruce. This species has an invasive 

character and would start expanding rapidly across the area, especially if the deer numbers 

decrease. Sitka offers much less habitat for native flora or fauna than native trees would.  

From the site visit walkover and desk study (Map1), it 

shows that the area would be peat dominated where currently the waterways are. These 

waterways have been modified in the past becoming man-made drainage systems. What it 

shows at present is that the waterways are straightened and ditches were dug draining the 

water from the land and planting non-native conifers for commercial purposes. The most 

suitable option for an ecological improvement would be to retain as much water on the site 

as possible. This could be done by blocking the existing old ditches by installing natural 

materials instream, such as large and course woody structures (LWS, CWS), brash, logs, etc. 

Different techniques should be used by each site. Given that the felling is taking place on site, 

the material from harvesting could be utilised for instream work. This action would increase 

the amount of aquatic and terrestrial invertebrates, having a chain effect increasing thus other 

wildlife associated with water, such as amphibians, birds and mammal species and their 

densities.  

Creation of deeper and shallower sections to retain more water on land, rather 

than encouraging the water to drain from the land as fast and straight as possible. 

Straightened channels exacerbate peak flows events and increase flooding in downstream 

reaches. The ponds could be made and connected in-between the existing ditches. It would 

be expected that some ponds might dry out in drought conditions, but this is a natural process 

and adds to habitat mosaic. With successful (leaky) damming, in time the water table may rise 

and the land may become capable of retaining and expanding the amount of water on the 

land and seep it downstream slowly, aiding drought events. 

Page 275
Item 6



Page 276
Item 6



Page 277
Item 6



Page 278
Item 6



Page 279
Item 6



Page 280
Item 6



Page 281
Item 6



Page 282
Item 6



Page 283
Item 6



Page 284
Item 6



Page 285
Item 6



Page 286
Item 6



Page 287
Item 6



Page 288
Item 6



Page 289
Item 6



Page 290
Item 6



Page 291
Item 6



Page 292
Item 6



Page 293
Item 6



Page 294
Item 6



Page 295
Item 6



Page 296
Item 6



Page 297
Item 6



Page 298
Item 6



P
age 299

Item
 6



P
age 300

Item
 6



P
age 301

Item
 6



P
age 302

Item
 6



P
age 303

Item
 6



P
age 304

Item
 6



2>FFEHMB>H# 6EHCNLLEB# ^HOBKHBLL$LDEKB# 94(' '8=

PPP%L@IMF>HA?ECJE@MNKB%@IG

:@IMMELD @D>KEM>?FB @IGJ>HQ FEGEMBA ?Q CN>K>HMBB% 3D>KEMQ 8I% :3&+&*)( 3IGJ>HQ 8I% :3)+((.- <1; 8I0 /*, .+*+ -)

+$),&"(%Y ,FC

#GD *G?JNICZ

Page 305
Item 6



Page 306
Item 6



Page 307
Item 6



Procedure Minutes Direct 

seeding

Minutes 

transplanting

Harvesting/Bed 

Average

Total Annual 

delivery Hours

Seeding to tray 

prior to 

germination 

and 

transplanting

Packing - 

Boxes, Salad 

bags etc

Total Annual 

Hours for the 

Market garden 

area

Seedlings per tray 8m

Bed Clearance 0h 15m 0h 15m

Bed Preparation 0h 20m 0h 20m

Direct seeding 0h 10m

Transplanting 0h 20m

Watering/Covering 0h 15m 0h 15m

In Crop Weeding per crop 1h 0m 1h 0m

Harvesting/week/ veg 0h 20m

Packing /box 0h 10m

Delivering Boxes to Clients/ year 90h 0m

Delivering to Hub / year 20h 0m

Delivery to Cafes/ year 80h 0m

Total individual Bed Hours 2h 0m 2h 10m 0h 20m 190h 0m 0h 8m 0h 10m

Number of times per season 100 250 600 1 300 1500

Total hours for season 200h 541h 40m 200h 190h 40h 250h 1421h 40m

Area of Outdoor Area 0.47

Total Hours /ha /Season 3,025

Outdoor Market Garden Area (ha)

Indicative Hours /ha

Page 308
Item 6



Outdoor Market Garden Area 1,421 

3 Caterpillar Tunnels + 1 Poly Tunnel 145 

Orchard Area 25 

Pigs 131 

add allowance for forestry work 

add allowance for admin (market 
garden) 

1 x Full-time Equivalent 

0.048

145

Under Cover Market Garden Area (ha)

Indicative Total Hours

Page 309
Item 6



Page 310
Item 6



Page 311
Item 6



Page 312
Item 6



Page 313
Item 6



Page 314
Item 6



Page 315
Item 6



Page 316
Item 6



Page 317
Item 6



Page 318
Item 6



Page 319
Item 6



Page 320
Item 6



Page 321
Item 6



Page 322
Item 6



Page 323
Item 6



Page 324
Item 6



Page 325
Item 6



Page 326
Item 6



Page 327
Item 6



Page 328
Item 6



Page 329
Item 6



Page 330
Item 6



Page 331
Item 6



Page 332
Item 6



Page 333
Item 6



Page 334
Item 6



Page 335
Item 6



Page 336
Item 6



Environment and Infrastructure Services

REPORT OF HANDLING
Application Reference: APP/2023/0889
Proposal: Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 
Panels
Address: Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton Of Fintray

1. Description of proposal

Full planning permission is sought for the proposed erection of a dwellinghouse and 
retrospective permission is sought for installation of ground based solar panels at 
site at Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray. 

The site is located at approximately 1.3km to the north of Hatton of Fintray. The site 
is surrounded by woodland to north, east and west sides. There is an existing access 
track immediately over the northern site boundary and a market garden associated 
with the applicants’ business lies outwith the site to the south. There is an existing 
shed and greenhouse over the east boundary and there is a private road  over the 
west boundary that runs on an east-west course which comprises the main access to 
the site. The site currently features the existing array of ground mounted photo 
voltaic PV panels (4 lengths) which are located in the north west portion of the site 
area. There is also an existing storage shed on the north side of the access track 
with parking and turning area all within the application site boundary. The 
surrounding area of ground falls gently from east to west and to a lesser extent from 
north to south. 

Berwick wood horticultural business is currently being run and managed by Mr and 
Mrs Player. The holding extends to some 30.59 ha in total and comprises mainly 
woodland (conifers) interspersed with open grass areas (taking up 30.012 ha), an 
area utilised for market gardening – outdoor cultivation (0.47 ha), fruit and vegetable 
growing in both caterpillar and polytunnels (0.048 ha) and an orchard (0.06 ha). 
There are currently 6 pigs kept on the landholding for ground conditioning purposes. 
They now wish to accommodate a full time worker on site for the purposes of daily 
management and welfare of the pigs and also to mitigate against the rising costs of 
maintaining the polytunnels and structures on site during adverse weather 
conditions.

The proposed dwellinghouse would be sited on the south side of the existing access 
track facilitating the site. The plans indicate that 67 spruce trees in the location of the 
proposed house are to be removed.  The proposed dwelling would comprise a 1 3/4 
storey dwelling, three bedrooms with a rectangular footprint measuring 15.24m by 
5.58m. The design comprises vertical proportions both in terms of the overall 
massing and the openings. Features of the dwelling include close cropped eaves 
and a 45 degree roof pitch. The external materials comprise larch timber (untreated) 
cladding to the walls, grey concrete tiles to the roof, anthracite grey windows and 
doors, rooflights, galvanised steel rainwater goods and inclusion of stainless steel 

Page 337
Item 6



flue facilitating a wood burning stove. The dwelling would have a ridge and eaves 
height of 7.2m and 3.9m respectively. The dwelling would be orientated southwest - 
northeast within the site with ridgeline running parallel to the existing access track to 
the north. The foul drainage serving the development is by septic tank to soakaway 
arrangement and the development would connect to public mains water supply. The 
ground based solar panels are in 4 elongated sections each comprising 9 panels 
each.  Two out of the 4 sections (18 panels) are south facing and the other 2 are 
east and west facing.

2. Relevant Planning History

Access road facilitating site
APP/2019/1266 Formation of Forestry Track AGR (prior approval not required) 21 
June 2019

Equipment shed (within site boundary)  APP/2018/0050 Erection of Agricultural 
Storage Building (Prior Notification) 
Approved 12 Feb 2018

Site to north
APP/2012/2066 Erection of Equipment Building and Bothy 
(Prior Notification) refused (planning permission required) 29 June 2012
There are various structures around the site comprising polytunnels, greenhouse 
and storage container but there are no associated planning permissions for these. 

3. Supporting Information

Design Statement (by Sylvan Stuart Ltd) April 2023

Provides background information, identifies the proposed house design and layout 
and details of the policy context (in relation to siting and design only) against which 
the application requires to be assessed. 

Labour requirement report  (by Allathan  Associates) December 2022

The report details the labour requirement of the existing businesses on site and also 
provides justification for residency on the land holding. The report indicates that the 
business owned by Mr and Mrs Player (Berwick Farm Produce) is both a horticultural 
and livestock (6 pigs) firm based at Berwick Wood and the standard labour 
requirement for the total operations requires 2094 hours per year. The standard 
labour requirement is 1,900 hours per year based on a standard full time employee 
and therefore the labour requirement at Berwick wood would be equivalent of 1.1 
full-time employees.

Supplementary note to Labour Requirement Report (by Allathan  Associates) dated 
17 August 2023 

The information contains the following points:

Page 338
Item 6



 The business is becoming unviable as it cannot meet statutory animal welfare 
requirements due to the workers being unable to safely access the site in severe 
weather conditions 

 The livestock is therefore restricted to spring summer and early autumn to avoid 
severe weather

 The proposed house will be zero carbon (run on photovoltaic panels/ battery 
storage)

 The exclusion of silviculture (the care and cultivation of woodlands) from the 
labour requirement report contradicts planning policy which allows for on-site 
accommodation for forestry

 There are also issues with deer, rabbit and pigeon depredation
 No cognisance has been given to the fact that the development will enhance 

biodiversity and reduce emissions and adapt for impacts of climate change
  
Drainage Report (by S.A. McGregor) May 2023

Provides details of the porosity testing undertaken which indicate that the site is 
capable of being serviced by a sub-surface stone-filled soakaway of 26m2 (based on 
a 5 person population equivalent) for foul water discharge from sewage treatment 
system. The surface water is to be disposed of via an existing swale/ open surface 
water drainage channel and the report indicates that the existing swale is acceptable 
for this purpose. 

Water Supply Risk Assessment Report and Certificate of Chemical Analysis 

Both of which has been carried out by Aberdeenshire Council and the results  
(chemical) analysed by Aberdeen Scientific Services Laboratory on 2 March 2019. 
Note these were in relation to a proposed private water supply. However, the 
development is now proposed to connect into public water mains. 

Correspondence from the agent (22 September 2023)

Provides further supporting information relating to the applicable LDP and NPF4 
policies. Also provided is a list of severe climate events that have impacted the 
business growth recently and a list of available local property with 4km is provided 
(relevant to that time). There is a section of the letter that details a narrative from the 
applicant detailing their personal circumstances, the impact of Covid 19 and details 
of the sustainable practices of the business. The applicant also provides information 
on how it is essential to live on site to tend to the pigs – the following points are 
made:

 Pigs need fed twice daily
 They need checked twice daily (they cant lose heat easily and therefore 

require lots of water to create wallows to allow them to regulate temperature)
 No winter period has allowed daily access to the farm
 For viability reasons, they need to breed pigs and have year round pork 

stocks to be able to provide direct to consuming customers and to local 
businesses 

Page 339
Item 6



Correspondence from agent in respect of the Compensatory planting (received 26 
January 2024) 

A plan showing the location of the proposed compensatory planting was submitted 
by the agents. The plan indicates that the total area of trees that require to be felled 
to accommodate the house equates to 0.07HA and that the area of compensatory 
planting would equate to 2.218HA and would be planted out in a mix of native 
broadleaf including willow, aspen, alder and hazel. 
The correspondence also confirms that none of the proposed compensatory planting 
occupies previously grant aided tree planting or is the subject of any current grant 
application. 

Berwick Woods Management Plan 2019-2029 (dated 7 July 2019) 

The Berwick Woods Management Plan is a plan of the proposed works to the 
existing trees in the woodland that was submitted to and agreed by Scottish 
Forestry. The report indicates that the land on and adjacent to the site is commercial 
forestry and that the applicant has sought permission from Scottish Forestry in 
relation to a programme of thinning on the adjacent woodland.

4. Variations & Amendments 

None

5. Representations

No valid representations have been received.

6. Consultations

Business Services (Developer Obligations) – confirm that the developer 
obligations have been agreed by the applicant. 

Environment and Infrastructure Services (Contaminated Land) advise that there 
is no indication of any past use which might has caused contamination.

Environment and Infrastructure Services (Environmental Health) had requested 
details of the private water supply. However, the agent for the application confirmed 
that it is now proposed to connect to the public water supply and accordingly no 
objection is now raised. However, it requests that a condition requiring mains 
connection is attached.

Environment and Infrastructure Services (Flood Risk & Coast Protection) has 
no objection to the proposal.

Environment and Infrastructure Services (Roads Development) initially objected 
to the proposal due to insufficient information submitted regarding road surface and 
bin uplift store without impact on visibility. Following submission of the revised plan, 
the Roads Development has no objection as it was noted that the proposed dwelling 
is to provide accommodation for the owners of the existing business on the site and 

Page 340
Item 6



won’t result in any increased usage of the access. It requires standard conditions 
concerning the surfacing of the first 5 m of the access and provision of a refuse bin 
uplift store.

Environment and Infrastructure Services (Natural Environment) advise that the 
site for the proposed house is currently woodland which is listed on the National 
Forestry Inventory 2020. Under policy (control of woodland removal policy) removal 
of the woodland requires compensatory planting of an equal area. Following 
clarification on the proposed compensatory planting, Natural Environment planners 
are satisfied that the compensatory planting proposed meets the policy requirements 
but in the event of the application being approved that it would seek an appropriate 
condition to be applied to ensure the timeous implementation of the compensatory 
planting. It also requires that biodiversity enhancement measures are included as 
part of a quality landscaping scheme.

External

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) do not advise on safety grounds against the 
granting of planning permission in this case.

National Gas Transmission has no objections to the development which is in the 
vicinity of a high pressure gas pipeline. However, it advises that the development 
must not proceed without further assessment from Asset protection. It is the 
developers responsibility to ensure that this is undertaken. 

Scottish Water – indicates that the development will be fed by the Invercannie 
Water Treatment Works. However, it cannot confirm capacity and therefore requires 
that the developer submits a Pre development Enquiry (PDE). There are no sewers 
in the vicinity of the site and therefore private treatment options require to be 
explored. For reasons of sustainability Scottish Water will not accept any surface 
water connections into the combined sewer system.

7. Relevant Policies

National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4)

Scotland’s fourth National Planning Framework (NPF4) is a long term plan looking to 
2045 that guides spatial development, sets out national planning policies, designates 
national developments and highlights regional spatial priorities. It is part of the 
development plan, and so influences planning decisions across Scotland.

On 13 February 2023 (0900am) Scottish Ministers adopted and published National 
Planning Framework 4 (NPF4), meaning that it is in force and National Planning 
Framework 3 and Scottish Planning Policy are superseded from that date and time. 
This will also have the effect that all strategic development plans and any 
supplementary guidance issued in connection with them cease to have effect on that 
date. As such the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 2020 has 
now ceased to have effect.  The NPF4 now forms part of the development plan along 
with the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023.

Page 341
Item 6



Policy 3 Biodiversity
Policy 6 Forestry, Woodland and trees
Policy 11 Energy
Policy 17 Rural homes
Policy 18 Infrastructure first

Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023

On 13 January 2023 the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023 was adopted.

Policy R2 Development Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside
Policy P1 Layout, siting and design
Policy E3 Forestry and Woodland
Policy PR1 Trees and Woodlands
Policy RD1 Providing Suitable Services
Policy RD2 Developer Obligations
Policy C1 Renewable Energy 

8. Other Material Considerations

An integrated impact assessment is not required because the granting or refusing of 
the application will not have a differential impact on the protected characteristics of 
the applicant or any third parties.

Planning advice PA 2023-11 Development in the Countryside Policies R1 and R2 
including Organic growth of Settlements (September 2023) 

9. Implications and Risk

There are no risks identified in respect of this matter in terms of the Corporate and 
Directorate Risk Registers as the Committee is considering the application as the 
planning authority in a quasi-judicial role and must determine the application on its 
own merits in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
justify a departure.

10. Directions by Scottish Ministers

N/A

11. Discussion

There are essentially 2 elements to the proposed development, the main one being 
the erection of a dwellinghouse, and the other is retrospective permission for the 
ground based solar panels. Whilst the panels would serve the proposed house, the 
two elements will be considered separately. 

Erection of dwellinghouse

Page 342
Item 6



The main issues to be addressed in the consideration of the dwellinghouse include 
the principle of development, the layout, siting and design of the proposed dwelling, 
and any site specific and relevant technical matters.

Principle of development

In considering the principle, ALDP2023 Policy R2 Development proposals elsewhere 
in the countryside applies along with NPF4 Policy 17 Rural Homes.
The principle of development requires to fall within one of the specified categories 
detailed in the above policies. The relevant categories contained within these 
policies that apply to single dwellings are summarised below:

 It is demonstrated to be necessary to support the sustainable management of a 
viable rural business or croft, and there is an essential need for a worker 
(including those taking majority control of a farm business) to live permanently at 
or near their place of work.

 Reuse of brownfield land where a return to a natural state has not or will not 
happen without intervention.

 Reinstates a former dwelling house or is a one-for-one replacement of an 
existing permanent house.

 Single homes associated with retirement succession of a viable farm holding.
 Extensions to clusters/housing groups (remote rural areas only.

Given the information submitted in support of this application, the only category 
within the above that could apply to the site in question is 1. - a dwellinghouse that is 
necessary to support the sustainable management of a viable rural business or croft, 
and there is an essential need for a worker to live permanently at or near their place 
of work.

The information submitted with the application advises that the applicant's 
justification for proposing to site a dwellinghouse in this location is for the purposes 
of animal welfare for the pigs that they keep on the land as well as ensuring the 
crops that are grown at the horticultural business are protected from extreme 
weather events and maintained to minimise issues with deer, rabbit and pigeon 
depredation. 

Whilst the Labour report indicates that the total man hours required for the existing 
enterprise equates to 2094 hours =1.1 full time equivalent, there are only 6 pigs at 
present on the site which equates to 131 hours standard labour requirement (SLR). 
The remaining labour hours for the enterprise are for tending to the market garden 
areas, the polytunnels and orchard areas. The report also includes within the total 
labour requirement, 200 hours for forestry work and 172 hours for admin work. 
The addendum to the labour report indicates that the enterprise is currently restricted 
for the following reasons:

 They need to add to the pig herd to make the pork business operate effectively 
but they can’t do this without an on-site presence as additional pigs with no on 
site presence may result in destruction to neighbouring property which would be 
financially damaging to the business.

Page 343
Item 6



 There are bio hazard risks associated with importing livestock so the applicants 
want to build up the herd from the businesses own breeding.

 Further to this the business has suffered losses from the weather events 
(flooding and high winds) as the owners have not been on site to save the crops. 

 The pigs need fed and during extreme weather events the owners would not be 
able to reach them. 

 Both streams (livestock and horticulture) need constant on site management
 Whilst the owners live nearby, this does not provide the same levels of 

surveillance, supervision and animal husbandry necessary to support the 
business.

In assessing the circumstances of this application, the policy specifically states that 
the need for an essential worker requires to be demonstrated by the applicant in 
order to determine whether there is a need for a full-time active presence at the site. 
In terms of definition of “essential”, the policy states as an example, “in order to 
maintain an active presence for the purposes of animal husbandry”. The 
accompanying planning advice PA 2023-11 states that, “workers employed purely in 
arable activities are unlikely to be deemed essential unless the business has very 
specific needs or where mixed farming activities means animal husbandry is a 
significant part of the overall farm business”. In support of the LDP position, NPF 4 
Policy 17 requires that it is demonstrated that the dwellinghouse is necessary to 
support the sustainable management of a viable rural business or croft, and there is 
an essential need for a worker (including those taking majority control of a farm 
business) to live permanently at or near their place of work. Whilst the policy infers a 
viable rural business, the said rural business must also demonstrate essential need 
for a worker on site and the policy again specifically refers to “farm” business. 

In the Labour report, the outdoor market garden area and indoor polytunnel and 
orchard account for 1591 SLR which makes up the bulk of the full time equivalent 
(FTE) of 1900 hours. Horticulture by its nature is similar to arable farming in that they 
both involve growing and cultivation of crops whether that be fruits, vegetables or 
cereal grains etc.  Given that the practices necessary to support and manage these 
type of growing enterprises are similar and the fact that arable farming (even if on a 
large scale), generally does not justify an essential on site presence, it is very difficult 
to justify a dwellinghouse for the growing and cultivation of crops on this relatively 
small scale horticulture business. 

The supporting information argues that exclusion of silviculture (the care and 
cultivation of woodlands) contradicts planning policy which allows for on-site 
accommodation for forestry. Whilst policy permits accommodation in a primary 
industry, the presence of a worker requires to be essential to the efficient operation 
of the enterprise. The forestry element of the proposed development accounts for 
only 200 hours per annum which falls significantly short of the required 1900 FTE. 
The planning service are required to only take in to account current employment 
needs, and not predicted or desired needs for future working. Whilst the desire to 
grow the pig business is acknowledged, this cannot be taken into account for the 
purposes of determining essential need at the present time. The existing livestock 
business comprising 6 pigs which equates to only 131 man hours per year is not 
considered to be sufficient to warrant an on-site presence. Similarly, whilst the 
planning service sympathise with the impact that the extreme weather events have 

Page 344
Item 6



had on the business in terms of stock being lost to the elements, this is not a reason 
in itself to warrant an on-site presence as preparation for weather events can be 
made in advance.   

While the Labour Requirement Calculations conclude that 1.1 FTE is justified, the 
majority of this is for arable / horticulture which is not considered to warrant an 
essential on site presence. The planning service therefore conclude that no essential 
need has been demonstrated in this case. 

Policy also states that accommodation must be within the immediate vicinity of the 
place of employment and there is no suitable alternative residential accommodation 
available.  Notwithstanding the fact that the proposed site lies in the immediate 
vicinity of the enterprise, as stated above the proposal as presented does not 
warrant an essential need for a house. 

The supporting information advises that the applicants currently live in a leased 
apartment at Cothal (3 miles away) and the lease terminates in June 2024. The 
information states that the applicants have sufficient funds to build the proposed 
house. In terms of available alternative residential accommodation, the information 
submitted identifies 10 properties within 4 km of the site all of which are in excess of 
£215,000. Given that the applicants  argue that an on-site presence is necessary in 
this case, they have not provided any justification for or against the suitability of any 
available properties in the vicinity other than to provide a list. The planning service 
do not consider that there is a need for an onsite presence in this case. 

Taking account of the above, the proposal therefore cannot be supported in 
principle, as it does not meet with the policy criteria of policy R2 of ALDP23, nor 
policy 17 of NPF4.

While the proposal cannot be accepted in principle, consideration requires to be 
given to the loss of trees and layout, siting and design of the proposed dwelling. 

Loss of Trees 

The site is heavily treed at present and therefore the loss of the existing trees 
requires to be considered against policy The plans indicate that 67 Sitka Spruce 
trees would be removed to make way for the proposed dwellinghouse. Policy 6 of 
NPF 4 and E3 of the ALDP 2023 both confirm that development proposals will not be 
supported where they result in loss of native woodland and individual trees of high 
biodiversity value or where developments cause fragmentation to or sever woodland 
habitat. The applicants also provided details of a Woodland Management Plan that 
they had submitted to Scottish Forestry in 2019. The plan indicates that the existing 
trees on and adjacent to the site form part of a commercial forestry plantation. The 
management plan indicates that in terms of the forestry operation, that thinning is 
proposed to the existing spruce plantation which includes therein the location of the 
proposed dwellinghouse.  

NPF 4 places emphasis on protecting existing woodland to avoid habitat 
fragmentation and improve ecological connectivity. Policy (control of woodland 
removal policy) requires that where woodland is removed, compensatory planting (of 

Page 345
Item 6



an equal area) is required. The applicants advise that they have already undertaken 
planting of native trees on their land (200 willow trees and 50 hazel trees) as 
compensation for 63 non-native Sitka spruce that are proposed to be removed and 
they also propose to plant a further 350 native trees. Previous trees planted within 
the applicant’s ownership cannot be counted as part of the compensatory planting 
for the current application. A plan of the proposed compensatory planting was 
submitted (at the request of the planning service) and the plan indicates a number of 
areas within the landholding where the applicants proposed to plant native broadleaf 
trees including willow, aspen, alder and hazel. The area of land for the compensatory 
planting is indicated as 2.218 ha  as compared to the proposed house site from 
which trees are proposed to be removed (0.07ha). On the basis that the proposed 
compensatory planting far exceeds the area of trees to be removed, and that the 
applicants have confirmed that the proposed planting is not associated with any 
grant assistance, the principle of removing the Sitka spruce can be accepted and the 
development is considered to comply with Policy 6 Forestry, woodland and trees of 
NPF4 and Policy E3 Forestry and Woodland of ALDP 2023. 

Layout, siting and design

Policy P1 Layout, siting and design states that new development must be 
appropriately designed and in keeping with the character and setting of the 
surrounding area. NPF 4 Policy 14 Design, quality and place is also applicable.
The proposed dwelling is appropriate for the site, with the footprint being 
proportionate to the plot size and can accommodate the dwelling and garage. The 
dwelling is relatively modest in scale, with vertical proportions and high quality 
materials and set against a backdrop of trees which bound the access road, 
subsequently, it is not considered to create a detrimental impact on the character of 
the area or landscape, in accordance with both NPF 4 Policy 14 Design, quality and 
place and ALDP 2023 Policy P1 Layout, siting and design.

Technical considerations

Policy RD1 advises that we will only allow development that is located and designed 
to take advantage of or incorporate the services, facilities and infrastructure 
necessary to support it. These matters include road access, waste management 
provision, water supply, wastewater connections and treatment, and other elements 
as may be appropriate in the circumstances. Policy 22 (Flood risk and water 
management) of NPF4 requires that development proposals are served by public 
water mains or alternative sustainable water source and that all rain and surface 
water incorporates SUDs which should integrate with existing blue – green 
infrastructure.  

With regards the existing access road, Roads Development has commented that the 
proposed dwelling is to provide accommodation for the owners of the existing 
business on the site and won’t result in any increased usage of the access. They 
hold no objection subject to conditions in relation to the new access and refuse bin 
uplift. 

The development would connect to public water supply which is acceptable. The 
development would be served by private drainage for both foul and surface water 

Page 346
Item 6



disposal and the drainage report submitted indicates that the ground conditions are 
suitable for this purpose. This is considered sufficient to satisfy the requirements of 
Policy RD1 of the ALDP 2023 and Policy 22 of NPF 4.

Policy RD2 (Developer Obligations) advises that whereby itself or cumulatively, 
development would give rise to the need for new or improved infrastructure or 
services, and this is not to be directly provided as an integral part of the 
development, planning obligations or other appropriate means to secure such 
provision may need to be put in place.  Business Services (Developer Obligations) 
confirm that the required developer obligations for the development have been 
accepted by the applicants and as such the proposal is therefore in compliance with 
policy RD2.

Ground Mounted Solar PV Panels 

Policy 11 Energy of NPF 4 and Policy C2 Renewable Energy in ALDP 2023 support 
renewable energy developments including solar provided that various matters are 
satisfies including siting, design, consideration of glint and glare and that any 
significant impacts will have duration of less than 5 minutes per day. The proposed 
development comprises a domestic solar array that would serve the proposed 
dwellinghouse and as such they are of a minor scale. They are located in a part of 
the site that is not readily visible from ant public views. Given that they do not impact 
the wider landscape, they are considered to be acceptable and would comply with 
the relevant energy policies. In the design statement, it is noted that the proposed 
dwellinghouse would have solar panels incorporated into the design. It is not clear 
whether these panels are in addition to the existing ground mounted panels. It is 
understood that the ground mounted panels presently provide power to the existing 
storage building. If a separate application were to be submitted for the retention of 
the solar array on its own, it is likely to be supported. 

Conclusion 

Policies relating to new dwellings in the countryside are in place to protect the 
character and amenities of the countryside. The circumstances surrounding this 
proposed development do not meet the criteria defined within NPF4 policy 17 Rural 
homes nor ALDP23 policy R2 for new houses in the countryside. The planning 
service consider that substantial justification to comply with the above policies is 
required in order to demonstrate an essential need for an on-site presence 
associated with an existing rural enterprise and that no such policy justification exists 
in this case. The principle of development therefore does not comply with NPF4 
policy 17 Rural homes and ALDP23 Policy R2.

While the proposed dwelling design is considered to be appropriate to the character 
of the rural area, it meets policy in terms of the required compensatory planting and 
is also meets with relevant technical matters of Aberdeenshire Local Development 
Plan 2023 and the National Planning Framework 4, the proposal cannot be 
supported in principle and as such is recommended for refusal. 

Page 347
Item 6



12. Recommendation

REFUSE for the following reason(s):

01. The planning authority considers that the application is for a development which 
is not in accordance with the policies contained within National Planning 
Framework 4 nor the Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023.  The 
proposed development does not meet the policy requirements to justify an 
essential need for an on site presence for a worker associated with an existing 
rural enterprise. There are no other criteria within the exemptions stated in policy 
that apply to the site in question. The proposed development therefore does not 
comply with NPF4 Policy 17 Rural homes and ALDP23 Policy R2 Development 
Proposals Elsewhere in the Countryside.

13. Process of Determination

The application was the subject of consultation with Local Members under the 
Councils Scheme of Governance.

14. Planning Obligations

No

Page 348
Item 6



Page 349
Item 6



Page 350
Item 6



Page 351
Item 6



Page 352
Item 6



Page 353
Item 6



Page 354
Item 6



Page 355
Item 6



Page 356
Item 6



Page 357
Item 6



Page 358
Item 6



Page 359
Item 6



Page 360
Item 6



Page 361
Item 6



Page 362
Item 6



Page 363
Item 6



Page 364
Item 6



Page 365
Item 6



Page 366
Item 6



Page 367
Item 6



Page 368
Item 6



Page 369
Item 6



Page 370
Item 6



Page 371
Item 6



Page 372
Item 6



Page 373
Item 6



Page 374
Item 6



Page 375
Item 6



Page 376
Item 6



Page 377
Item 6



Page 378
Item 6



Page 379
Item 6



Page 380
Item 6



Page 381
Item 6



Page 382
Item 6



Page 383
Item 6



Page 384
Item 6



Page 385
Item 6



Page 386
Item 6



Page 387
Item 6



Page 388
Item 6



Page 389
Item 6



Page 390
Item 6



Page 391
Item 6



Page 392
Item 6



Page 393
Item 6



Page 394
Item 6



Page 395
Item 6



Page 396
Item 6



Page 397
Item 6



Page 398
Item 6



Page 399
Item 6



Page 400
Item 6



Page 401
Item 6



Page 402
Item 6



Page 403
Item 6



Page 404
Item 6



Page 405
Item 6



Page 406
Item 6



Page 407
Item 6



Page 408
Item 6



Page 409
Item 6



Page 410
Item 6



Page 411
Item 6



Page 412
Item 6



Page 413
Item 6



Page 414
Item 6



P
age 415

Item
 6



Page 416
Item 6



Page 417
Item 6



Page 418
Item 6



Page 419
Item 6



Page 420
Item 6



Page 421
Item 6



Page 422
Item 6



Page 423
Item 6



Page 424
Item 6



Page 425
Item 6



Page 426
Item 6



Page 427
Item 6



Page 428
Item 6



Page 429
Item 6



Page 430
Item 6



Page 431
Item 6



Page 432
Item 6



Page 433
Item 6



Page 434
Item 6



Page 435
Item 6



Page 436
Item 6



Page 437
Item 6



Page 438
Item 6



Page 439
Item 6



Page 440
Item 6



Page 441
Item 6



Page 442
Item 6



Page 443
Item 6



Page 444
Item 6



Page 445
Item 6



Page 446
Item 6



Page 447
Item 6



Page 448
Item 6



Page 449
Item 6



Page 450
Item 6



Page 451
Item 6



Page 452
Item 6



Page 453
Item 6



Page 454
Item 6



Page 455
Item 6



Page 456
Item 6



Page 457
Item 6



Page 458
Item 6



Page 459
Item 6



Page 460
Item 6



P
age 461

Item
 6



P
age 462

Item
 6



P
age 463

Item
 6



P
age 464

Item
 6



P
age 465

Item
 6



P
age 466

Item
 6



Page 467
Item 6



P
age 468

Item
 6



P
age 469

Item
 6



P
age 470

Item
 6



Page 471
Item 6



Page 472
Item 6



Page 473
Item 6



Page 474
Item 6



Page 475
Item 6



Page 476
Item 6



Page 477
Item 6



Page 478
Item 6



Page 479
Item 6



Page 480
Item 6



Page 481
Item 6



Page 482
Item 6



Page 483
Item 6



Page 484
Item 6



Page 485
Item 6



Page 486
Item 6



Page 487
Item 6



Page 488
Item 6



Page 489
Item 6



Page 490
Item 6



Page 491
Item 6



Page 492
Item 6



Page 493
Item 6



Page 494
Item 6



Page 495
Item 6



Page 496
Item 6



P
age 497

Item
 6



P
age 498

Item
 6



P
age 499

Item
 6



P
age 500

Item
 6



P
age 501

Item
 6



P
age 502

Item
 6


	Agenda
	2 Public Sector Equality Duty.
	3 Minute of the Meeting of the Local Review Body of 22 March 2024
	4 Spreadsheet Highlighting Relevant Policies for Each Review.
	ALDP 2023
	NPF4

	5 LRB 604 - Notice of Review against Refusal of Full Planning Permission for Erection of Children's Day care Nursery (Class 10 Non-Residential Institutions), Erection of Children's Workshop, Formation of Wildlife Pond and Erection of Dwellinghouse (Renewal of Planning Permission APP/2018/1279) at Land Adjacent to Rothnick Croft, Netherly, Stonehaven, AB39 3QU - Reference: APP/2022/1845.
	(05a) (ii) LRB 604 Planning Service Response
	(05b) (iii) LRB 604 - Representations received in response to Notice of Review
	(05c) (iv) LRB 604 - Agent's response to Representations received

	6 LRB 605 - Notice of Review against Refusal of Full Planning Permission for Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar Panels at site at Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray, AB21 0YR - Reference: APP/2023/0889
	(06a) (ii) LRB 605 Planning Service Response


